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[Top] : Shri Sushil Kumar, Secretary, Ministry of Coal, Government of India inaugurated coal
production at Dinesh Open Cast Mine, Umrer Area on 26th Feb, 2017.

[Bottom] : Agreement between WCL and Maharashtra Tourism Development Corporation was
signed for Mines Tourism in the august presence of Shri Devendra Fadnavis, Hon'ble Chief

Minister, Maharashtra.
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[Top] : MOU between WCL and Nagpur Improvement Trust (NIT) was signed for supply of sand
from overburden removed from Bhanegaon Opencast Mine at a cheaper rate in the august
presence of Shri Nitin Gadkari, Hon'ble Minister of Road Transport and Highways, Govt of India
and Shri Devendra Fadnavis, Hon'ble Chief Minister, Maharashtra.

[Bottom] : The 6th EPC World Award was conferred to WCL for Innovative Contribution in
Mining Sector for starting 1st Eco Mine Tourism in India.
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[Top] : Smt. Poonam Kumar (wife of Secretary, MOC, Govt. of India) alongwith Smt. Anita
Mishra, President, Jhankar Mahila Mandal, WCL handing over Computer Printers and other
material to the students of Deaf and Dumb School, Sonegaon, Nagpur.

[Bottom] : Beneficiaries of Artificial Limbs distributed by WCL in a camp organized by Nagpur
Area.



Western Coalfields Limited (WCL) was conferred with SKOCH Award (Gold) by Gurgaon
based SKOCH group, working for independent socio-economic matters, for converting Mine
Discharged Water into Potable and supplying to villages for drinking purpose.
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The mines of your Company are located in Maharashtra and South-West Ma dhya Pradesh. For
effective administrative control and operations, the mines have been grouped in 10 (Ten) Areas as

follows:

Areas

Nagpur and Umrer

Chandrapur, Ballarpur,
Majri, Wani and Wani
North

Pench and Kanhan

Pathakhera

Total No. of Mines - 81

District

Nagpur,
Chandrapur

Chandrapur
& Yavatmal

Chhindwada
Betul
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State

Maharashtra

Maharashtra

Madhya Pradesh
Madhya Pradesh

02

Mines as on 31/03/2017
Underground Opencast Mixed
10 09
10 27
10 07
06 -
36 43
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Board of Directors
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Functional Directors

Shri B.K. Mishra - Technical
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Government Directors (Part time)

Shri Animesh Bharti - Economic Advisor Ministry of Coal ,
New Delhi
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Shri Mahendrakumar Bhatt

Permanent Invitee(s)

Shri A.K. Jain

Chief Operations Manager
Central Railway, Mumbai

Company Secretary

Shri Rameher
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New Delhi (w.e.f. 15.07.2015)
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Brief profile of Directors

Shri Rajiv Ranjan Mishra (56) is Chairman-cum-Managing Director of our company. He holds
Master Degree in Geology and Post Graduate Diploma in Personnel Management and Industrial
Relations. Shri Mishra began his career over three decades with CMPDIL. During this long journey,
Shri Mishra served Northern Coalfields Limited, Coal India Limited, Eastern Coalfields Limited at
various capacities in the field of Personnel, Human Resources Development etc.

Shri Mishra is known for his team building capabilities and strategic management acumen. Shri
Mishra is credited with various initiatives towards team building for acquisition and physical
possession of land, opening of new projects, employment to PAPs, rehabilitation of land affected
families, trust building measures, skill development, mines water management, Eco tourism etc.

Shri Mishra has various excellent awards to his credit in the fields of Human Resources
Management, Administration, Governance etc.

Prior to this, he was Director {Personnel) of Central Coalfields Limited. He holds a Directorship at
‘The Singareni Collieries Company Limited’ and Permanent Invitee on the Board of Coal India
Limited. Shri Mishra is associated with several professional bodies at various capacities. Shri
Mishra also held Additional charge of CMD, Eastern Coalfields Limited from 23/11/2016 to
14/06/2017. He is also holding the Additional charge of Director (P&IR), Coal India Limited w.e.f.
19/06/2017.

Shri Binoy Kumar Mishra (58) is the Director {Technical) of our company since 23rd May, 2015. An
alumni of Indian School of Mines (ISM), Dhanbad, Shri Mishra is an experienced Mining Engineer
and Administrator. He completed his B. Tech in Mining Engineering with distinction and M. Tech in
Industrial Engineering from ISM, Dhanbad with distinction. He also completed PGDM specialization
in ‘“Zero’ base budgeting and First Class Certificate of Competency under The Indian Mines Act. He
has been serving Coal Industry for more than three decades. Prior to elevation as Director
(Technical) he has worked in various capacities in Bharat Cooking Coal Limited and South Eastern
Coalfields Limited. He has in his credit the experience of Managing three highest coal producing
mines in Coal India namely Gevra, Dipika and Kusmunda. Shri Mishra is associated with several
professional bodies.

Dr. San|ay Kumar (54) is Director (Personnel} of our company since 23rd July, 2015. Dr. Kumar
holds a Bachelor's Degree in Science from University of Rajasthan. He completed his MBA in
Human Resources from Lucknow University. A Doctorate in Management from University of
Rajasthan, Dr. Kumar joined WCL at a time when Western Coalfields Limited began scripting an
unprecedented turnaround. With his versatile approach Dr. Kumar pioneered in this remarkable
transformation of WCL. As Director (Personnel), Dr. Kumar is responsible for formulating policy
initiatives for welfare of employees and PAPSs, Industrial Relations, Corporate Social Responsibility,
Security apart from other fields. He deeply involve with his team for creating an environment of
learning and innovation which not only drives value for the employees but also to other stake holders
of the company. Prior to elevation as Director (Personnel), Dr. Kumar was looking after policy
implementation issues relating to employees Relations, Performance Management and Career
Progressions. Prior to joining Coal India he has worked at various capacities in ONGC, GAIL and REC.
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Shri S.M. Choudhary (55) is Director (Finance) of our company since 3rd March, 2016. Shri
Choudhary is a gaualified Chartered Accountant, Cost and Management Accountnt and Company
Secretary. He has also completed certified course on IFRS and Indirect Tax from the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. He started his career in Mining Industry from Central Coalfields
Limited and worked there in various capacities. He has been serving Coal Industry for more than
three decades. Shri Choudhary has been conferred with Special Achievement Award by CIL for
formalities of Unique Financial Scheme related to Mine Closure Plan. Prior to this, he was General
Manager (Finance) in-charge at Coal India Limited. He is associated with various professional
bodies at various capacities.

ShriT.N.Jha (58) is Director (Technical) of your Company. since 1st August, 2016. An alumni of
Indian School of Mines (ISM), Dhanbad, Shri Jha is a distinguished Mining Engineer having an
experience of over three decades in Mining Industry. Shri Jha completed his B.Tech. in Mining and
M.Tech in Industrial Engineering & Management in distinction from ISM, Dhanbad. He has also
completed his PGDISM (Industrian Engineering & Management) from ISM, Dhanbad with
distinction. He is a First Class Certificate of Competancy under the Mines Act. He is a visionary
and strategist having consistant record of delivering extraordinary results in difficult mining
conditions for which he has been awarded by professional bodies. After joining BCCL in 1983, Shri
Jha has worked at different capacities in BCCL & WCL prior to elevation as Director (Technical),
WCL. ShriJhais associated with several professional bodies.

Shri Animesh Bharti (51) Economic Advisor, Ministry of Coalis a Government Nominee Director
on the Board of Western Coalfields Limited with effect from 15th July, 2015. Shri Bharti joined India
Economic Service in the year 1993. He has held Senior Managerial positions in different Ministries
and Department of the Central Government such as Department of Industrial Policy & Promotion,
Ministry of Commerce, Ministry of Home Affairs, Ministry of Labour, Small and Medium Industries,
National Building Organisation under Ministry of Housing & Poverty alleviation.

Dr. Kirit N. Shelat (71) is an Independent Director on the Board of our company. A doctorate in
Public Administration, Dr. Shelat joined Indian Administrative Services in 1967 from Gujarat Cadre.
During his long distinguished carrier he held various positions. He worked as Commissioner, Rural
Development, Industries, Employment and Training, Disabled Persons and Secretary, Department
of Energy. He was also Chairman of Gujarat Agro Industries Corporation. He worked at micro level
to settle rural projects and production plan modules for farmers in agricultural sectors apart from
developing scientific soil healthy moisture analysis for giving soil health card to farmers. He also
worked as Land Settlement Advisor to the Government of Afghanistan. He is an Executive
Chairman of National Council for Climate Change, Sustainable Development and Public
Leadership. He has various books in his credit on Rural Development, Agriculture, Leadership,
Applied Bio-diversity for Sustainable Agriculture.

Shri N. Ramarao (70) is an Independent Director on the Board of our company. He joined Indian
Administrative Services in 1972 from Maharashtra Cadre. During his long distinguished carrier he
handled various important assignments. He worked as Joint Secretary, Agriculture, Managing
Director-Cotton Federation, Government of Maharashtra. He also worked as Chief Executive
Officer (CEO), Maharashtra Maritime Board, Principal Secretary, Housing Department and
Managing Director — CIDCO. He also worked as Managing Director — Maha Tamil Collieries Ltd.,
Nagpur. Shri Ramarao is Director in Royale Manor Hotels and Industries Limited.
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ShriIndra Ghosh (64) is an Independent Director of our company. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Science and Master’s Degree in History. Shri Ghosh joined Indian Railway Traffic Services and in
the course of his career he held various significant assignments such as Executive Director-Freight
Marketing, Railway Board, Divisional Railway Manager, Waltair Division, Advisor-Routes, Railway
Board. He also held the post of Chief Operations Manager, Northern Railway and General Manager,
East Coast Railway. He provides guidance for upgrading/ improving existing railway sidings and
modifying shunting/ operations practice in siding and improving their layouts.

Shri Mahendrakumar Bhatt (65) is an Independent Director of our company. Shri Bhatt holds a
bachelor degree in Science. He also did LLB. During his long and distinguished carrier in the state of
Gujarat he held various positions. In the year 2002 he was appointed as Member of Gujarat Public
Service Commission (PSC) and in the year 2009 he took charge of chairman GPSC till he retired in
2014. He is associated with various NGOs and Trusts such as ‘Swadhyaya Mandal’ and ‘Shri
Bhahmarshi Ashram’for promoting Sanskrit language. He has also trained more than 2000 teachers
for‘One Teacher School’ inthe country.He is also a trustee of ‘Shri Mahavir Divya Mandir Trust'.

Shri Ajit Kumar Jain () is Chief Operations Manager, Central Railway, Mumbai is the Permanent
Invitee on the board of our company. Shri Jain belongs to the 1982 batch of Indian Railway Traffic
Service (IRTS). Having a Master Degree in Science and M.Phil., Shri Jain has worked as Chief
Operation Manager, West-Central Railway, Jabalpur. Shri Jain has varied administrative
experience as General Manager/CRIS and has handled different responsibilities in operations,
vigilance, General Administration etc.
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WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED
CIN : U10100MH1975G 01018626
Registered Office : Coal Estate, Civil Lines, NAGPUR - 440 001
Telephone Number : 0712-25112016 Fax :0712-2511216
email : ramehar@westerncoal.gov.in website : westerncoal.nic.in

Ref :WCL/SECY/BD/AGM-42/2017/575 Date :05/07/2017
NOTICE
FORTY SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 42nd Annual General Meeting of the Members of Western
Coalfields Limited will be held at 10.30 A.M. on Monday, the 10th July, 2017 at the Registered
Office of the Company at Coal Estate, Civil Lines, Nagpur to transact the following business :

. ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2017 including the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2017 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date and the Reports of
Board of Directors, Statutory Auditor and Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon.

2 To appoint a Director in place of Shri Animesh Bharti (DIN: 07260983), who retires by
rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Sanjay Kumar (DIN: 07267800), who retires by
rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

. SPECIAL BUSINESS:
ITEM NO.1

Subject : Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditors for the financial years 2016-17
ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as
an ordinary resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other provisions of the Act, the following
cost audit firms appointed as Cost Auditors be paid audit fees as per the following details for
conducting cost audit for 2016-17 in respect of Western Coalfields Limited :

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17 | 8
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SL. Name of the Firm & Address

No Regn. No. Zone Allotted AUDIT FEE *
1 M/S Dhananjay V. Joshi & 000030 Zone | : Consisting Rs.3,45,043/-
Associates,CMA Pride,Ground of WCL Hars &
Floor,Plot No. 6, S.No.16/6, Nagpur Areas

Erandawana Co.Op.Hsg.Soc.,
Erandawana,Pune 411004.

2 M/S R.Nanabhoy & Co, Jer 000010 Zone |l Consisting of Rs.1,84,570/-
Mansion, 70, 1* Floor, August Kranti Wani, Majri, Wani
Marg,Mumbai-400036. North Areas and

CWS, Tadali

3 M/S Niran & Co., Cost 000113 Zone lll Consisting Rs.1,84,570/-

Accountants, LIG-7, Shankar of Pench, Kanhan,
Nagar, Sector-2, in front of Nandan Washery
Radhakrishna Mandir, Raipur (CG) and Patherkhera

492001 Areas.

4 M/S N.D.Birla & Co.,Cost 000028 Zone: IV Consisting Rs.1,43,555/-
Accountants, A/3,Nirant of Umrer,Chandrapur
Apartment, Near Karnavati and Ballarpur Areas.

Hospital, Ellis Bridge, Ahmedabad,
380006.

*(a) Inadditionto fees, traveling and out of pocket expenses restricted to 50% of the audit fees will

be paid subject to production of documentary evidence.

(b) Service Tax ete. will be paid extra as applicable on furnishing the registration number with the

appropriate authority.
“Resolved further that COIA/Company Secretary be and are hereby authorised to take further
necessary action in the matter.”
By order of Board of Directors
FORWESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED
Sd/-
( Rameher)
Company Secretary

NOTE:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint a proxy or
proxies to attend and vote instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of
the Company. In orderto be effective, the Proxy form duly completed should be deposited at the
registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the scheduled time of
the Annual General Meeting. Aproxy form is enclosed.

2. Members are also requested to accord their consent for convening the meeting at a shorter
Notice under section 101(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

To

Coal India Limited (Through Chairman, CIL), Kolkata

Shri Sutirtha Bhattacharya, Chairman, CIL, Kolkata

Shri C.K. Dey, Director (Finance), CIL, Kolkata

Shri Rajiv R.Mishra, CMD, WCL, Nagpur

M/s.V.K.Surana, Statutory Auditors, WCL

Shri Ramanuj Asawa, Secretarial Auditor, WCL

Dr.Kirit N. Shelat, Chairman, Audit Committee, WCL.
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Chairman’s Statement

Friends,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Western Coalfields Limited, |
welcome you in the 42nd Annual General Meeting of the Company.
Your Company had maintained its performance with strong top line,
thatis, revenues of Rs.10,733.77 crores during the financial yer 2016-17
and achieved ever-highest volume of composite production.

I am happy to share that we are well positioned among the coal
producers in the country on the strength of our sturdy performance
year after year, despite the stiff challenges posed by adverse geo-
mining conditions, paucity of reserves amenable to mega projects,
highest stripping ratio among all the subsidiaries of CIL, strata control
problems due to adverse geo-tectonic parameters and high
susceptibility of coal to spontaneous heating/fire in underground
mines and unviable ongoing/future projects.

Vision

Energy is the prime mover for the growth of the nation and coal is the primary source of energy in
India.Coal meets about three-fifths of India's energy needs. Coal will remain India's main energy
source for the next three decades although its share in the energy mix will gradually shrink to 42-48 %

by 2047, as the country is pushing for renewable energy in line with the commitments of Paris
agreement.

Indian Coal Industry needs to augment the coal production at an unprecedented rate to reach the
planned level of 1.5 Billion Tonnes by the year 2020, including CIL's share of 1Billion Tonnes. Your
company has also revisited its earlier long-term projection and has set its goal to enhance output to
60.00 Million Tonnes and beyond by the year 2020.

Accordingly, the Company has set its vision to emerge as a key player in the primary energy sector
committed to provide energy security to the country by attaining environmentally and socially
sustainable growth through best practices from mine to market.

Performance 2016-17

Financial Year 2016-17 had been a year full of challenges but with the concerted efforts of the
Team, Company achieved coal production of 45.632 Million Tonnes against last year's 44.815
million tonnes, registering growth of 1.82%.

Coal off-take during the year had a major setback on account of decline in coal demand from Power
Utilities till Oct.'”2016 and dearth of customers for cost plus coal resulting in less Offtake of 39.497
Million Tonnes against last year's actual of 42.310 Million tonnes, which also had an adverse impact
on bottom line.

The sales realization during the fiscal was ¥10522.12Crores which is 0.79% more than the last
year's realization of ¥ 10439.33 Crores. Additional revenue of ¥ 119.77 Crores generated through
e-auction during2016-17.

Your Company achieved ever-highest overall productivity of 3.50 tonnes per man-shift during the
year 2016-17, which is 112.9% of the target of 3.10 tonnes per man shift and registered
appreciable growth of 4.79% over last year's actual of 3.34 tonnes per man shift.
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Company continued to maintain high utilization of HEMM, which has been more than ClL's average
for shovels, dumpers, dozers and drills during the year 2016-17.WCL ranked second in utilization of
Shovels, Dozers & Drills amongst all subsidiaries of CIL. During the year, Company purchased 62
new equipment comprising of 60T Dumpers, Hydraulic Excavators, Dozers, Drills, Cranes and Tyre
Handlers against surveyed off equipment.

Financial Performance

Company achieved turnover of ¥ 10413.39 Crores & incurred a loss of ¥ 1075.26 crores before tax
during the year 2016-17 as against ¥ 394.20 crores profit before tax in the previous year 2015-16.
Net worth of the company stood at ¥2557.13 Crores. Present financial position of the company
does not permit for declaration of dividend forthe year2016-17.

Creation of Assets

Company has invested ¥ 1048.06 Crores during FY 2016-17 on development of new mines and
infrastructure along with replacement of old assets, entirely from internal resources against budget
0fI1435 Crores.

Planning Preparedness

Your company is operating 40 Ongoing Projects/Schemes with a sanctioned capacity of 61.555
MTY and sanctioned capital of ¥ 8738.27 Crores. Out of these, 22 projects have contributed 24.06
million tonnes of coal production during the year 2016-17.

Opening of New Projects

Initiatives that were taken to address the issues of unviable projects enabled the Company in
opening 18 projects in last three years, i.e. 3 projects in FY 2014-15, 11 projects during the year
2015-16 and 4 projects during 2016-17,which is a unigue achievement anywhere in the coal
industry.

Exploration and addition in Reserves

Exploratory drilling to the tune of 81,160.91 meters was carried out during the fiscal by CMPDIL in
WCL command area, which includes 72,459.41 meters in CIL Blocks and 8,701.50 meters in Non-
CIL Blocks. Reserves of 1,034.13 MT have been established in CIL Blocks during the year, which
includes proved reserves of 840.41 MT andindicated reserves of 193.72 MT.

Technology infusion in Underground Mines

For sustaining the current production levels and to achieve the targeted growth in the coming years,
production from UG mines needs to be augmented. Initiatives have been taken for adoption of
mass production and continuous mining technology in UG mines for augmenting production and
productivity.

Continuous Miner
Itis planned to deploy Continuous Miner in UG mines of Pench and Pathakhera Area.
Introduction of Man Riding

In order to eliminate long arduous travel, fatigue and to improve the efficiency of workmen in UG
mines, 11 Man Riding Systems have been installed in 10 UG mines, including 1 installed in
Nehariya UG mine during 2016-17.
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Introduction of Universal Drilling Machines (UDMs)

Your company has played a leading role in mechanizing the drilling for coal face as well as roof
support. 7 UDMs were added during 2016-17, in addition to the 48 UDMs already in operation. This
resulted in significant improvement in blasting efficiency leading to increased availability of coal and
improvement in Green Zone support with added safety.

Acquisition and Possession of Land

With the help of various initiatives for resolving contentious issues and trust building measures,your
company has made remarkable achievement in physical possession of 1628.385 Ha of land for
mining and allied activities during the FY 2016-17.

During the fiscal, total 108 Project Affected Families were resettled by providing resettlement grant
as opted by land oustees within the provisions of R&R Policy of CIL. Administrative approval was
accorded by Company Board for Employment of 1566 land oustees & monetary compensation in
lieu of employment to 293 land oustees.

Corporate Social Responsibility

With a view to bring meaningful change in the lives of our most important stake holders that is,
populace residing in our command area in particular and the society at large, your company
undertook massive CSR initiatives during the year 2016-17 and spent about¥10.81 Crores, which
is 1.85 Crores more than the stipulated requirement of ¥ 8.96 Crores under provisions of
Companies Act, 2013.

The activities undertaken broadly covers; Infrastructure Support, Education, Drinking Water,
Health-care, Environment, Sustainable Development and Social Empowerment, SKill
Development, etc.

Your company has taken pioneering initiative for gainful use of mine water discharge for Drinking,
Irrigation and recharging of ground water so as to mitigate the hardships faced due to shortage of
water by local populace residing near mines and 3 schemes were successfully implemented during
2016-17 inadditionto 11 schemes implemented in 2015-16.

During the fiscal 6,515 unemployed rural youth & PAPs were provided with different Skill
Development training through reputed training providers and employment to 3,691 trainees was
offered by various industries.

Welfare

During the year the company incurred an expenditure of¥103.51 Crores for improving the quality of
life, medical & health care services and educational facilities for its employees and their wards.

Safety

Safety is always our top priority and we are continuously thriving for achieving superior standards
through adoption of best practices. Thrust is given to boost safety awareness at the grass root level
so as to prevent repetitive nature of accidents. Training and retraining of workforce to follow the safe
practices at the workplace was one of the main thrust areas during 2016-17. Special safety
awareness drives on various aspects of mining operations in both opencast and underground
mines to improve the safety standards, practices and safety awareness were organized by Internal
Safety Organization (1ISO).
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Further, Safety Management Plans and Safe Operating Procedures (SOPs) for all the mines were
reviewed & updated. Safety Audit of all producing mines was conducted by inter-subsidiary, multi-
disciplinary teams.

Rock Mass Rating (RMR) of 23 Underground production districts were determined by in-house
Rock Mechanics Laboratory. In order to meet the shortage of Statutory Supervisors, 377 Mining
Sirdars and 52 Surveyors (Mining) were recruited during the year 2016-17.

During the fiscal 2016-17, fatal accidents as well as fatalities were reduced by 3 numbers and
serious injuries were reduced by 2 numbers in comparison to previous year.

Energy Efficiency Initiatives:

Accepting the fact that there is scope to save energy by rationalization of operations, your Company
has undertaken various initiatives.

Power consumption during the year has been reduced over previous year by 4.21% (24.76 Million
kWh) despite increase in load for new mines and 40 newly installed secondary crushers, on
account of implementation of various energy conservation measures.

Material Management

All the procurement cases of material were finalized through e-tendering with e-price bid in the
company. Total e-tenders of ¥651.56 Crores value were finalized during the year 2016-17. Your
company reduced the inventory by 7.4% i.e. 0.75 month's consumption during 2016-17 as
compared to 0.81 month's consumption during 2015-16.

Environment Management

Coal mining is environmentally sensitive activity and mitigation of its adverse impacts is imperative
for sustainable development. Your company is aware of its responsibility and has taken initiatives for
environmental protection and pollution mitigation measures in all the operating mines.

Your Company is committed to restore the degraded land through reclamation, afforestation and
green belt development. In this pursuit, your company has undertaken plantation of 1,25,900
saplings during 2016-17 over an area of 50.55 ha. Till 31.03.2017, total 183.95 lakh saplings have
been planted progressively covering an area of 6671.75 Ha. in its command area in the state of
Maharashtra and Madhya Pradesh. Progress of afforestation in 10 major Open Cast Projects,
producing more than 5 million cubic meter (Coal+OB}), is monitored every year through Satellite
Imagery.

The company has received Environmental Clearance for 5 projects/mines during the year 2016-17
from Ministry of Environment, Forests & Climate Change, Govt, of India.

Under Mission 'Nirmal-Nirguda', River Nirguda was de-silted, New pond at Punwat Village was
developed and pond at Sukne village was de-silted and deepened during the year. Four numbers of
Rooftop Rainwater Harvesting System were commissioned in Pench and Kanhan Areas.

Industrial Relations

Industrial Relations during the fiscal 2015-16 has been peaceful, cordial and harmonious in the
company. However, there was an All India General Strike including Coal India Ltd., called by various
Central Trade Unions on 2nd September, 2016 for one day.
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Awards and Accolades

| feel pleasure to share with you that your company was bestowed with following awards during the
year2016-17-—

* “SKOCH BLUE ECONOMY AWARD 2016” in Gold Category for K2K (Kamptee to Kanhan), a
project for utilizing mine water discharge of Kamptee OC after due filtration for supply to Kanhan
and Pipri villages, at New Dellhion 16.12.2016.

e 6th EPC World Award for Eco-Tourism by EPC World in New Delhion 18.01.2017.

Your company stood First in Body Building, Weight & Power Lifting, Kabaddi, Carrom, and Second
position in Table Tennis, Badminton, Hockey & Volleyball in CIL Inter-Company Tournaments.
Company Rescue Team bagged overall First position & secured awards for Recovery Drill, Theory
Test and Best Member during All India Mines Rescue Competition held at Mines Rescue Station,
Nagpur, from 14th Decemberto 17th December2016.

| am also happy to inform you that as the CEO of your Company, | have been awarded with
“Rajbhasha Sri Samman” by Bhartiya Raajbhasha Vikas Sansthan, Dehradun on 26/12/2016,
Leadership Award from 3rd Elets PSU Summit 2017 Delhi on 31/01/2017 & “Fellow of the World
Academy of Productivity Science” on 03/06/2017

Corporate Governance

Company has complied with the conditions (except a few which are under progress) of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by the Department of
Public Enterprises, Government of India. As required under the said guidelines, a separate section
on corporate governance has been added to the Director's Report and a certificate regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance obtained from the practicing Company
Secretary.

“Excellent” rating was accorded by DPE in the field of Corporate Governance to your Company for
the year FY 2015-16. For FY 2016-17 also, as per self-evaluation, your company's Corporate
Governance compliance stood at 96.34% (Excellent Rating).

Last But NotThe Least

We are committed to achieve the targets and aim growth despite stiff challenges while ensuring
highest priority to Corporate Governance, Environment and Corporate Social Responsibility.

We firmly believe that we will continue to maximize the returns of Company's key stake holders - its
shareholders, customers, employees and local populace.

| call upon WCL family to rise and move towards attaining the goal of coal production and offtake
during FY 2017-18. Thus, we will be fulfilling our bounden duty to energize India and in turn
contributing to the progress of the nation.

With Best Wishes,

(Rajiv R. Mishra)
Chairman
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OPERATIONAL STATISTICS - WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED .
FINANCIAL POSITION % in Crores
As on 31st MARCH 2017 2016

A What is owned
Non Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment 4,323.92 3,462.46
Less: Depreciation and Impairment 785.33 389.55
Net Carrying Value of Property, plant & Equipments 3,5638.59 3,072.91
Capital Work in Progress 376.59 237.40
Exploration & Evaluation Assets 300.41 259.99
Other Intangible Asset 9.99 9.99
Financial Assets
(i) Loans 3.83 5.18
(i)  Other Financial Assets 1,596.44 1,244.41
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 806.24 520.88
Other Non-Current Assets 80.03 87.75
1 Total Non-Current Assets 6,712.12 5,438.51
Current Assets
a. Inventories
(i) Inventory of Coal 1,681.66 957.52
(ii) Inventory of Stores & Spares 63.67 61.09
(iii) Other Inventories 19.88 16.03
b. Financial Assets
(i) Investments 0.10 114.36
(ii) Trade Receivables 854.33 832.13
(iii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 57.15 402.06
(iv) Other Bank Balance 870.53 2,262.01
(v) Other Financial Assets 610.88 188.85
c. Current Tax Assets (Net) 926.56 871.90
d. Other Current Assets 215.69 269.14
2 Total Current Assets 5,300.45 5,975.09

Current Liabilities

a. Current Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables 584.13 418.89
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 162.88 144.04
b. Other Current Liabilities 2,254.59 1,648.09
¢. Provisions 1,309.26 1,027.12
3 Total Current Liabilities & Provisions 4,310.86 3,238.14
4 Net Current Assets (2-3) 989.59 2,736.95
TOTAL (A=(1+4)) 7,701.71 8,175.46
B What is owed
Share Capital 297.10 297.10
Reserves & Surplus 2,260.03 3,024.50
Shareholder's Funds 2,557.13 3,321.60
Long Term Borrowings
Other Long Term Liabilities 6.42 6.54
Long Term Provisions 5,138.16 4,847.32
TOTAL (B) 7,701.71 8,175.46
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OPERATIONAL STATISTICS - WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED
FINANCIAL POSITION (As per Indian GAAP)

' As on 31st MARCH

A What Is owned
Gross Fixed Assets (Tangible & Intangible)

Less: Depreciation, Impairment & Provisions

1
2

~N o U b W@

Net Carrying Value of Fixed Assets

Capital WIP & Intangible Assets under
Development

Non-Current Investments

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Long-Term Loans & Advances

Other Non-current Assets

Current Assels

i Current Investments

ii (@) Inventory of Coal

i (b) Inventory of Stores & Spares
ii(c) Other Inventories

iii Trade Receivables

iv Cash & Bank Balances
v Short Term Loans & Advances
Vi Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets
Current Liabilities & Provisions
i Short Term Borrowings
ii Trade Payables
iii Other Current Liabilities
iv Short Term Provisions
Total Current Liabilities & Provisions
Net Current Assets (7-8)
TOTAL (A)

B What is owed

£ O R\

Share Capital

Reserves & Surplus

Shareholder's Funds

Long Term Borrowings

Other Long Term Liabilities

Long Term Provisions
TOTAL (B)
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2015

4,909.70
3,188.07
1,721.63

419.11

464.13
88.18
968.30

137.31
668.48
64.46
24.17
672.92
4,170.31
o88.19
372.24
7,098.08

106.60
1,859.86
1,295.86
3,262.32
3,835.76
7,497.11

297.10
3,264.19
3,561.29

6.45
3,920.37
7,497.11

2014

4,825.57
3,017.29
1,608.28

335.88

48.14
439.04
59.90
684.94

312.20
6863.47
58.04
21.56
468.93
3,941.87
891.40
320.14
6,777.61

84.14
1,704.19
850.92
2,639.25
4,138.36
7,314.54

297.10
3,229.39
3,526.49

4.16
3,783.89
7,314.54

2013

4,515.33
2,956.57
1,558.76

293.19

80.23
578.44
56.12

450.14
584.54
64.76
18.03
471.27
4,243.83
1,104.50
42752
7,364.59

82.01
1,734.51
1,139.88
2,956.40
4,408.19
6,974.93

297.10
3,162.92
3,460.02

68.31
1.70
3,444.90
6,974.93

2012

4,511.05
2,989.41
1,521.64

269.50

96.27
455,72
59.32

32.09
488.14
70.38
12.08
13.97
5,503.40
864.83
430.60
7,415.49

91.32
2,106.58
897.70
3,085.60
4,319.89
6,722.34

297.10
3,086.29
3,363.39
85.91
0.25
327279
6,722.34

Tin Crares

2011

4,313.05
2,871.37
1,441.68

274.53

128.36
350.13
58.21

32.09
360.37
65.83
10.89
25.20
4,063.78
704.54
351.20
5,613.80

66.60
1,547.32
737.53
2,351.45
3,262.45
5,515.36

297.10
2,973.48
3,270.58
98.89
0.11
2,155.78
5,515.36



OPERATIONAL STATISTICS - WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
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For the Year Ending 31st March
Earned From
Sale of Coal (Gross)
Less: Levies
Net Sales (including Excise Duty)
2.i Subsidy for sand stowing and protective works
2.ii Loading and additional transportation charges (Net)
Other Operating Revenue (Net)
3.i Interest on Deposits & Investments
3.ii Dividend from Mutual Funds
3.iii  Other non-operating Income
Other Income
TOTAL (A)

Paid to/ Provided for
1.i Salary, Wagss, Allowances & Benefits
1.ii Contribution to P.F. & Other Funds
1.iii  Gratuity
i.iv Leave Encashment

v  Others
Employee Benefit Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed
Change in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and Stock in trade
Excise Duty
Power & Fuel
Corporate Social Responsibility
Repairs & Maintenance
Contractual Expenses
Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortization expenses
Provisions
Stripping Activity Adjustment
Other Expenses

TOTAL (B)

2017

10,413.39
3,256.10
7,157.29

21.88
286.07
307.95
139.95

4.24
173.26
317.45
7,782.69

3,319.12
382.39
141.81
168.18
994.63
5,006.13
1,020.96
(695.84)
519.21
303.25
10.81
53.74
1,179.75
85.03
368.22
269.50
297.93
439.26

8,857.95

T in Crores

2016

10,349.54
2,394.56
7,954.98

24.02
257.25
281.27
295.73

17.31
193.40
506.44

8,742.69

3,368.67
392.62
161.38
104.05
556.96

4,583.68

1,056.70

(290.89)
510.44
327.85

65.27
53.96
1,001.83
76.69
371.61
18.41
242.08
330.86
8,348.49
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OPERATIONAL STATISTICS - WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

19

For the Year Ending 31st March

Profit Before Tax (A-B)

Less: Tax Expenses

Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations
Profit After Tax

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax)
Total Comprehsnsive Income

Dividend for the year

Dividend paid during the Year

Corporate Dividend Tax

Transfer to General Reserve

Retained Surplus/{Deficit} for the year
Cumulative Profit/(Loss) from last year
Cumulative Profit/(Loss) in Balance Sheet

| ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17
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Overview

2017

{1,075.26}
(298.24)
(0.01)
(777.03)
12.56
(764.47)

(764.47)
799.54
35.07

Tin Crores

2016

394.20
96.50
(0.01)
297.69
72.46
370.15
581.60
188.06
156.69
1,014.83
(1,571.03)
2,370.57

799.54



OPERATIONAL STATISTICS -WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT (As per Indian GAAP)

g in Crores
For the Year Ending 31st March 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
A Earned From
1 Sale of Coal (Gross) 9,652.74  8,563.64 8,703.97 8,357.48 7,073.44
Less: Levies (Excise Duty & other levies) 2,327.35 1,949.81 1,998.82 1,607.47 1,079.17
Net Sales 7,325.39 6,613.83 6,705.15  6,750.01 5,994.27
2.i  Subsidy for sand stowing and protective works 20.48 23.41 24.27 21.59 20.95
2.ii Loading and additional transportation charges 202.65 136.67 98.58 104.91 107.98
(Net)
2 Other Operating Revenue (Net) 223.13 160.08 122.85 126.50 128.93
3.i Interest on Deposits & Investments 343.96 365.45 445.14 435.36 228.70
3.ii  Dividend from Mutual Funds 32.16 26.57 8.05 -
3.iii  Other non-operating Income 53.00 81.79 141.74 118.83 107.15
3 Other Income 429.12 473.81 594.93 554.19 335.85
TOTAL (A) 7,977.64 7,247.72 7,422.93  7,430.70 6,459.05
B Paid to/ Provided for

1.i Salary, Wages, Allowances & Benefits 3,257.63  3,195.35 3,018.11 2,641.32 2,107.16
1.ii Contribution to PF. & Other Funds 376.27 367.52 338.26 268.18 246.47
L.iii Gratuity 109.90 15.97 209.47 629.01 80.87
i.iv  Leave Encashment 112.42 91.69 108.30 130.85 95.61
1.v Others 597.82 570.58 668.24 547.84 419.49
1 Employee Benefit Expenses 4,454.04 4,241.11 4,342.38 4,217.20 2,949.60
2 Cost of Material Consumed 1,149.93 1,143.82 998.24 920.45 863.43
3 Change in inventories of finished goods, work in (0.63) (84.15) (89.31) (128.96) (129.60)

progress and Stock in trade
4 Power & Fuel 309.72 329.95 330.20 281.94 259.20
5 Corporate Social Responsibility 20.15 23.95 21.31 7.65 7.03
6 Repairs & Maintenance 64.34 51.12 68.05 67.45 68.46
7 Contractual Expenses 708.83 604.97 537.90 497.65 467.51
8 Finance Costs 5.95 2.26 2.87 3.20 3.30
9 Depreciation/Amortization/Impairment 236.07 192.23 188.53 195.65 188.16
10 Provisions & Write off 210.69 116.49 34.15 220.62 110.25
11 Overburden Removal Adjustment 15.97 47.61 279.96 458.95 314.56
12 Other Expenses 257.84 255.80 268.22 257.17 297.01
13 Prior Period Adjustment/Exceptional or Extraordinary (0.05) (3.30) 11.56 (8.77) (7.84)

items { charges/ (Incomes) }
TOTAL (B) 7,432.85 6,921.86 6,994.06 6,990.20 5,391.07
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OPERATIONAL STATISTICS -WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT (As per Indian GAAP)

g in Crores
For the Year Ending 31st March 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Profit Before Tax (A-B) 544.79 325.86 428.87 440.50 1,067.98
Less: Tax Expenses (231.64) (102.27)  (104.56) (133.78) (529.66)
Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations (0.01) (0.01) (0.01) (0.01) (0.01)
Profit After Tax 313.14 223.58 324.30 306.71 538.31
Dividend for the year 188.06 134.29 194.60 184.04 323.24
Corporate Dividend Tax 37.60 22.82 33.07 29.86 50.94
Transfer to General Reserve 31.31 33.54 48.64 46.01 80.75
Transfer to CSR/Sustainable Development Reserve - 21.86 22.26 21.83 27.40
Retained Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 56.17 11.07 25.73 24.97 55.98
Cumulative Profit/(Loss) from last year 1,997.89 2,039.50 2,013.77  1,988.80 1,932.82
Cumulative Profit/(Loss) in Balance Sheet 2,054.06 2,050.57 2,039.50 2,013.77 1,988.80

21 | ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



OPERATIONAL STATISTICS - WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED

IMPORTANT FINANCIAL INFORMATION

For the Year Ending 31st March
A Related to Assets & Liabilities
1 i) No. of Equity Shares of * 1000 each
ii)  Shareholder's Funds
a) Equity Share Capital
b) General Reserve
c) Accumulated Profit/(Loss)
Net Worth
2 Net Property, Plant & Equipments
i) Current Assets
ii)  Current Liabilities & Provisions
iii)  Net Current Assets/Working Capital
4 i) Capital Employed (2+3iii)
iiy  Capital Work in Progress
i)  Exploration and Evaluation Assets
iv)  Other Intangible Assets
v)  Capital Employed including (4ii+4iii+4iv)
5 i) Trade Receivables
ii) Cash & Bank Balance
6 i) Closing Stock of Coal (Net)
ii)  Closing Stock of Stors & Spares (Net)
B Related to Profit/Loss
1 i) Gross Margin (PBDIT)
iiy  Gross Margin (PBIT)
iii)  Profit Before Tax (PBT)
iv)  Profit After Tax (PAT)
v)  Other Comprehensive Income (Net of tax)
vi)  Total Comrehensive Income
2 i) Gross Sales of Coal
ii)  Net Sales (including Excise Duty)
iii)  Value of Production
Cost of Goods Sold (Net Sales-PBT)
i) Total Expenditure (excl. change in inventories)

w

ii}) Employee Benefit Expenses

iii)  Cost of Material Consumed

iv)  Power & Fuel
5 Average Consumption of Material per month
6 Value Added

i) Value added per employee (*000)

¥ in Crores
2017 2016
29,71,000 29,71,000
297.10 297.10
2,224.96 2,224.96
35.07 799.54
2,557.13 3,321.60
3,538.59 3,072.91
5,300.45 5,975.09
4,310.86 3,238.14
989.59 2,736.95
4,528.18 5,809.86
376.59 237.40
300.41 259.99
9.99 9.99
5,215.17 6,317.24
854.33 832.13
927.68 2,664.07
1,681.66 957.52
63.67 61.09
(622.01) 842.50
(990.23) 470.89
(1,075.26) 394.20
(777.03) 297.69
12.56 72.46
(764.47) 370.15
10,413.39 10,349.54
7,157.29 7,954.98
7,911.66 8,244.02
8,232.55 7,560.78
9,56563.79 8,639.38
5,006.13 4,583.68
1,020.96 1,056.70
303.25 327.85
85.08 88.06
6,025.90 6,365.44
1,265.09 1,297.43
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OPERATIONAL STATISTICS - WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED
IMPORTANT FINANCIAL INFORMATION (As per Indian GAAP)

1

2]

@

For the Year Ending 31st March
A Related to Assets & Liabilities

i)
if)
a)
b)

€)

d)

i

i)

Na. of Equity Shares of * 1000 each
Shareholder's Funds

Equity Share Capital

General Reserve

Accumulated Profit/(Loss)

Net Worth

CSR & Sustainable Development
Reserve

Shareholder's Funds

Long Term Borrowings incl. Current
Maturities

Long Term Borrowings excl. Current
Maturities

Net Fixed Assets

)}
)}
i)

i)
D)

i)

Current Assets

Current Liabilities

Net Current Assets/Working Capital
Capital Employed (3+4iii}

Capital WIP & Intangibles under
development

Capital Employed incl. CWIP (5i+5ii)
Trade Receivables

Cash & Bank Balance

Closing Stock of Coal (Net)

Closing Stock of Stors & Spares (Net)

Related to Profit/Loss

)
ii)
iii)
iv)

i)
ii)
iif)

Gross Margin (PBDIT)
Gross Margin (PBIT)
Profit Before Tax (PBT)
Profit After Tax (PAT)
Gross Sales of Coal
Net Sales

Value of Production

Cost of Goods Saold (Net Sales-PBT)

i)

ii)
i)

iv)

Total Expenditure (excl. change in
inventories)

Employes Benefit Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed
Power & Fusl

5 Average Consumption of Material per month
6 Value Added

i)

Valus added per employsa (‘000)
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2015

2,971,000

297.10
1,210.13
2,054.06
3,561.29

3,561.29

1,721.63
7,098.08
3,262.32
3,835.76
5,657.39

419.11

5,976.50
672.82
4,170.31
668.48
64.46

786.81
550.74
544.79
313.14
9,6562.74
7,325.39
7,361.22
6,780.60
7,433.48

4,454.04
1,149.93
309.72
85.83
5,866.37
1,171.61

2014

2,971,000

297.10
1,131.81
2,050.57
3,479.48

47.01

3,526.49

1,608.28
6,777.61
2,639.25
4,138.36
5,746.64

335.88

6,082.52
468.93
3,941.87
663.47
58.04

6§20.35
328.12
325.86
223.58
8,563.64
6,613.83
6,728.53
6,287.97
7,008.01

4,241.11
1,143.82
329.95
95.32
5,224.21
995.39

2013

2,971,000

297.10
1,074.31
2,039.50
3,410.91

49.11

3,460.02
84.92

68.31

1,658.76
7,364.59
2,956.40
4,408.19
5,966.95

293.19

6,260.14
471.27
4,243.83
584.54
64.76

620.27
431.74
428.87
324.30
8,703.97
6,705.15
7,338.11
6,276.28
7,083.37

4,342.38
998.24
330.20

83.19

5,466.02

994.55

2012

2,971,000

297.10
1,004.35
2,013.77
3,315.22

48.17

3,363.39
101.97

85.91

1,521.64
7,415.49
3,095.60
4,319.89
5,841.53

269.50

6,111.03
13.97
5,503.40
488.14
70.38

639.35
443.70
440.50
306.71
8,357.48
6,750.01
7,280.74
6,309.51
7,119.16

4,217.20
920.45
281.94

76.70

5,676.58

996.08

¥ in Crores

2011

2,971,000

297.10
950.69
1,988.80
3,236.52
33.99

3,270.58
102.56

88.89

1,441.68
5,613.90
2,351.45
3,262.45
4,704.13

274.53

4,978.66
25.20
4,063.78
360.37
65.83

1,259.44
1,071.28
1,067.98

538.31
7,073.44
5,994.27
6,096.69
4,926.29
5,520.67

2,948.60
863.43
259.20

71.85

4,895.92

829.21



OPERATIONAL STATISTICS - WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED
IMPORTANT FINANCIAL RELATIVE RATIOS

% in Crores
For the Year Ending 31st March 2017 2016
A  PROFITABILITY RATIOS
1 AS % of NET SALES
i) Gross Margin (PBDIT) -8.69 10.59
i) Gross Profit (PBIT) -13.84 5.92
ii) Profit Before Tax (PBT) -15.02 4.96
2 AS % of TOTAL EXPENDITURE
i) Employee Benefit Expenses 52.40 53.06
ii) Cost of material consumed 10.69 12.23
iii) Power & Fuel 3.17 3.79
3 AS % of CAPITAL EMPLOYED
i) Gross Margin (PBDIT) -13.74 14.50
ii) Gross Profit (PBIT) -21.87 8.11
iii) Profit Before Tax (PBT) -23.75 6.79
4 OPERATING RATIO {(Net Sales-PBT)/Net Sales} 1.15 0.95
B LIQUIDITY RATIOS
1 Current Ratio 1.23 1.85
2 Quick Ratio 0.41 1.08
C TURNOVER RATIO
1 Capital Turnover Ratio 1.58 1.37
2 Trade Receivables (net) as no of months
i) Gross Sales 0.98 0.96
ii) Net Sales 1.43 1.26
3 As Ratio of Net Sales
i) Trade Receivables 0.12 0.10
ii) Coal Stock 0.23 0.12
4 Stock of Coal
i) As no of month’s Value of Production 2.55 1.39
if) As no of month’s of cost of goods sold 2.45 1.52
iii) As no of month’s Net Sales 2.82 1.44
D STRUCTURAL RATIOS
Net Worth : Equity Capital 8.61 11.18
2 Net Fixed Assets : Net Worth 1.38 0.93
E SHAREHOLDER’S INTEREST
1 Dividend per Share (‘) - 1,957.59
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OPERATIONAL STATISTICS - WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED
IMPORTANT FINANCIAL RELATIVE RATIOS (As per Indian GAAP) T in Crores
For the Year Ending 31st March 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
A PROFITABILITY RATIOS
1 AS % of NET SALES
i) Gross Margin (PBDIT) 10.74 7.87 9.25 9.47 21.01
i) Gross Profit {PBIT) 7.52 4.96 6.44 6.57 17.87
iii) Profit Before Tax {PBT) 7.44 4.93 6.40 6.53 17.82
2 AS % of TOTAL EXPENDITURE
iy Employee Benefit Expenses 59.92 60.54 61.30 59.24 53.43
iy Cost of material consumed 15.47 16.33 14.09 12.93 15.64
i) Power & Fuel 417 4.71 4.66 3.96 4.70
3 AS % of CAPITAL EMPLOYED
i) Gross Margin (PBDIT) 14.16 9.05 10.40 10.94 26.77
ii) Gross Profit (PBIT) 9.91 5.71 7.24 7.60 22.77
iiiy Profit Before Tax (PBT) 9.80 5.67 7.19 7.54 22.70
4 OPERATING RATIO {(Net Sales-PBT)/Net Sales} 0.93 0.95 0.94 0.93 0.82
B LIQUIDITY RATIOS
1 Current Ratio 2.18 2.57 2.49 2.40 2.39
2 Quick Ratio 1.48 1.67 1.59 1.78 1.74
C TURNOVER RATIO
1 Capital Turnover Ratio 1.32 1.15 1.12 1.16 1.27
2 Trade Receivables {net) as no of months
i) Gross Sales 0.84 0.66 0.65 0.02 0.04
i) Net Sales 1.10 0.85 0.84 0.02 0.05
3 As Ratio of Net Sales
i} Trade Receivables 0.09 0.07 0.07 0.00 0.00
i) Coal Stock 0.09 0.10 0.09 0.07 0.06
4 Stock of Coal
i} As no of month's Value of Production 1.09 1.18 0.96 0.80 0.71
i) As no of month’s of cost of goods sold 1.18 1.27 1.12 0.83 0.88
iy As no of month’s Net Sales 1.10 1.20 1.05 0.87 0.72
D STRUCTURAL RATIOS
1 Long Term Dabt : Equity Share Capital - - 0.23 0.29 0.30
2 Long Term Debt : Net Worth - - 0.02 0.03 0.03
3 Net Worth : Equity Capital 11.99 11.71 11.48 11.16 10.89
4 Net Fixed Assets : Net Worth 0.48 0.46 0.46 0.46 0.45
E SHAREHOLDER’S INTEREST
1 Dividend per Share () 632.09 45200 655.00 610.45 1,087.98
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To
The Members/Shareholders,
Western Coalfields Limited.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the
42nd Annual Report of Western Coalfields
Limited and Audited Accounts for the year
ended 31st March, 2017 together with the
report of the Statutory Auditors and report and
review of the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India thereon.

PERFORMANCE

During the year 2016-17 WCL has achieved
coal production of 45.632 Million Tonnes
against the AAP target of 48.000 million tonnes
which is 2.368 Million tonnes less than the AAP
target and 0.817 million tonnes more than last
year's actual of 44.815 million tonnes.

Company has achieved the composite volume
of 195.544 Mill.Cu.M. against last years
184.022 Mill.Cu.M.indicating a growth of 6.30 %

Coal offtake during 2016-17 was 39.497 million
tonnes which is 8.503 million tonnes less than
AAP target of 48.000 million tonnes and 2.813
million tonnes less than last year's actual of
42.310 milliontonnes.

Overburden removal during the year 2016-17
was 166.142 millicn cubic meters against the
AAP target of 200.00 million cubic meters
which is 33.858 million cubic meters less than
the target and 10.996 million cubic meters more
than last year's actual of 155.146 million cubic
meters.

Shortfall in coal production during 2016-17 was
mainly due to following reasons:-

i) Curtailment of production at Ukni, Gouri
Deep, Urdhan, Naigoan & Bhatadi OC cost
plus mines on account of poor offtake,
dearth of consumers & accumulation of
high coal stock.

i)y Delay in commencement of HoE Contract
at Dinesh OC on account of cancellation of
tender and retendering & failure of
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contractor to commence awarded work at
Yekona OC.

i) Non commencement of HoE contract at
Singori OC for want of physical possession
of acquired land owing to resistance from
some of the land owners.

iv) Incessant and heavy rainfall of 873 mm in
July'2016 with rain on 29 days, 407 mm in
Sept'2016 on 25 days and continued
rainfall during Oct'2016.

v) Difficult operating conditions such as
presence of running sand, incompetent
overlying strata & excessive water
percolation causing failure of rise side OB
benches at Bhanegaon OC.

vi) Stoppage of lifting of Coal from Pithead
Underground Mines of Pathakhera Area
through belt and road modes by Sarni
Thermal Power Station up to Sep'16.

vii) Discontinuation of working sections/panels
on account of spontaneous heating
resultingin restricted working space in some
ofthe UG mines.

viii) Adverse geo-mining conditions such as
poor roof, high water percolation, soft floor,
geological disturbances such as
Dyke/faults affected coal production in UG
mines.

Details of Production of Coal & Washed Coal,
Productivity, Coal Sales and Off-take are as under:
Fig. in Mill. Tonnes

SL. 2016-17 o 201516 %

No.Parameters  Target Actual Achieve. Actual Growth

AAP ment over t:i:

Target Year

1 g%ulPruduction 40.800 40.264 99.2 37.635 7.0

] ﬁoGaIProduction 7.400 5368 725 7.180 -25.2

Il Total Coal 48.000 45632 95.1 44815 1.8
Production

IV Total Off-take  43.000 39.497 823 42310 6.6

V Despatches 47.990 39.492 823 42,306 -6.7

{Sales)

VI Washed Goal  .090 0.041 45.2 0.081 -49.8
Production

VIl Degpatchesto (098 0.041 42.8 0.081 -49.3
Steel Plants



Mechanised Underground Coal Production

Production from Mechanised Underground
mines during the year 2016-17 was 5.275
million tonnes, i.e. 98.3% of total UG
production.

Productivity & overall System Capacity
Utilisation

Productivity per man shift of the Company was
3.60 tonnes during the year 2016-17 which was
more than target of 3.10 tonnes and also more
than last year's actual of 3.34 tonnes. Overall
system capacity utilization of WCL during the
year2016-17 was 87.12%.

Coal Stock

Coal Stock at the end of fiscal 2016-17 was
14.142 million tonnes as compared to last
year's 8.007 million tonnes.

2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Company has incurred a loss of ¥ 1075.26
crores before tax during the year 2016-17 as
against profit before tax of ¥ 394.20 in the
previous year 2015-16. Total comprehensive
income for the current year is ¥ (764.47) crores,
as against ¥ 370.15 crores in the previous year.
The financial results for the year as compared
to previous year are given in the following table.

(I Crores)
Particulars 2016-17  2015-16
(A)Sales 10413.39 10349.54
(B)Other operating revenue 320.38 291.81
Revenue From Operations (A+B) 10,733.77 10,641.35
Less: Levies 3268.53 2405.10
Net revenue from operations 7465.24  8236.25

Less: Expenditure (net of other income) 8087.25  7393.75
Gross Margin (622.01) 842.50
Less: Depreciation/ and 368.22 371.61
amortization expenses

Gross profit (loss) (990.23) 470.89
Less: interest and other 85.03 76.69
financial charges

Profit/(loss) before tax (1075.26) 394.20
Less: Tax expenses (298.24) 96.50
Profit/(loss) after tax (777.02) 297.70
Less: Loss from discontinued operations 0.01 0.01
Add: other comprehensive income 12.56 72.46
(net of tax)

Total comprehensive income (764.47) 370.15

CHANGE IN OTHER EQUITY

(X Crores)
Particulars 2016-17 2015-16
Opening balance 3024.50 3580.70
Total comprehensive income (764.47) 370.15
Less: Dividend - 769.66
Dividend Tax - 156.69
Closing balance 2260.03 3024.50

DIVIDEND

Present financial position of the company does
not permit for declaration of dividend for the
year2016-17.

CAPITALSTRUCTURE
SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share Capital of your Company
is ¥ 800 crores comprising of 80 lakhs Equity
Shares of ¥1000/- each of which ¥ 297.10
crores is paid up Equity Share Capital (29.71
lakhs Equity Shares of ¥ 1000/- each) which
remained unchanged during the year.

BORROWINGS

The company has not taken any loan from
Government, CIL or any financial institution
during the year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year 2016-17, an amount of ¥ 1048.06
crores (excluding capital commitment of ¥
592.05 crores) was invested in Fixed Assets
and Capital Work-in-progress of existing and
upcoming Mines/Projects. The capital
expenditure for the previous yearwas ¥ 1163.47
crores.

ROYALTY, SALES TAX, ENTRY TAX, EXCISE
DUTY &OTHER DUTIES ON COAL

State wise Royaltyy, MMDR Royalty(Central),
Sales Tax, Entry Tax, Stowing Excise Duty,
Clean Energy Cess and Central Excise Duty
paid to Govt. during the year are as given in the
following table:
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{ T Crores)
Particulars 201617 201516
M.P MH TOTAL M.P M.H TOTAL

Royalty 121.88 754.37 B76.05 149.25 B42.70 991.95
National Mineral
Exploration T 285 1508 17.74 1.41 8.86 10.27
District Mineral 65.87 120.70 18557 - - =
Foundation
Sales Tax

- State 53.22 34371 39693 67.59 311.18 378.77

- Gentral 878 2895 3773 3.86 3237 3603
Entry Tax 10.55 10.55 10.05 10.05
Stowing Excise Duty 462 33.09 3771 567 3502 4159
Clean Emvironment Cass 19593 1378.39 1674.32 104.48 662.13 788.61
Central Excise Duty 2580 13578 16158 4641 277.58 323.99

Total 489.10 2818.06 3308.18 3068.52 2170.74 2559.26

3. COAL MARKETING

Raw Coal Offtake during the Fiscal 2016-17
was 39.497 Mill Te against the target of 48.000
Mill Te i.e. achievement of 82.28% of Target.
Offtake during the fiscal 2015-16 was 42.310
Mill Te. Offtake during the year was affected
mainly due to the reasons beyond the control of
WCL. The main reasons of shortfall are as
under :

@ Failure of Chandrapur STPS in lifting Coal
by Road from pithead Bhatadih Cost Plus
Mine resulted in accumulation of Coal
Stock to the tune of 10.77 Mill Te.

@ Less lifting by Sarni TPS by Belt and Road
from Pithead Pathakhera Area Mine.

@ Restriction imposed for Coal Supply by
Mahagenco, MPPGCL, GSECL, HPGCL,
UPRVUNL & NTPC, Mouda resultedin less
despatches against their Annual
Contracted Quantity (ACQ).

® Less lifting by Sai Wardha Power Limited
against its Annual Contracted Quantity
(ACQ)i.e 1.625 Mill Tes.

® Excessive rain affected despatch during
mansoon period.
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DESPATCHES
Modewise AAP target and despatches ( Sales)

by Rail , Road & Other mode for 2016-17 &
2015-16 arefurnished below
(Fig in Mill Te}
AP ACTUAL DESPATCHES TOTAL
OTHER DESPATCHES
YEAR TGT RAIL ROAD MGR Coe (SALES)
2016-17 48.000 27.040 9.813 0.354 2.284 39.492
2015-16 45.00027.276 11.92 0.254 2.897 42.347

DETAILS OF SECTORWISE TARGET &
DESPATCHES DURING 2016-17

Saectorwise AAP target and despatches (Sales)
by all modes for 2016-17 and 2015-16 are
furnished below :

(Fig in Mill Te)
% age
3 . 201617 201516 G Remark
— over
%.Pr ACT “age ACT 201617
Power 36.450 28.158 77.25 91.791 -11.43 High stock of
including linked PHs load
IPP (Raw to intermittent
Coal) ragtrictions
Coment & 1.500 143 9533 3.667 61,00 Despatches
CPP ware as per
booking.
Steel(Raw} 0.197 0 0 0.155400.00 nandan Washary
was not In opera-
tion during Agpril-
June, 2015 dua to
issues related to
Environmental
Clearance and
Steel {Raw Coal)
was dospalched
during the period.
Sponge 0400 0206 51.50 0.320 -37.39 goa Supplied
Iron ae per FSA
Cthers 9350 0664 103.26 6.36 51.85 |noludes FSA
and e-Auction
Total 47.990 239.492 82.29 42.306 -6.65
Despatch
(InternalRaw)
Colliery 0.010 0005 50.00 0.004 2500
Consumption

Total Offtake 48.000
(Raw Coal)
Middl &Slurry 0,084
(Despatch)

39.497 82.29 42.310 -6.65

0.034 4048 0.115 -70.43

During 2016-17 in "As is where is basis"
scheme there was no booking of coal by Govt.
Power Utilities against 0.097 MT of coal
booked/lifted during 2015-16 as power plants



were having high stock, units shutdown due to
low demand, units of Power Plants under
reserve shutdown due to restriction in Merit
Order Despatches.

Wagon Loading (in Boxes/Day)

The details of AAP target and loading on daily
average basis & quantity despatched for the
year 2016-17 as compared to 2015-16 is given
below:

Year AAPTGT/ ACT/DAY ACH  Rail Desp
DAY(Boxes) (Boxes) (%) (Million Tonnes)

2016-17 1304 1122 86.50 27.040

2015-16 1056 1130 107.00 27.276

WCL has despatched 27.040 MT coal through
rail mode as against the AAP target of 31.260
MT and against last year's actual of 27.276 MT.
Thus, WCL has achieved 86.50% of target with
growth of (-) 0.87 % over last year.

Sales realization

The Sales Realization during the financial year
2016-17 had been ¥10522.12 crs which was
0.79% more than the last year's realization of
310439.33 cr. The realization increased by
82.79 crs over the previous year

Spot e-Auction

Details of the total quantity of coal offered under
Spot e-Auction, the quantity allocated based on
bids made by the bidders and the additional
revenue generation on the basis of the quantity
allocated during the year 2016-17 & 2015-16
are as below:

Year Quantity offered  Quantity Additional Revenue
(in Lakh tonnes) Allocated Generated
(in LakhTonnes) (X in Crs)
2016-17 130.83 38.25 76.19
2015-16 97.49 39.38 221.99

Quantity allocated under Spot e-Auction held in
the Financial Year 2016-17 was less than the
Quantity allocated under Spot e-Auction in the
Financial Year 2015-16. There was a low
demand of coal by industries due to economic

slowdown/recession. The performance of Spot
e-Auction is market driven.

Forward e-Auction

Quarterly Forward e-Auctions were conducted
in the Year 2016-17. The quantity offered, the
allocated quantity to the customers and the
additional revenue generated over and above
the applicabe notified price is as under:

Year Quantity offered Quantity allocated Additional

(in lakh tonnes) (in lakh tonnes) Revenue
generated
(XinCrs.)
2016-17 8.87 0.77 0.06
2015-16 10.09 9.37 2.26
CONSUMER SATISFACTION

With a view to enhance consumer satisfaction,
measures were taken for maintaining the
quality of coal, 100% weighment on Electronic
Weighbridges and sampling and analysis by
third party.

Quality of Coal

i) Coal Sampling & Analysis was carried out
by the independent third party agencies
appointed by CIL from April 2016 to Mid
September 2016 and there onwards by
CSIR-CIMFR.

ii) A quantity of 28.09 Million tonnes of coal
out of total 28.16 Million tonnes,
dispatched to the power sector including
IPPs by all modes was covered under
agreed third party sampling.

iii) During the year 2016-17 Seven Area
Laboratories have been Accredited by
NABL in addition to already existing one
NABL Laboratory (CCTRL) at Nagpur.
WCL is the first subsidiary in CIL to have
Eight NABL-accredited laboratories.
NABL Accreditation for balance three
Area Laboratories is at final stage.

iv) Quality Month was observed during
December 2016 and Quality Quarter was
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observed from January 2017 to March o I p——— BSToTE
2017. No. Target Actual Target (asper Amual
. i i Action Plan) in MT
v) Total 27 Workshops were organized » . In M. In MT_ An Par)
during the year 2016-17 on quality 1 Existing/ Completed Projects 23.575 20.198 17.395
improvement measures at different Area Ongoing / future projects 24.425 25433  91.105
of WCL.
g TOTAL 48.000 45.631  48.500
Weighment of Coal

i) A quantity of 39.492 million tonnes, out of
total offtake of 39.497 million tonnes by all
modes was weighed on Electronic
weighbridges at loading points.

i) Seven new electronic weighbridges were
installed and commissioned during the year
2016-17.

ii} All the Rail and Road weighbridges in WCL
were duly verified, certified and stamped by
the statutory authority, i.e., the Legal &
Metrology Department.

Crushing/Sizing of Coal

i) Four mobile crushers have been installed
and commissioned & 100 % (-) 100 mm
size coal was dispatched to power sector
during the year2016-17.

Quality Complaints and Redressal

i) Complaint redressal mechanism is in place
to address the consumer complaints in a
time-bound manner. The details of the
complaints received and action taken are
uploaded on WCL's website.

i)y During 2016-17 total 129 complaints were
raised from power sector regarding receipt
of lumpy coal, extraneous material and
wet/sticky coal. All the complaints were
registered, investigated and remedial
measures were taken and necessary
feedback was communicated to the
complainant(s).

4. PLANNING

Groupwise production programme and
achievement during the year 2016-17 and
target forthe year2017-18 are as under :
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DRILLING & EXPLORATION

During the year 2016-17, total 81160.91 meters
of drilling was carried out by CMPDIL which
includes 72459.41 meters in CIL Blocks and
8701.50 meters in Non-CIL Blocks in WCL
command area.

GR/NGR submitted during 2016-17

During the year 2016-17, the following
Geological reports were prepared :

1) Mathra Deep,Wardha Valley Coalfield

i) Konda-Hardola, Wardha Valley Coalfield
i) Silewara Block, Kamptee Coalfield

iv) Sangam Block, Kamptee Coalfield
Resources

Reserves established in CIL Block during the
year are as below:

Proved 840.412 MT
Indicated 193.720 MT
Inferred NIL

Total 1034.132 MT

Mining Project Report Formulation

During 2016-17, Four Mining Project Reports
were formulated and details are as under:

SL. Name of PR Target Incremental
No. Capachty Capacity
(MT) (MT)

1 RPR for Inder UG 1.20 0.60
to OC

2 RPR for Durgapur 3.00 1.00
Extn Deep OC

3 RPRfor 1.00 1.00
Bhanegaon OC

4  APR for Gokul OC 1.50 0.00



PLANNING PREPAREDNESS

At present there are 40 ongoing projects with a
sanctioned capacity of 61.555 MTPA with a
total sanctioned capital of ¥8738.2740 Crores.
22 projects have contributed 24.0569 Million
Tonnes of coal production during the year
2016-17 and rest are under implementation.

WCL has planned to produce 60 MT as a part of
1 BT production programme of CIL by 2019-20.

APPROVAL OF PROJECTS/SCHEMES

Details of 12 projects approved by WCL/CIL
Board during the year 2016-17 are as under:

SL Name Date of Capacity Capital

No. Approval (MTY) (InCrs.)
1 Inder UG to OC 13.06.2016 1.20 143.9029
2 Jamunia UG 18.07.2016 0.84 4098748
3 oalBen(Dee) 57082016 350 404.4500
4 Dhankasa UG 19.09.2016 1.00 458.0660
5 Gouri Deep OCP 25.10.2016 0.40 164.9655
6 Scheme of Tawa Il 25.11.2016 086  68.7479
7 Saoner UG to OC 23.11.2016 1.30 162.1037

Ghandhigram UG*  21.12.2016 1.26 671.8309
(DE;’;gz')"‘c‘)'CExm 02.022017 3.00 378.8711

10. E';’;dg%a" Lalpeth 60022017 1.00  83.1987

11. Bhanegaon OCP 02.02.2017 1.00 428.3961
12 Kolar pimpri Extn OC  09.03.2017 1.50 402.9098

Total 16.86 3777.317

* Recast Project report of Ghandhigram UG
recommended to CIL Board for approval.

Commissioning of Project

List of New/Replacement Projects opened
during the year2016-17

- Sanctioned
Sanctioned Sanctioned -

" Project Capacity Capital .
No. (MTY)  inCrs) Opening
1 Singori OC 0.85 205.4914 May 2016

2 New Sethia OCP  0.20 02.2193 May 2016

Sanctioned Sanctioned

i Capacity Capital
B (MTY) R in Crs)
3 InderUGtoOC  1.20 143.9029 June 2016

4 Niliai Expn(Deep) 350

Date of

Project Opening

404.4500 Aug 2016

Total 575  756.0636

Implementation of MOSPI Monitored
Projects

14 projects of WCL were monitored on OCMS
Portal of MOSPI and all these projects are on
schedule without any time as well as cost
overrun. All the major milestones envisaged for
2016-17 were achieved.

5. ACQUISITION OF LAND

Coal Bearing Areas (Acquisition &
Development) Act, 1957 is the main stay for
acquiring land by the Central Government and
thereafter vesting with WCL for coal mining
activities. After execution of agreements U/s.
14(1) of CBA Act, with land owners, the amount
of compensation is assessed as per the
provision of the Act or as per rates declared and
invoked by State Government. Compensation
amount is disbursed after obtaining the
sanction from Ministry of Coal, Government of
India and all benefits under R&R Policy of CIL
are extended.

Land is also acquired under Land Acquisition
Act, 1894 through State Government and all
benefits under the R&R Policy of CIL are
extended. The provisions of Land Revenue
Code of Madhya Pradesh and Maharashtra
have also been referred for acquiring land in
cases where mining lease was obtained under
Mineral Concession Rules. At times, land is
also acquired through Direct Purchase to meet
the critical requirement.

Since Nationalization total 31,850.551 Ha. of
land was acquired through various modes and
24,150.610 Ha. land was under physical
possession which includes acquisition of
25.503 Ha. land & physical possession of
1628.387 Ha.land taken during2016-17.
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Details of land acquisition & physical
possession through various modes :

As on 31 “March 2017
{Since Natlonallzation)

SL Mode of

No. Acquisition LAl

Acquired Possessed Acquired Possessed

1 Coal Bearing Areas
(Acquisition & .
Davelopment) Act,
1957

2 Land Acquisition
Act, 16894

3 Land Revenue
Code of Madhya
Pradesh and
Maharashtra undar
Mineral Concession
Rules

4 Dirsct Purchase

5 Executive Orders &
Forest
Conservation Act

Total

* 854.54 Ha. land was notified U/s. 11(1) of
CBA Act during the year2016-17

ForestLand

1557.480 23105.688 15504.331

40560 4184642 4127.312

4844 1594329 1585.149

25503 25503 2114.560 2117.500

851.322 816322

25503 1628387 31850.551 24150.610

Forest land is diverted from the State
Government as per the provisions of Forest
Conservation Act, 1980 after approval from
MoEF&CC, New Delhi.

During the year, NOC under FRA — 2006 was
obtained in respect of two projects Viz.
Hindustan Lalpeth Opencast Mine (36.98 Ha.),
Hindustan Lalpeth UG Mine (216.25 Ha)

Forestry clearance proposals in respect of
Hindustan Lalpeth Opencast Mine (36.98 Ha.)
has been recommended and forwarded by
State Government of Maharashtra to
MoEF&CC, New Delhi for stage-| approval.

Forestry clearance proposals in respect of two
projects namely Chattarpur-I Expansion
Underground (39.817 Ha.) and Tawa-ll
Underground (201.08 Ha.) were recommended
and forwarded by the State Government of
Madhya Pradesh to MoEF for approval of
Stage.
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Rehabilitation and Resettlement

Total 108 Project Affected Families were
resettled in 2016-17 by providing free plot at
alternate site on the option given by the land
oustees, within the provision of R&R Policy of
CIL.

Approval for R&R benefits against tenancy
land during 2016-17:

Year Employment approved Name-wise Monelary
by Competent Compensation In lleu
Authority. of employment approved
2016-17 1566 293

Constraints in acquisition of land

i) State Government officials show their
inability for providing Government land for
resettlement of Project Affected Families
(PAFs). ldentification of land for
resettlement in consultation with PAFs
causes delay in finalization of resettlement
site.

i) Considering the high aspirations of
villagers & strict conditions of attendance in
Gram Sabha etc. it is becoming difficult to
obtain NOC under FRA-2006 for Forest
Land diversion proposals in time.

To overcome the above constraints regular
meetings were held with Chief Secretary, Govt.
of Maharashtra and Chief Secretary, Govt. of
Madhya Pradesh for expediting disposal of
forestry clearance proposals. Monthly review
meetings were also held with concerned
DFQOs/CCFs and APCCF/Nodal Officers.
Frequent meetings with District Authorities
were organized to resolve the issue of issuing
NOC under FRA-2006.

Issues related to forestry clearance and
acquisition of land are regularly uploaded on
Coal Project Monitoring Portal (CPMP) and
CABSEC Portal for close monitoring and
monthly review.



6. POPULATION & PERFORMANCE OF
EQUIPMENT
Population of Equipment

" Population As on 31st March
SL.No Equipment

2017 2016

1 Dragline 2 2
2 E.R.Shovel 19 29
3 Hyd.Excavator 91 89
4 Dumper 466 443
5 Dozer 142 144
6 Drill 98 95
TOTAL 818 802

Availability of HEMMs

i) Draglines, Dumpers and Drills have
achieved CMPDIL-Norms for availability.

ii) Availability of Draglines, Shovels, Dozers
and Drills was more than last year.

iii) Company was ranked First in Draglines,
Second in Dozers and Third in Shovels
amongst all subsidiaries of CIL.

Utilization of HEMMs

i) Utilization of Shovels, Dumpers, Dozers and
Drills was more than CIL average.

i) The Utilisation of 20/90 Dragline of Sasti
OCM is 75.4%, where as that of 24/96
Dragline of Ghughus OCM was nil resulting
in net Utilization of 37.7%. Dragline of
Ghughus OCM was shifted to Mungoli
OCM, marching about 6.5 KM and crossing
400 meters of Wardha River bed
subsequentto exhaustion of reserves.

iii) CMPDIL Norms for Utilization of HEMMs
could not be achieved due to ageing of
equipment, as 30.9% of total fleet of
equipment qualified for survey-off as on
25.03.2017, excessive rainfall and closure
of three opencast mines during the year.

Specific Diesel Consumption

During 2016-17, specific diesel consumption
was 1.08 Litres/CuM against last year's 1.05
Litres CuM due to increase in lead/lift and
replacement of electric EKG rope shovel with
hydraulic excavators.

Special Achievements

I) Company was second in Shovel, Dozer &
Drill in Utilization amongst all subsidiaries of
CIL.

ii) 62 new equipments were purchased
against surveyed off during the year, which
includes 60T Dumpers, Hydraulic
Excavators, Dozers, Drills, Cranes and Tyre
Handlers.

iii) During FY 2016-17 CWS, Tadali had
achieved 113% against Target in repair jobs
of Machine, Heat Treatment and Structural
shops while 105% achievement against
target registered in Engine, Transmission,
Heavy Repair, Electrical Repair and Sub
assemblies repair.

7. AVAILABILITY OF POWER AND
CONSUMPTION

2016-17 2015-16  Variation
Average Contract 147.038 143.032 (+) 4.006
Demand in MVA
Average Availed 121.490 121.391 (+) 0.099

Demand in MVA

Positive variation in contract demand during FY
2016-17 was on account of addition of load at
Bhanegaon OC, Gokul OC, Patansaongi UG,
Bharat OC patch, Barkuhi OC & Hirdagarh
CHP.

Electric Power Consumption

%

Purchased 2016-17 2015-16

Variation
Units in Million 563.298 588.053 -4.21%
kWh
Rate/unit in 7.7 7 -1.39°
sty 78 .89 .39%

(a) Power consumption during FY 2016-17 was
reduced over previous year by 4.21% i.e.
24.755 Million kWh due to implementation
of various energy conservation measures
and reduction in industrial power
requirement due to following reasons:

i) Grounding of 6nos. of electric shovels
and 1nos. Electrical drill.
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i) Reduction in power consumption at UG
mines due to closure of Thesgora &
Pipla Mine and conversion of NMUG to
open cast mine.

iy Discontinuance of operation of
continuous miner.

(b) During FY 2016-17 Specific power
consumption has reduced by 10% over
previous year i.e. from 3.20 kWh/cum to
2.88 kWh/cum on account of increase in
composite production and reduction in
power consumption over previous year.

8. SAFETY

During the financial year 2016-17, there had
been a reduction of three fatalities and two
serious injuries vis a vis 2015-16.

Skilled human resource are the biggest asset
for our company, hence their safety is of
paramount importance to us. Thrust is being
given in our company to increase safety
awareness at the grass-root level in order to
prevent repetitive nature of accidents and
accidents due to negligence and casual
attitude. Participative safety management
through forums like Safety Committees at unit
level, Tripartite Safety Committees at
Area/Company level is in vogue with active
participation of DGMS officials. = Constant
safety awareness campaign was one of the
thrust area during 2016-17 as percolation of
safety awareness upto the grass-root level is
extremely important to prevent repetitive nature
of accidents. Special safety drives were
conducted periodically throughout the year.

Steps Taken during 2016-17 to improve
safety and reduce accidents

1) Safety Management Plans (SMPs) were
implemented in all the mines, were
reviewed & updated from time to time. ISO
team from CIL also reviews the same during
theirinspections.

2) Special Safety Drives were conducted
during the year to inculcate safe practices
and awareness among the workforce, the
details are as under :
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i) Safety drive on Safe Operating
Procedure/Code of Safe Practices
conducted during April-May 2016.

i) Safety drive on green roof and side
support, SDL/LHD operations and
haulage/conveyor in underground
mines conducted from 16.05.2016 to
28.05.2016.

iii) Safety drive on contractor workers was
conducted from the last week of June
2016 to the second week of July 2016.

iv) Safety drive was conducted in all mines
by officials of ISO, with special impetus
on taking Safety Oath by all workmen in
the beginning of each shift.

v) Safety drive on 'Ventilation', 'Dust
Suppression' and 'Storage,
Transportation & Use of explosives in
underground mines' was conducted
from 29th August 2016 to 17th
September2016.

vi) Safety drive on 'Contractor workmen
and their operations in OC mines' was
conducted from 13th October 2016 to
22nd October2016.

vii) Annual safety Fortnight was observed
from 10th November 2016 to 22nd
November2016.

Safe Operating Procedures (SOPs) were
implemented in all mines for all mining
operations and the same are
reviewed/modified from time to time.

‘On the spot' safety talks are given to the
grass root level workmen and their safety
awareness is assessed by ISO nodal
officers.

Safety audit of all producing mines were
conducted by inter-subsidiary teams &
recommended corrective actions thereof
are implemented.

A fire cell has been established at WCL Hq.
High powered teams inspected all the fiery
mines & remedial measures recommended
for prevention of fire were implemented.



7) Emergency Response System in all
underground mines was tested through
mock rehearsals periodically.

8) TAKE-5 process as mentioned below has
been implemented in all the mines of WCL
as perguidelines.

- Stop, step back and observe.
- Think through the task

- ldentify the hazards

- Control the hazards

- Complete the task

9) Front line supervisors were imparted 1
week duration special training for improving
their knowledge, skill and safety
awareness.

10) Simulator training was provided to 111
HEMM operators during 2016-17.

11) Based on Rock Mass Rating (RMR) of
immediate roof and nature of coal seam,
support plans are prepared and
implemented for proper strata
management in UG mines.

Statistics of Fatal and Serious Accidenis

. FY FY %
Farieuia 2016-17 2015-16 Variation

No. of fatal accidents 5 8 -37.50%
Fatalities 5 8 -37.50%
Fatality rate per million L >
tonne production 0.1 0.18 38.88%
Fatality rate per 3 lakh )
manshift 0.12 0.19 36.84%
No. of serious accidents 17 16 6.25%
Serious Injuries 17 19 -10.52%
Serious Injury rate per 0.38 0.42 9.52%

million tonne production
Serious Injury rate per 3 0.41 0.44

lakh manshift -6.82%
Injury frequency (10 F + S) 67 99 -32.32%
Injury Frequency rate per )

million tonne production 147 22 33.48%
Injury Frequency rate per 3 149 2.6 P

lakh manshift

TechnicalTasks

i) Vetting of operational plans of all mines by
ISO.

i) RMR study for development districts for
support design.

i) Enquiry and analysis of fatal, serious
accidents and major dangerous
occurrences/incidents.

Special Achievements

i) Procurementof 12000 LED cap lamps.

ii) Chair-lift type man-riding system was
installed at Nehariya UG mine during
February 2017. Further, work order has

been placed for installation of 4 Man-riding
systems.

iii) Rock Mass Rating (RMR) of 23 districts
were determined in in-house Rock
Mechanics Laboratory.

iv) For the first time, Safety Audit of all
producing mines of WCL had been
conducted by inter-subsidiary multi-
disciplinary teams.

v) External recruitment of 377 Mining Sirdars
and 52 Surveyors (mining).

vi) All the mines of WCL have uploaded safety
information, data, reports, etc. on Online
Safety Portal of CIL.

9. RESCUE
Prompt Service in Emergency & Reopening

Five re-opening operations were carried out
under rescue cover during 2016-17, details are
asunder:

SL.No  pate Colliery/Area Reasons
1 13.03.16 Mathani/Pench Reopening 18LS
section of V-A Seam —
2" Phase
2 10.07.16 Vishnupuri-2/ Re-opening 3D/9L in |-C
Pench seam and restoring
ventilation circuit by
rescue team.
3 06.11.16 Mathani/Pench Reopening SW-3
section of |(B+C)Seam
4 25.12.16 Ghorawari/ Reopening Main dip
Kanhan Area
5 19.02.17 Mathani/Pench Reopening —21L/16D

South-1(B+C) seam
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Calibration of Gas Detectors In-House and
Cost Savings

The initiative taken to acquire in-house
expertise for maintenance and calibration of
gas detectors of different make has led to
increased reliability, availability and efficiency
of the gas detectors in mines besides
considerable saving in cost i.e. about T 46.17
Lakhs during the year 2016 -17.

Revenue Generation from Rescue training

Mines Rescue Station, Nagpur imparted
Rescue training to employees of M/S. Sunflag
Iron & Steel Company, M/S Sial Gogri Coal
Mine (Reliance) and MOIL Ltd. which
generated revenue to the tune of ¥17.48 Lakhs
during 2016-17.

Competition/Drives in Rescue Services

Inter Rescue Room Competition-2016 was
held in the months of February/ March 2017.

The winners in the competition were as follows:
First Prizein RRRT group : RRRT, Parasia
First Prize in RR group : RR,Damua

Zonal / Inter Area Rescue Competition was
held at MRS, Nagpur on 7th November 2016.
The winners in the competition were as under -

Overall First Prize
Overall Second

Maijri—Ballarpur Team
Kanhan

AreaTeam

Overall Third

All India Mines Rescue Competition (Coal &
Metal) was held at Mines Rescue Station,
Nagpur, from 14th December to 17th
December 2016. A total of 18 teams from coal
companies and 5 teams from metal mining
companies participated in the competition.
Seven teams also participated in events
organized as per International Rescue
Competition Rules.

Pench—ATeam

In this competition WCL Team bagged the
following prizes :
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Overall First : WCL-ATeam
Overall Third : WCL-BTeam
Second Best Captain : Shri Sheikh Muzahid
Azam,WCL ATeam
Best Member : ShriRahul, WCLATeam
Second Best : Shri Tej Bahadur
Member Yadav, WCL ATeam
Best 7th Member : ShriNaveen,
WCLATeam
WinnerinTheoryTest: WCLATeam
Winnerin Recovery : WCLBTeam
Drill
Runnerin Rescue WCL ATeam
Drill
Winnerin'International : WCL/SECL
mode' combined team
(First time for WCL)
competition
Gas Chromatograph

Portable Gas Chromatograph at Mines Rescue
Station, Nagpur is functioning for prompt and
precise mine gas analysis.

10. TELECOMMUNICATION
VOICE & DATA Communication

CUG mobile Scheme covering Executives &
important staff is functioning for seamless
communication in the Company.

Efficient Data communication system is in place
based on MPLS VPN network with 4 Mbps
bandwidth connecting all Area HQs, Area
Stores, Central Stores and Central Work Shop
with Company HQ, enabling Centralised Server
& other online data applications.

Video Conferencing System is in operation to
facilitate various meetings & regular
interactions between Company HQ and Areas.



Major initiatives during 2016-17

I) Establishment of Wi-Fi System for
facilitating easy access to internet at
Company HQ & Area HQ.

ii) Installation of GPS / GPRS based vehicle
tracking system in all coal carrying tippers.

iii) Installation of RFID based Boom barrier
access control system at all the Check
posts.

iv) Installation of Centralised CCTV
surveillance system at all the Road
weighbridges & Check posts

v) Integration of Road Weighbriges, Check
Posts & unit Stores with Company/Area
HQs by IP Radio network.

11. ITINITIATIVES FY 2016-17

SL. Particulars of Status
No. Activities
1 Biometlric Attendance Installation & regisiration of
at all Units employees completed. Salary
preparation based on biometric
attendance commenced

Company HQ & Area HQ. Same
shall be extended in all
mines/units from April 2017.

2 Deployment of Central Database Server installed.

Central database Migration of Applications

server deployment of CoalNet
Application completed. Finance,
Sales, Stores, Payroll, PIS

modules are in operation. Planned
for preparation of payroll for all
WCL Units from Central Server
during FY 2017-18.

Implemented and in use by retired
executives. Data is maintained in

executives the central database.
4 Official e-mail Id Provided to all executives.

5 Web based Human Use of CoalNet PIS Module
Capital Management introduced for capturing Human
Capital Management data.
Implementation of milestones of
Vision 2020 are monitored online.

3 Web based Gold
Card for Retired

6 Vision 2020

7 Web based File
Tracking System
8 e-PaySlips & SMS

Implemented in company

e-Pay Slips through e-mail & SMS

Alerts Alerts provided to all executives.
9 Optical Fibre Installed and in operation at WCL
Network Har
10 Launching of Mobile Four Apps developed in-house &
Apps launched -

1) Rate Calculator for
e-auction customers

SL. Particulars of
No. Activities

Status

2) Vendor Bill Status
3) Mission Sampark
4) Mine Water Utilization
WCL developed in-house portal
for all subsidiaries of CIL
12 Portal Based on-line Developed and implemented
Medical Referral
Systems

13 e-awaas Portal

11 CIL Asset Portal

Developed for online application
for allotment of quarters.

All preparatory works
completed. Implementation
planned in 2017-18.

12. INVENTORY MANAGEMENT

Role played by WCL in development and
sustaining Small scale Industrial units

14 e-Office

Company is making all efforts in development of
Small Scale Industrial Units in Vidharbha
Region & implemented MSE policy
promulgated on 23rd March, 2012 by Ministry of
MSME.

Company has showcased important Stores and
Spares required, in various National Level &
State Level Vendor Development Programs
arranged by MSME Development Institute,
Nagpur. Ancillary status was awarded to 10 new
Small Scale Industries & status of 23 old
ancillary units was revived during 2016-17
under Ancillary Development Programme, for
the industries situated in the periphery of WCL.

Management of Inventories

WCL has maintained good position amongst
CIL Subsidiaries in respect of Inventory
Management. All the functional activities are
carried out through Online Materials
Management system.

Comparative position of net inventory vis-a-vis
annual consumption of Stores and Spares in
respect of last two years is as under :

(X Crores)
SL. Finan- Net Annual Inventory in %
No. cialYear Inven- Consump- terms of change
tory tion months in
consumption inventory
1 201516 71.48 1056.70 0.81 ()2.46
2 201617 71.36 1137.43 0.75 ()0.17
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E-Procurement

During the FY 2016-17 all cases of material
procurement with threshold limit of more than
¥2.00 Lakh in each case were finalized through
e-tendering mode. WCL has also introduced
the E-reverse auction for tender value more
than ¥ 1.00 Crore as per CIL guidelines. Total
value of e-tenders finalized during 2016-17 was
7651.56 Crores.

Model Depot Agreement

Being the lead company nominated by Coal
India Limited, WCL has finalized the Model
Depot Agreement with M/s. Bharat Power
Corporation Limited for supply of transmission
spares.

Operation of Government e-Marketing
(GeM) Portal

WCL has successfully implemented the GeM
portal operation in the month of March 2017 by
placing orders as per the guidelines circulated
by Coal India Limited.

Scrap & Disposal

With change in policy guidelines, WCL
achieved remarkable sale of scrap during
2016-17. The details are as under:

Sales value of -
scrap materlal [P Rk mrfla:;
Finalised 7488 Crs ¥16.80Crs 244.26
Realised ¥1.83Crs ¥12.65Crs 591.25
13. HUMAN RESOQURCE
Status of Manpower
SL. Category Manpower as on
No. 31.03.2016 31.03.2017
1 Executive 2599 2541
2 Supervisor 5315 5475
3 Clerical 2434 2552
4  Highly Skilled/Skilled 23539 20404
5 Semiskilled/ Unskilled 13931 15410
6 Company's Trainee 1244 1250
TOTAL 49062 47632
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Details of SC, ST and OBC employees

Total sC ST OBC

47632 9840 3308 13543

The Presidential directives for SC/ST and
OBCs are implemented in respect of
recruitment as well as in promotion.

Human Resource Development

During the financial year 2016-17, WCL
achieved a total of 2,02,588 Training Mandays
against target of 2,02,748 and Total 25,662
persons were trained against target of 21,854
through Internal and External training for
employees. Expenditure incurred towards
trainingwas ¥19.71 Crores.

In Gompany Out Company Tralning
Tralning Mandays Mandays Total
VTCs & liCM Institutions/ Ferelgn
Insittutes Seminars Tralning

Per- Man- Pers- Man- Per- Man Per- Man- pgr. Man
sons days ons days sons days sons days gons days

24585 197764 475 3075 592 1613 10 136 25862 202588

In-Company Training

In-Company training plays a vital role in
improving knowledge, skill and attitude leading
to overall development of Human Resources.
Five Institutes viz. Management Development
Institute (MDI), Nagpur, Supervisory Training
Institute (STI), Chhindwara, Workers Training
Institute (WTI), Wardha and HEMM Training
Institute (HEMMTI), Durgapur, Skill
Development Centre, Indora Nagpur and 12
Vocational Training Centres impart functional,
cross-functional and other training courses for
the executives, supervisors and workers. In
addition, executives are also imparted
specialized contextual training at Indian
Institute of Coal Management, Ranchi.

A) 283235 training mandays of employees in
above 5 |Institutes and 12 Vocational
Training Centres were achieved during
2016-17, the details are as under:



Execu- Super- Training
tives visors UL | el Mandays
M, 1726 40 807 2938 7468
NAGPUR e
WTI,
WARDHA 0 195 314 509 17495
ST, 1 500 754 1345 8432
CHHINDWARA
HEMM TI,
DURGAPUR 50 134 1227 1411 5874
AREA BASED
TRAINING 207 519 7329 8055 19197
INITIAL
TRAINING 1447 1447 52964
REFRESHER
TRAINING 7569 7569 82613
SPECIAL
TRAINING 1311 1211 3721
TOTAL 1984 1843 20758 24585 197764

B) 475 Executives were trained AT IICM,
Ranchi, comprising 3075 Mandays during
theyear2016-17.

Out-Company Training

Out-Company training was provided to the
employees to expose them to the Global and
Sectoral industrial environment through
participation in various seminars,
Conferences, institution based training in the
educational institutes and Original Equipment
Manufacturers facilities.

a) Within Country

During FY 2016-17, the employees have
been nominated to attend  training
programmes organised by  various
Educational Institutes such as Indian
School of Mines University (ISMU),
Dhanbad, Indian Institutes of
Technology(lIT), National Institutes of
Technology (NIT), IIT BHU and various
organisations such as Indian Institute of
Industrial  Engineering (IlIE) Mumbai,
Institute of Public Enterprise, Hyderabad,
Administrative Staff College of India,
Hyderabad, Indian Institute of Materials
Management (IIMM), National Productivity
Council (NPC), MGMI, National Institute of
Personnel Management (NIPM), Gandhi

Labour Foundation Puri etc and also
Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEM)
such as BEML, L&T etc., in order to improve
the efficiency and productivity of
executives, supervisors and workers by
sharpening their managerial, technical and
functional skills.

The breakup of executives, supervisors and
workers sent for Out-company training is
given below :

Execu- Super- Workers Total Training

tives Visors Mandays
Out-Company
Training 350 78 164 592 1613
(including GLF,

Puri)

b) ForeignTraining

Apart from various types of Out-company
training in India, employees were also sent
abroad for different types of study tours,
trainings, development courses,
international Exhibitions/Expo etc.during
theyear2016-17.

Safety Training

Under VT Rules, various trainings such as
Initial, Refresher and Special trainings are
imparted to the workers working in mines
through 12 VTCs located in different Areas of
Company.  Additionally, the Contractors'
workers, who play an important role in current
scenario, are also imparted Initial and
Refresher training through VTCs of company.
As per recommendation of 8th / 9th Safety
Conference, the supervisors are provided
Safety training inthe respective Institutes.

The break-up of various types of safety
training imparted during 2016-17 is tabulated
below :

TYPE OF TRAINING Employees
1. INITIAL TRAINING 1447
2. REFRESHER TRG 7569
3. SPECIAL TRG 1311
4. AREA BASED TRAINING 8055
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TYPE OF TRAINING Employees

5. CONTRACTORS' WORKERS TRAINING

a) Initial training 4888

b) Refresher fraining 334

c) Area based training 697
6. TRAINING FOR SUPERVISORS

(as per 8th / 9th Safety Conf.)

a) Mining 317

b) E&M 187

c) Excv 10

Training of SC/ST/OBCS

Training for upliftment of SC/ST/OBCs has
been animportant thrust area forthe company.

SC / ST / OBC Training (In-company & Out-
company)

SC - 4303
ST - 2526
OBC - 7337
Total - 14166

SPECIAL ACHIEVEMENT
Skill Development Activities 2016-17
a) Pragati, a CSR Initiative

6515 persons among PAP and Eligible
Unemployed youth in the vicinity of mining
fields were provided with different Skill
Development programme through reputed
training providers i.e. NSDC, MSME,
CIPET, MITCON etc.The details are as under:

GENDERWISE CATEGORY GROUP

MALE FEMALETRANS SC ST OBC PAP RURAL
YOUTH

6514

ACIEVE -
MENT
(2016-17)

8515

b} 3691 Persons who received skill
development training were offered
employment by various industries -

5068 1446 0 1032825 2457 1

Placement 2016-17 Total
Different Plastic Industries 83
Health Sector, Chhindwara, 28
Self Employment , Chhindwara 10
Different Mining Contractors 3530
G 4S Security Solutions India Pvt.Ltd 40

Total 3691
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¢) Skill Development through NSDC during
2016-17:

Asapart ofimplementation of Skill Plan for
Coal Sector under the CIL-NSDC-NSDF
Project, Skill Development Programmes
were organised at WCL. 280 employees,
newly inducted Security Guard (Trainee)
and 40 Eligible unemployed youth in the
vicinity of Coalfields were provided Skill
Development training in the trade of
“Unarmed Security Guard”. Multinational
Organisation G 4S Security Solutions India
Pvi. Lid., has selected and provided
employmentto allthose 40 RuralYouth.

d) NSDC certification through RPL
(Recognition of Prior Learning) :

Total 2768 employees of WCL have
participated under NSDC certification
course through RPL

WORKERS' PARTICIPATION IN
MANAGEMENT

Steering committee comprising of all
Functional Directors, Trade Union
representatives of five central trade unions
(INTUC, BMS, AITUC, HMS, CITU) and
representatives of CMOAI, under the
chairmanship of CMD, is functioning at
Company Level.

Broad functional areas of the Steering
Committee are :

e Formulation and evaluation of Action

plans/budgets;
o Resources utilization
o Cost/profitability
e Quality of coal
o Safety
¢ Employees'welfare and
e Environmental protection

Meetings of the Steering Committee are held
periodically, helps in inducing cordial industrial
relations & achieving organizational goal.



Employment to dependent

Employment/monetary compensation
sanctioned under the provision of NCWA :

2015-16 2016-17
Employment 363 390
Monetary Compensation 32 28
SFVRS 513 30

Employment offered to Land Oustees

under RR Policy

2015-16 2016-17

1005 1566

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Industrial Relations scenario in WCL during the
fiscal 2016-17 had been peaceful, cordial and
harmonious. Total 132 structured meetings
were held during the year with the employees'
representatives of Central Trade Unions at Area
& Company Head Quarter.

Status of Industrial Relations situation for the
lasttwo years is as under:

Law & order incidents 2015-16 2016-17
Relay Hunger Strike Nil Nil
Gherao Nil Nil
Assault Nil Nil
Dharna/Morcha/Demonstration 1 Nil
Total 1 Nil
Strike/Work Stoppage
No. of strikes 1 1#
Mandays lost 19974 16004
Production loss (Tonnes) 68690 24550

# A Nationwide General Strike called by various
Central Trade Unions of India, except BMS on
2nd Sept, 2016 on National levelissues.

Recruitment

2015-16 2016-17
Mining Sirdar 424 377
Surveyor Mining 27 52

Promotions

3423 non-executives were promoted during
the year 2016-17 as part of career growth of
employees.

Grievance Redressal

In order to redress the grievances of employees
and other stakeholders, a well defined system
is in place. To ensure prompt disposal
off/redressal of grievances a grievance
redressal cell (GRC) is functioning at company
HQ and all Areas. The grievances posted at
CPGRAMS Portal or received offline are
promptly dealt by the GRC.

During 2016-17, out of 427  grievances
received, 390 grievances (91.33 %) were
redressed/ disposed off.

WELFARE MEASURES AND AMENITIES
Group Gratuity Scheme

WCL adopted LIC's Group Gratuity Scheme as
a part of its sound financial management
system for providing gratuity liability every year
and claiming the tax benefit. Unique feature of
the scheme is to ensure notional gratuity in the
event of premature death.

The Group Gratuity Scheme is in vogue with
effect from 10th March,2003. The actuarial
liability as on 31/03/2017 is ¥2175.68 crores
and there is no unpaid liability payable to Life
Insurance Corporation of India. The trust has
earned an interest amounting to ¥176.03 crores
@ 8.78% under existing scheme for old
members and %1.34 crores @ 8.21% under
revised scheme as per IRDA for new members
intheyear2016-17.

Payment of Gratuity

An amount of ¥ 279.76 Crs was paid to 2965
superannuated / separated employees and an
amount of ¥ 6.49 Crs Life cover in addition to
¥ 26.65 Crs Gratuity was paid to the nominees
of 362 deceased employees during the
financial year2016-17.
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WELFARE AMENITIES

Following are the details of various amenities
for the welfare of our employee:

SL. Details e
No. 31.07.2017
1 Houses - Standard - 42527 52613
Non Standard - 10086
2 Water Supply {Population covered) 3,23,855
3  Schools (receiving recurring, non 15
recurring grants or infrastructural
facilities)
4  Co-operative Stores 24
5 Co-operative Societies 45
6  Bank Branches/ Extension Counters 113
7  Ambulances 102
8 Dispensaries 49
9  Hospitals 1
10  Canteens 79
1 Gymnasiums 27
12 Stadium 13
GAMES & SPORTS

Inter Company tournaments of CIL, held during
the year 2016-17, WCL had secured 1st
position in Carrom, Body Building, Weight &
Power Lifting and Kabaddi and 2nd position in
Table Tennis, Badminton, Hockey & Volleyball.

Family Welfare

Total 2417 (TT+VT) no of family planning
operations were performed during the year
2016-17. Total 37 no of camps were conducted
for this purpose in collaboration with state
health authorities.

PENSION

WCL is torch bearerin CIL for implementing the
provision of CMPS-1998. All pension claims
received during the year 2016-17 were
sefteled.

Upto 31st March, 2017 (Since inception of the
scheme) total 64,027 Claims were received,
out of which 63,999 claims were setteled by
CMPF Office, Nagpur and Chhindwara Region.
Balance 28 claims were under process.
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Data base of Pension/ PF claims is maintained
for future reference.

Mission Biswas

The status of settelment of PF/ Pension claims
under “Mission Biswas” during the year2016-17
isas under:’

No. of Claims

No. of Employees . Balance
Superannuated gﬁ%@'m::
2790 2785 5

Pension Help Line

Pension help line is in operation for resolving
the problem being faced by the Pensioners and
dedicated efforts are being made to sort out the
issue, if any. During 2016-17, total 393
calls/grievances were received, out of which
389 cases were cleared and feed back about
the action taken was given. CMPF Office
Nagpur/Chhindwara and concerned
Nationalised Banks were persuded for
expeditious disposal of Pensioner's grievances.

Submission of VV Statement for the year 2015 - 16
and 2016-17

Annual “VV Statements” for the currency period
ending 31.03.2016 were submitted by all the
Units/Areas of WCL to Regional Office
Nagpur/Chhindwara well within the prescribed
time. Annual “VV" statement of currency period
ending 31.03.2017 will be submitted by all units
under Nagpur and Chhindwara CMPF Region
within prescribed time.

PROGRESSIVE USE OF HINDI

While promoting use of Hindi in official working,
the company had followed the provisions of
Official Language Policy of Government of
India.

Activities undertaken during 2016-17 for
popularizing Hindi are as under:

i) In order to familiarize with the provisions of
Official Language Act, Rules and
Rajbhasha Targets, 7 Hindi Workshops
were organized at HQ and Area offices,
where 179 employees participated.



i)

ii)

vi)

Meetings of Official Language
Implementation Committee were held on
11 occasions at HQ and Area offices to
review the progress and steps taken to
achieve Rajbhasha targets. The
Committee also inspected seven
Operating Areas to review compliance of
Official Language Act and Rules.

In order to popularize the use of Hindi
words substituting English Words in day to
day official works, “smst © 9&g’ were

displayed near entrance of the
Headquarters and at Area offices.

During the financial year, 3 issues of
bilingual In-house magazine “Pragati” and
20 issues of Hindi fortnightly 'Wall Poster'
were published highlighting the activities
and performance of the Company.

‘Bodl fear’ was celebrated on 14th
Sept.2016 which was followed by ‘gt
wxmarsT’ during 15th to 29th September,

2016. On this occasion various events of
competition such as Extempore speech,
Hindi Noting and drafting, Self created
Poetry, General Knowledge, Essay writing,
Hindi Workshop for Genext executives,
Quiz for school children, Slogan, Prashna
Manch and Antakshari were organized.

On the concluding function, winners of
these competitions were felicitated and
prizes were given away. Further, two Area
offices were awarded with Rajbhasha
Shields/Citation for doing excellent work in
Hindi in the region 'A' and 'B' during the
year. Similarly, departments of HQ and
officers were also awarded with Rajbhasha
Shields/Citation for maximum
correspondence in Hindi in three groups
and for giving maximum dictation in Hindi
respectively during the year.

For the use of employees, 6768 Hindi
Books on various subjects and 9 Hindi
magazines are made available in Dinkar
Hindi Library. In order to encourage
upcoming writers, monthly e-Magazine
“Rajbhasha Vividha” is being uploaded on

WCL Website. This magazine was
conferred with “Special Award” by the Town
Official Language Implementation
Committee (Office-2), Nagpur.

vii) For developing the skill in mastering the use
of Hindi in official works five months period
practice course namely “uRsii” was

organized for two batches under the
guidance of professors from “f&sdt fargmr
Aotort, oilerg2”. Practice for third batch is

underway.

viii) Two employees of WCL have participated in
Hindi Workshop organized by Rajbhasha
Sansthan, New Delhi at Solan (Himachal
Pradesh) from 27 to 29 April, 2016.

ix) Three employees of WCL have participated
in Hindi Conference and Workshop
organized by Rajbhasha and Prabandhan
Sansthan, Delhi at Kanyakumari
(Tamilnadu) from 17 to 19 May, 2016.

x) Five employees of WCL have participated in
All India Rajbhasha Conference organized
by Bharatiya Bhasha and Sanskruti
Kendra, New Delhi at Ooty (Tamilnadu)
from 26 to 28 May, 2016.

xi) Two employees of WCL have participated in
All India Rajbhasha Conference organized
by Bharatiya Rajbhasha Vikas Sansthan,
Deharadun at Ujjain from 9to 11 Nov., 2016
in which WCL was awarded with following
for commendable contribution in the
promotion of Hindi :-

a) ShriRajivRanjan Mishra, : Rajbhasha Shree
Chairman-cum-Managing Samman
Director

b) Dr.Sanjay Kumar, : Rajbhasha Kirti
Director (P) Samman
¢) ShriChetan LalYadav, : VisheshRajbhasha
Manager (Sectt./ Vishishtata
Rajbhasha) Samman
d) Dr.ManojKumair, : Rajbhasha Shilpi
Asstt.Manager(Rajbhasha) Samman &
Rajbhasha
Vishishthata Samman
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14GREEN MEASURES

Your Company is aware of its responsibilities
towards the environment and ecology aspects
of project management and is taking due care
for Environmental Protection and Pollution
mitigative measures in all operating mines.
Status of different activities under environment
management is as under:

Environmental Impact Assessment
(EIA)Y/Environmental Management Plans
(EMPs) for new Projects/Existing Projects —
Status of Environmental Clearance:

The company has received Environmental
Clearance for 5 projects/mines namely (i)
Expansion of BhanegaonOC (0.60 to 0.70
MTPA), (ii)Expansion of Gokul OC (1.00 to
1.875 MTPA), (iii) Expansion of New Majri UG to
OC (0.80t0 1.20MTPA), (iv) Expansion of
New Sethia OC (0.20 to 0.50 MTPA), (v)
Expansion of Naheriya UG Mine (0.36 to 0.54
MTPA),

during the year 2016-17 as per EIA Notification,
2006 from Ministry of Environment, Forests &
Climate Change, Govt. of India.

Terms of Reference (TOR)

The company has received Terms of Reference
(TOR) for 3 projects viz. (i)Yekona — | & Il
Amalgamated OC (2.75 MTPA), (ii)Exp. of
Mungoli — Nirguda Exin. Deep OC (4.375
MTPA), (iii) Expansion of Pauni — Il OC (3.25
MTPA) as per EIA Notification, 2006 during the
year 2016 — 17 from Ministry of Environment,
Forests & Climate Change (MoEF&CC), Govt.
of India.

Implementation of EMPs approved by
MoEF& CC

The projects having EMPs approved by
MoEF&CC are implemented and reports on
compliance of MOEF&CC stipulations as given
in the respective Environmental Clearances
(ECs) are submitted every six months to 1A
Division, MOEF&CC, New — Delhi and Regional
Offices located at Nagpur and Bhopal.
Certificates of EC compliance obtained from
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Regional Offices, MOEF&CC, Bhopal & Nagpur
in respect of 5 mines viz. New Sethia OC,
Murpar UG, New Majri UG to OC, Adasa UG &
Ghonsa OC.

Afforestation

The plantation work was executed by State
Expert Agency i.e. Madhya Pradesh Rajya Van
Vikas Nigam Limited. During 2016-17, 1,25,900
saplings have been planted in an area of 50.55
ha.andtill date total 183.95 Lakh saplings have
been planted, covering an area of 6671.75 ha.
in its command area in the state of Maharashtra
and Madhya Pradesh.

Other Environmental Mitigation Measures
completed during 2016-17

Land Reclamation Monitoring
Remote sensing technique

through

Progress of land reclamation in 10 major
opencast mines excavating more than 5 million
cubic meters (Coal +OB) per annum has been
monitored by CMPDIL on yearly basis, through
Satellite Imagery. In addition 8 opencast mines
excavating less than 5 million cubic meters
(Coal + OB) have also been monitored at 3 year
interval through Satellite Imagery by CMPDIL.

Sustainable Development

The above indicated activities have contributed
to sustainable mining practice in the company.
Additionally, as a part of Sustainable
Development scheme for Conservation of
natural Resources, certain activities have been
implemented by the company:

Deepening & Widening of Ponds

.Under Mission ‘Nirmal-Nirguda', River Nirguda
was desilted, Development of New pond at
Punwat Village and de-siltation and deepening
of pond at Sukne village was done.

Rooftop Rainwater Harvesting System in
Pench & Kanhan Areas

Four numbers of Rooftop Rainwater Harvesting
System have been commissioned at:

s Urdhan OC Manager Office



e Naheirya UG Sub-Area Manager Office
¢ NandanWashery
e Gorawari/Datla Sub-Area Manager Office

Environmental Awareness

Environment Week (June 1 to 7, 2016) and
World Environment Day on 5th June, 2016 was
observedinthe Company.

The activities undertaken during the week —
long celebration were as under:

i) Pledge on Environment Protection as per
UNEP- theme “Zero Tolerance for the
lllegal Wildlife Trade” taken by all
employees at Corporate (HQ) and at all
Areas.

ii) Organising lecture on various topics
related with environmental awareness.

iy Organising various competitions among
wards of employees viz. Drawing, Slogan
etc.

iv) Distribution of 'Organic Manure' to the
employees.

One day Workshop on “Capacity Building
within company for seeking Environmental
Clearance & Related Issues” was held on
21/07/2016. Another workshop on “Mine
Closure Preparedness” was conducted on
16/12/2016. Further, a workshop on “Slope
Stability Analysis & Design Practices in OC
Mines” was conducted in association with
CMPDIL(HQ), Ranchi during 23rd — 24th
January, 2017.

15. CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

While implementing CSR activities, WCL
follows the CSR policy framed by Coal India
Limited dated 30-12-2015 incorporating the
features of Companies Act, 2013 and the
notifications issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Govt. of India on 27/02/2014
as well as guidelines issued on CSR &
Sustainability by Department of Public
Enterprises (DPE).

* The main objective of CSR policy is to make
CSR a key business process for
sustainable development for the Society. It
aims at supplementing the role of the
Government in enhancing welfare
measures of the society based on the
immediate and long term social and
environmental consequences of their
activities.

% Primary beneficiaries of the CSR activities
are land oustees, project affected persons
(PAPs) and those staying within the radius
of 25 Kms. of the WCL project Areas. Poor
and needy section of the society living in
different parts of India are secondary
beneficiaries.

#* CSR Action plan is prepared in
Consultation with the District Authorities/
Govt. Officials/local bodies/Village
Panchayat/Sarpanch/Gram Sevak and
local elected representatives.

As per CIL's policy, fund for CSR should be
allocated based on 2% of average net profit
of the company for three immediate
preceding financial years or ¥ 2.00 per
Tonne of Coal Production of previous year,
whichever is higher.

Fund provision & Expenditure on CSR during 2016-17

(Lakh %)
Provision of Fund Ex ;::::i‘i?:lre
Avg. of Net Profit Based on Higher
for 3 Immediate Production amount
Preceding FY FY 2015-16
839.19 896.40 896.40 1081.32

Highlights of the CSR Activities during
2016-17

e Financial assistance of ¥ 207.00 lakhs
during 2016-17 and ¥ 300.00 lakhs during
the year 2015-16 to Forest Development
Corporation of Maharashtra (FDCM)
towards construction of Dr.A.PJ Abdul
Kalam Eco-friendly Park in Chandrapur
district.
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Financial assistance of ¥ 100.48 lakhs
towards the plantation works in open
spaces in Municipal Areas of Chandrapur.

Financial assistance of ¥ 100.00 lakhs
towards the construction and development
of Stadium at Chimur.

Financial assistance of ¥ 75.00 lakhs to
Bhausaheb Bhuskute Smiriti Lok Nyas for
construction of Hostel/Library cum Skill
development Centre at Bankhedi
Hosangabad (Madhya Pradesh).

Financial assistance of ¥ 51.25 lakhs to
FDCM towards Plantation in 50 Ha.
Degraded Forest land at Chandrapur.

T 22.40 lakhs was spent on Job oriented
Skill Development Programme for 520
beneficiaries in various trades like Machine
operator-injection moulding/Machines
operator-plastic extrusion/Machinge
operator-blow moulding/Machine operator-
plastic processing in association with
Central Institute of Plastic Engineering &
Technology (CIPET) at Chandrapur Area
and 305 persons have completed their
training during the year.

¥23.92 lakhs was spent on Skill
development programme conducted for
rural youths, PAPs, and women under
projects Arogya, Udaan and Shakti & total
6515 persons were trained in2016-17.

Expenditure of ¥ 27.75 lakhs for distribution
of 553 Bicycles to School going Girls in
Chandrapur District.

¥19.05 lakhs was spent for distribution of
Artificial Limbs through ALIMCO & Pandit
Deendayal Upadhyay Institute of Social
Science, Research & Human Resources,
Nagpur, benefitting 122 Divyangs of
Chandrapur, Chhindwara, Nagpur and
Yavatmal districts.

T 23.13 lakhs spent for installation of one
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RO Plant at Nilgoan village (Nagpur
District) for purification of water drawn from
Saoner UG mine for 2500 beneficiaries.

Financial assistance of ¥13.79 Lakhs to
Nagar Parishad Fetri Village, Nagpur
District for the purchase of Tata ACE Tipper
along with Garbage Container under
Swachh Bharat Abhiyan.

le showing Headwise Expenditure of

CSR activities 2016-2017

SL.
No.

oM B W N =

1
12

Expenditure

Name of the CSR activities 7 In Lakhs
Drinking Water 30.57
Education 112.49
Skill Development 35.42
Welfare of the Differentty abled 19.05
Women Empowerment 32.75
Envircnmental Sustainability and
Conservation of Natural 476.21
Resources
Protection of Naticnal Heritage, Art 200
and Culture :
Prometion of Sports 114.91
Rural Development Projects 229.13
Contribution to Swachh Bharat 13.79
Kosh sst up by Gentral Govt. :
Swachh Vidyalaya Abhiyan 11.13
Health Care 3.87
Total 1081.32

Area wise Expenditure on CSR activities

2016-2017
Expenditure
SL.No. Name of the Area 2 In Lakhs
1.  Chandrapur 339.88
2. Ballarpur NIL
3. Maji 4.00
4. Wani 61.04
5.  Wani-North 83.29
6. NagpurArea 185.51
7.  Umrer 8.46
B. Pathakhera 23.00
9 Pench 52.00
10 Kanhan 1.33
11 WCL, HQ 322 81
Total 1081.32



Mine water utilization

Your company has taken pioneering initiative
for gainful use of mine water discharge for
Drinking, domestic use, Irrigation and
recharging of ground water so as to mitigate the
hardships faced due to shortage of water by
local populace residing nearby mines. Total 14
schemes for Mine Water utilization have been
commissioned since 2014-15. During 2016-17,
three schemes were implemented, one for
Drinking and two for irrigation, benefitting
69,390 populace. Details of the schemes are as
under:

SL . : No. of
No. Mine Name of villages Use BnpfeliBss
1 Saoner UG RO plantin Nilgaon village D‘;\',’;'t‘g:g 2500
2 Murpar UG Murpar village, Sonegaon, . .
Shedegaon, Manjiri village !™gation 50000
3 PiplaUG Pipla village, Walni village & .
Dahegaon village Irrigation 16890
Total 69,390

Further it is proposed to utilize 100% mine
water through implementing 41 Schemes in FY
2017-18, (Drinking Water - 10, Domestic use —
06 and Irrigation - 25) which is expected to
benefit 1,69,468 populace.

Award received during the year 2016-17

Project K2K (Kamptee to Kanhan) of your
Company was selected amongst 30 best
Projects in the Country & awarded “SKOCH
BLUE ECONOMY AWARD 2016” in Gold
Category at New Delhi in Decermber 2016. K2K
is a project for the utilization of mine water
discharge of Kamptee OC after due filtration for
supply to Kanhan and Pipri villages.

16. VIGILANCE
PreventiveVigilance

In order to increase transparency in dealing
with public matters, online complaint handling
system has been introduced so that complaint
can be lodged online from any place. The
complaints so received are being processed
online. It has three user interfaces where a

complainant and top most officials of the
company can directly look into the complaint.
The complaint rests with the dealing officer till
the report is submitted to CVO. All tenders
irrespective of its value are being uploaded on
the company's website. This year one souvenir
namely 'PAHAL' consisting of various articles
related to Vigilance Awareness, Do’s & Don'ts
for employees of almost all the departments and
list of circulars issued by CVC, DOPT, CIL &
WCL have been compiled, published and
distributed for the benefit of officers dealing with
similar tasks. Vigilance department had
conducted 5 CTE type Inspections, 29 surprise
inspections and 23 regular inspections during
the year. Initiatives were taken by Vigilance
Department for systemic improvement and
circulars as mentioned below have been
issued.

i) Uniform guidelines for transportation of
sand and its measurement.

ii) Increasing competitiveness of Tenders
pertaining to procurement of items.

iii) Guidelines for procurement of Machinery
spares from OEM on proprietary basis
through local purchase.

iv) Guidelines for repairing of equipment/
Machinery/ Assembly/ Sub Assembly.

v) Guidelines for Procurement of reflective
vest/ harness.

During the year, 8 Stake holders'/ Customers
meets were organized in all the Areas of WCL.

PunitiveVigilance

During the year, 45 investigations were taken up
out of which 35 have been disposed off. The
vigilance activities have resulted into Regular
Departmental Action (RDA) against 23
employees in 8 cases. The opening balance of
RDA was against 54 employees in 19 cases out
of which 44 employees in 17 cases have been
imposed major penalty and 01 employee in 1
case has been imposed minor penalty.
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Other activities like observance of Vigilance
Awareness Week, Preparation of “Agreed List”
and “Officer of Doubtful Integrity list” and
rotation of employees on sensitive posts have
been carried out. Close liaison with Central
Bureau of Investigation (CBI) and Central
Vigilance Commission (CVC) have been
maintained. Vigilance status in respect of
10157 numbers of employees (Executives and
Non-executives) was issued during the year.

3 Workshop/Training Programmes on Vigilance
Awareness & Personality Development were
conducted where 130 employees participated
and 2 interactive sessions on Ethics and
values were organized in which 253 executives
participated.

Total 2932 employees (1664 Executives and
1268 Non Executives) had taken the Integrity
Pledge during Vigilance Awareness Week-
2016. In addition to this total 4200 individuals
and 3703 students have taken e-pledge on
CVC website till 31st March, 2017.

17. DIRECTORS

The following persons continued to be the
Directors of your Company during the year
under report:

1. ShriRajivR.Mishra,
Chairman-cum-Managing Director

Shri Animesh Bharti, Director

ShriB.K. Mishra, Director (Technical) OP
Dr. Sanjay Kumar, Director (Personnel)
Shri S.M. Choudhary, Director (Finance)
ShriKiritN. Shelat, Director
ShriN.Ramarao, Director

Shrilndra Ghosh, Director

9. ShriMahendrakumar Bhatt, Director

Shri S.S. Malhi, Director (Technical) ceased to
be Director of your Company w.e.f.01/08/2016.

© N o ok~ 0D

Shri T.N. Jha joined your Company as Director
(Technical) w.e.f. 01/08/2016 during the year
under report.
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Shri Vishal Agarwal, Chief Operations

Manager, Central Railway, Mumbai joined your
Company as Permanent Invitee on 06/06/2016
and ceased to be Permanent Invitee of your
Company w.e.f. 22.12.2016 during the year
under report.

Shri Rajiv Dutt Sharma, Chief Operations
Manager, Central Railway, Mumbai joined your
Company as Permanent Invitee w.e.f.
23/01/2017.

Shri R. Mohan Das, Part-time Official director
ceased to Director of your Company w.e.f.
30/03/2017 during the year under report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Company's Philosophy

Corporate Governance is a commitment
backed by transparency in functioning, value
and mutual trust among all the constituents of
an organization. It is a self-imposed discipline
which guides the management and employees
to function towards the goal of the organization.
Itinvolves essentially a creative, generative and
positive thinking activity that adds value to the
stakeholders.

In your Company, Corporate Governance
philosophy stems from our belief that Corporate
Governance is a key element in improving
efficiency and growth as well as enhancing
outsiders confidence. @ We are making
continuous efforts to adopt the best practice in
Corporate Governance and we believe that the
practice we are putting into place for the
company shall go beyond adherence to
regulatory framework.

As per self evaluation report on compliance of
Corporate Governance Guidelines submitted to
Ministry of Coal, Company achieved excellent
ratingi.e.97.44% for the year 2015-16.

Board of Directors
Size of the Board

In terms of Articles of Association of the
Company, strength of the Board shall not be
less than two Directors and more than fifteen
Directors. These Directors may be either whole
time Functional Director or Part-time Directors.



Composition of the Board

As on 31st March, 2017, the Board comprised
of Ten Directors, out of which five were whole
time Functional Directors including the
Chairman-cum-Managing Director. One
Director was nominee of the Government of
India and four Non-official Part-time Directors.
In addition to this, Government has nominated
one representative of Central Railway as
Permanent Invitee on the Board of WCL. The
appointment of other two permanent invitees
each from Govt. Of Maharashtra and Govt. Of
Madhya Pradesh, as per constitution of the
Board, is yet to be made. The Directors bring to
the Board wide range of experience and skill.

Board Meeting

The meeting of the Board of Directors are
normally held at the Company's registered
office at Nagpur. The Company has defined
procedure for meeting of the Board of Directors
and Committees thereof so as to facilitate
decision making in an informed and efficient
manner. 12 (Twelve) Board meetings were held
during the financial year 2016-17 on
04.05.2016, 25.05.2016, 13.06.2016,
18.07.2016, 27.08.2016, 19.09.2016,
25.10.2016, 23/24.11.2016, 21.12.2016,
02.02.2017, 10.02.2017 and 09.03.2017
respectively.

Details of number of Board meetings attended
by Directors are tabulated below :

Sl Directors Meetings No.of ~ Number of
No. held Board Committee
during Meetings membership in
respecti attended the Company
ve in 2015-16
tenure As As
of Chair- Mem-
Directors man  ber
FUNCTIONAL DIRECTORS
1 Shri Rajiv R. Mishra, 12 12
Chairman-cum-
Managing Director
2  shri S.S. Malhi, 4 1 = 3
Director(Tech.)
Operation

Sl. Directors Meetings No.of  Number of
No. held Board Committee
during Mestings membership in
respecti attended the Company
ve in 2015-16
tenure As As
of Chair- Mem-
Directors man ber
3  Shri B.K. Mishra, 12 6 - 3
Director (Technical) (OP)
4 Dr. Sanjay Kumar, 12 12 1 1
Director (Personnel)
5 Shri S.M. 12 12 - 2
Choudhary,
Director (Finance)
6 ShriT.N. Jha, 8 8 1 3
Director (Technical)
P&P
GOVERNMENT DIRECTORS
7 Shri Animesh Bharti, 12 9 - 1
Economic Adviser,
Ministry of Coal
8 Shri R. Mohan Das, 12 11 - 2
Director (P&IR), Coal
India Limited
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
9 Shri Kirit N. Shelat, 12 12 1 -
Non-Official Part-time
Director
10 Shri N. Ramarao, 12 12 1 1
Non-Official Part-time
Director
11 Shri Indra Ghosh, 12 12 1 1
Non-Official Part-time
Director
12 ghri Mahendrakumar 12 12 - 1
Bhatt,
Non-Official Part-time
Director

Information placed before the Board of
Directors

Board has complete access to any
information within the Company. The
information regularly supplied to Board
includes :-

- Annual operating plans and budgets and
any update

- Capital budget and any update

- Quarterly result of the Company

- Annual Report, Directors' Report etc.
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- Minutes of all meetings of Sub-committees
of the Board

- Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous
occurrence ete.

- Operational highlights
- Award of large contracts
- Majorinvestment, joint venture etc.

- Disclosure of interest by Directors about
Directorship and position occupied by them
in other companies

- Non-compliance of any regulatory,
statutory requirement

- Utilization of equipment.
- Other materially important information
Audit Committee

The scope, constitution etc. of the Audit
Committee is as per the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and guidelines of
Corporate Governance issued by Department
of Public Enterprises.

Scope of Audit Committee

a) Ensure compliance of internal control
system

b) Reviewing the financial statements with the
management before submission to the
Board for approval

¢) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit
function

d) Review of related party transactions

e) Discussions with internal auditors any
significant findings and follow up thereon

f) Recommendation to the Board for fixation
of Audit Fees

f) Discussions with Statutory Auditors

g) Any other matter with the permission of the
Chair

Constitution

The Audit Committee has been constituted with
the membership of -

i) Four Independent Directors, one being the
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Chairman of the Audit Committee;

ii) Nominee of Ministry of Coal (MOC),
nominated on the Board of WCL,;

iii) Nominee of Coal India Limited, nominated
onthe Board of WCL ;

iv) Director (Finance) shall attend the
meetings of the Audit Committee as an
invitee.

Composlition

During the year 2016-17, the Audit Committee
comprised of the following :

Dr. Kirit N. Shelat - Chairman
Non-official Part-time Director

Shri Animesh Bharti - Member
Part-time Official Director

Shri R.Mohan Das - Member
Part-time Official Director

ShriN.Ramarao - Member
Non-official Part-time Director

Shrilndra Ghosh - Member
Non-official Part-time Director

Shri Mahendrakumar Bhatt -  Member
Non-official Part-time Director

Shri B.K. Mishra -  Member

Director (Technical)

Director (Finance) shall attend the meetings of
the Audit Committee as aninvitee.

Meetings and Attendance

During the year 2016-17, 10 (Ten) meetings of
the Committee were held. The details of Audit
Committee meetings attended by members are
asunder:

Members of Audit Committee Meetings held Meetings
during his / attended
her tenure

Dr. Kirit N. Shelat 10 10

Shri Animesh Bharti 10 7

Shri R. Mohan Das 10 9

Shri N. Ramarao 10 10

Shri Indra Ghosh 10 10

Shri Mahendrakumar Bhatt 10 10

Shri B.K. Mishra 1 1

Shri T.N. Jha 6 6



Remuneration Committee / Remuneration
of Directors

Your Company, being a Central Public Sector
Undertaking, the appointment, tenure and
remuneration of Directors are decided by the
President of India. Independent Directors are
paid only sitting fees at the rate fixed by the
Board within the ceiling fixed under the
Companies Act, 2013 for attending the Board
Meetings as well as Committee Meetings.
Details of remuneration of Functional Directors
and Key Managerial Person of the Company for
2016-17 are given in Form MGT-9 attached with
the report.

CSRCOMMITTEE

Scope and constitution of CSR Committee is
as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. As on 31st March, 2017, the CSR
Committee comprised of the following :

1. Shri N. Rama Rao, - Chairman
Non Official Part-time Director

2. Dr. Sanjay Kumar, - Member
Director (Personnel)

3. ShriT.N.Jha - Member

Director (Technical)
Meeting and attendance

During the year 2016-17, 6 (Six) meetings of
the Committee were held and all the members
of the committee attended the meetings.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee is a sub
Committee under WCL Board which is
responsible for the overall Risk Management at
WCL.

During the year 2016-17, Risk Management
Committee comprised of the following:

Shri Indra Ghosh - Chairman
Non-official Part-time Director

Shri R. Mohan Das - Member
Part-time Official Director

Shri T.N. Jha - Member

Director (Technical)

Meetings and attendance

During the year 2016-17, 3 (Three) meetings of
the Committee were held and all the members
attended the meetings.

General Body Meetings / Annual General
Meetings

Date, time and locations where the last three
Annual General Meetings were held, are as
under:

Date : June 11,2014 June 22, 2015 July 5, 2016

Time 11.00 A.M. 10.00 A.M. 11.00 A.M.

Venue Coal Estate,  Coal Estate, (o] Estate
Civil Lines, Civil Lines, Civil Lines.
Nagpur Nagpur Nagpur

Special B = .

Resolutions

Disclosure

As per the disclosure given by the Directors of
the Company, there were no material related
party transactions that have potential conflicts
with the interest of the Company. The financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
applicable mandatory Accounting Standards
and relevant presentational requirement of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Audit Qualifications

It is always the Company's endeavour to
present unqualified financial statement.
Management reply to the Statutory Auditors'
observations on the Accounts of the Company
for the year ended March, 2017 are furnished as
an Annexure to the Directors' Report.
Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under Sec. 143(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 on the Accounts of
Western Coalfields Limited for the year ended
31stMarch, 2017 is also enclosed.

Whistle Blower Policy

Your Company is a fully owned subsidiary of
Coal India Limited. Coal India has prepared
and adopted Whistle Blower Policy which is also
applicable to all its subsidiaries. Apart from
that, your Company has an independent
Vigilance Branch, headed by a Chief Vigilance
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Officer. The Vigilance Branch, functioning
under the overall guidance of Central Vigilance
Commission, mainly lay stresses on preventive
vigilance. Drop Box has been kept, where
employees and others can report to the
Vigilance Branch, concerns about unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud etc. and
the complaints so lodged are reviewed by the
Vigilance Branch and necessary action, as
deemed fit, is taken while protecting the identity
of the complainants.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics for the Board
members and Senior Management.

The Code lays down the standard of conduct
which is expected to be followed by the
Directors and the Senior Management
Personnel in their business dealing and in
particular on the matter relating to integrity at
the work place, in business practices and in
dealing with stakeholders.

All the Board members and Senior
Management Personnel have confirmed
compliance with the code.

AUDITORS:

In exercise of the powers conferred by the
Company at the Extra-ordinary General
Meeting held on 30th August, 2001, pursuant to
provisions of section 142(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013 the Board of Directors in its 282nd
meeting held on 25th October, 2016 fixed the
remuneration of Statutory and Branch Auditors
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India, under section 139(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 forthe financial year2016-17.

In addition to annual audit, the auditors are
appointed for carrying out review of 1st Quarter
Accounts ended on 30th June 2016, 2nd
Quarter Accounts ended on 30th September,
2016 and 3rd Quarter Accounts ended on 31st
December, 2016 with fees for each quarter @
25% of the annual audit fees of previous year.
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The details of Auditors appointed, their fees and
other expenses approved for Annual Audit,1st,
2nd and 3rd Quarter Review are as under:

Audit Fee TA/DA and out-of

pocket expenses

Statutory/Bra-
nch Auditors

A Statutory Auditors :

M/S V.K. % 7,88,670/- for At actuals, subject to
Surana & Co, Annual Audit and  maximum of actual
Chartered 31,97,168/- fare plus DA for
Accountants, each for 1, 2 &  Partners / qualified
Nagpur. 3" Quarter assistants @ ¥140/-
Review, plus per day and for audit

applicable taxes  assistants @ I 120/-
per day for the actual
mondays engaged
for audit of Areas/

offices situated

outside
B Branch Auditors
M/S B ¥ 82,031/- for
Chhawchharia  review of 1 - do -
& Co Quarter ended
Chartered on 30" June,
Accountants, 2016 plus
Nagpur. applicable taxes
M/S Rodi % 3,28,125/- for
Dabir & Co Annual Audit and - do -
Chartered % 82,031/- each
Accountants, for 2" & 3"
Nagpur. Quarter Review,
plus applicable
taxes
M/SV K T 4,21,875/- for
Ladha & Annual Audit and
Associates T 1,05,469/-each - do -
Chartered for 1%, 2™ & 3"
Accountants, Quarter Review,
Nagpur. plus applicable
taxes
M/S KPRK & %1,05,469/- for
Associates review of ¥ 1°*
Chartered Quarter ended - do -
Accountants, on 30" June,
Nagpur. 2016 plus
applicable taxes
M/S Shah T 4,21,875/- for
Baheti Annual Audit and -~ do -
Chandak & T 1,05,469/-each
Co, for 2™ & 3"
Chartered Quarter Review,
Accountants, plus applicable
Nagpur. taxes
% 19,60,545/- for ~ Actual TA/DA, limited
Annual Audit to total ¥1,50,000/-
Total and¥ 4,90,137/- for Annual Audit and
each for 1%, 2" &  Actual TA/DA, limited
3" Quarter to total ¥ 75,000/-
Review, plus each for 1%, 2" & 3¢

applicable taxes Quarter Review



DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134
(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect
to Directors' Responsibility Statement, it is
hereby confirmed:

a. that in the preparation of the Annual
Accounts for the financial year ended 31st
March 2017, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with
proper explanations relating to material
departures;

b. that the Directors have selected such
Accounting Policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and
estimates that were reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the
end of the financial year and of the profit or
loss of the Company for the year under
review;

c. that the Directors have taken proper and
sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
and

d. that the Directors have prepared the
accounts for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2017 on a 'Going Concern' basis;
and

e. that the directors have laid down internal
financial controls to be followed by the
company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and

f. the directors have devised proper systems
to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

the accounts of your company would be
available at the Company Headquarters for
providing information to the shareholders of
CIL, ondemand, if any.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors express their gratitude to the
Ministry of Coal, Government of India and Coal
India Limited for their valuable assistance,
support and guidance from time to time.
The Directors thank various Ministries of the
Central Government and the State
Governments of Maharashtra and Madhya
Pradesh for their valuable support.

The Directors also take this opportunity to
acknowledge with thanks the assistance
rendered by the sister organisations and
Directorate General of Mines Safety.

Industrial Relations in the Company continued
to be cordial. The Directors place on record
their appreciation for the co-operation extended
by the Trade Unions and Officers Association
and all Steering Committee Members, Officers
of Ministry of Labour and the team spirit shown
by the employees at all levels towards the
achievement of the objectives of the Company.

The Directors record the appreciation of
services rendered by Statutory and Branch
Auditors and the Officers and Staff of
Comptroller & Auditor General of India,
Department of Company Affairs, Company Law
Board and Registrar of Companies,
Maharashtra.

The Directors also extend their thanks to
various important citizens of Nagpur,
Maharashtra and Madhya Pradesh States,
stationed in the Coalfields for their co-operation
from time to time and also to the Steering
Committee of WCL comprising of Trade Union
representatives and Management.

ADDENDA
The following papers are annexed :

In pursuance to the provisions of section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Companies Rule (8), Sub-Rule (3) of the
Company (Accounts) rules, 2014, information
in regard to the Conservation of Energy,
Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earning & Outgois givenin Annexure-ltothis report.
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The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2017 from Practising
Company Secretary.

Corpoate Governance Certificate, in
compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance, from Practising Company
Secretary.

Addendum to the Directors' Report under
section 134(3)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor
General (C&AG) of India under section 143(6)
of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Your Directors further state that "The Company
has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy
in line with the requirements of The Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC)
has been set up to redress complaints received
regarding sexual harassment. All employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees)
are covered under this policy.

The following is a summary of Sexual
harassment complaints received and disposed
off during the year2016-17

No. of complaints received :NIL
No. of complaints disposed off : NIL

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

‘B

(Rajiv R. Mishra)
Chairman-cum-Managing Director



ANNEXURE-I

A Conservation of Energy
(i) Stepstaken

1

8.

9.

Energy Audit & benchmarking of electrical power consumption in Silewara UG &
Gondegaon OC mine by an external agency.

Study of specific power consumption & benchmarking at Mathani UG & New Majri OC
by CMPDIL.

Implementation of 50% of measures proposed in reports of Energy Audit &
benchmarking forthe year2015-16.

Addition of 87 nos. capacitors to improve and maintain the power factor above 0.95.
11741 nos. LED lights have been installed in offices and for street lighting.
Installation of additional 70 nos. of auto timers in street light circuits.

Installation of 5 nos. UG bunker to eliminate idle running of belt conveyors in
underground mines.

Installation of de-watering pumps on float in OC mines during monsoon season.

Re-organization of LT OH Line by Aerial Bunched Cable of 20.5 KM.

10. Elimination or reduction of stage pumping as far as practicable.

11. Replacement of existing old / undersized diameter pipeline with suitable size pipeline.

(ii) Steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy

1.

During the year, solar power of 172310 kWh was generated from installed solar
power system of 80 kW at Nagpur Area & 60kW at Ballarpur Area.

Further planned for installation of Solar Power system of 1257 kW and 50 MW Solar
Project.

(ili) Expenditure of T 3.82 Crores was incurred on energy conservation measures
during the year

(iv) Impact of energy conservation measures

Power consumption during FY 2016-17 has reduced over previous year by 4.21% i.e.
24.755 Million kWh, due to implementation of various energy conservation measures and
reduction in industrial power requirement.
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B. FORM 'B', Disclosure of Particulars with respect to Technology Absorption, is enclosed

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

i)

i)

Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to increase exports, development of new

export markets for products and services and export plans Company is not engaged in
export activities.

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign
Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows is as under:

R crores)
: Current Previous
Particulars year year
(A) Foreign Exchange earned (inflow) 0.00 0.00
(B) Foreign Exchange used (outflow) 0.06 1.45
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Form 'B'
Disclosure of Particulars with respect to Technology Absorption

MiningTechnology

1.

Continuous Miner

Deployment of Continuous miner is planned at Jamunia (2 Nos.), Dhankasa (2 Nos.)
UG mines of Pench Area and Tawa-Il (1 No.), Gandhi gram (3 Nos.) UG mines of
Pathakhera Area.

Surface miner

Excavation of coal in OC Mines by surface Miner is more environmental friendly as it
eliminates drilling, blasting and crushing with added safety. Moreover, it is conducive for
ensuring and maintaining the quality of coal as selective mining with exclusion of thin
bands of shale/stone is feasible.

Surface Miner at Penganga OCP deployed in the year 2015-16 was successful. Further
planned for deployment of another Surface miner at Penganga OCP and one Surface
miner at Yekona-Il OCP.

Application of Man Riding System in UG Mines

In order to eliminate fatigue to the workmen due to long and arduous travel in UG mines
and to improve the efficiency, man riding systems have been introduced in 10 mines of
WCL. During the year 2016-17, Supply order for two Chair Lift Man riding systems was
placed and supplied. Man riding system at Nehariya UG mine was installed and
commissioned whereas the installation of Man riding System at Rajur UG mine is in
process.

Universal Drilling Machines

WCL has played a leading role in mechanizing face drilling as well as drilling for roof
support. In this pursuit, 07 Nos. of UDMs were added during 2016-17, in addition to 48
UDMs already in operation at different mines.

Non- Mining Technology (Innovation)

Sand Segregation from Overburden (OB)

A green initiative to segregate sand from overburden of coal has been taken & a in-house
designed plant for this purpose was installed at Bhanegaon OCM, Nagpur during 2016-17.
MoU has been signed with Nagpur Improvement trust (NIT) for supply of segregated sand
to low cost housing projects under PMAY (Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana).
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FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31-03-2017
Fursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Company (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014

. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS :

1. | CIN U10100MH1975G0I1018626

2. | Registration Date 29 October 1975

3. | Name of the Company Western Coalfields Limited

4. | Category/Sub-category of  Private Company/Government Company

the Company

Address of the Registered  Coal Estate, Civil Lines, Nagpur  440001,Maharashtra

office & contact details Contact No. : 0712-2511216 Fax No. : 0712-2511216
Email Id. : ramehar@westerncoal.gov.in

Whether listed company No

Name, Address & contact  Not Applicable

details of the Registrar &

Transfer Agent, if any.

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY :

[All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated]

SL. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the
No. products / services Product/service company
1.  Coal Mining 051-05101 and 051-05102 100.0

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :

SL. Name and Address CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/| % of Applicable
No  of the Company Associate Share Held| Section
1 CoalindiaLimited  L23109WB1973G0I028844 ‘ Holding ‘ 100 ‘ 2(46)
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ARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capita

i) Categ

Category of
Shareholders

A. Promoters
(1) Indian:
a) Individual/ HUF
b) Central Govt
c) State Govi(s)
d) Bodies Corp.
e) Banks / FI
f) Any other
Sub-Total (A)(1):
(2) Foreign:
a) NRiIs- Individuals

b) Other Individuals
¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / FI.
e) Any other

Sub-Total (A)(2):

Total shareholding
of Promoter
(A)=(A)(1)+A)(2)
Total shareholding
of Promoter (A)

ory-wise Share Holding:

No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the

O O O OO O

o

B. Public Shareholding

a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks / FI
¢) Central Govt
d) State Govi(s)
e) Venture Capital
f) Insurance
Companies
g) Flls
h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds
i) Others
Sub-total (B)(1):-

(=N oo NelloNel

oo

oo

the year

[as on 01-04-2016]
Demat Physical

0
0
0
2971000
0
0
2971000

© O O OO O

2971000

2971000

(el oloeNelleNe

[N

Total

0
0
0
2971000
0
0
2971000

O O O OO o

2971000

2971000

(> NelleNolleNo

o o

% of
Total
Shares

0
0
0
100.0

100.0

O O O OO O

100.0

100.0

(>N eleNeleNe)

oo

oo

Demat

O O O OO0 O

o

(>N eoleNelleoNeal

oo

o o

| Breakup as percentage of Total

%
year

[as on 31-03-2017] ‘:’ha!‘ge
: = uring
Physical Total % of iHo voar
Total y
Shares
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
2971000 2971000 100.0 0.00
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

2971000 2971000 100.0 0.00

© O O OO0OOo
O O O OOoOoO
© O O OO0OOo
O O O OO O

2971000 2971000 100.0 0.00

2971000 2971000 100.0 0.00

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
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{2) Non-Institutions

No. of Shares held at the beglinning of

No. of Shares held at the end of the

%
the year year
Category of [as on 01-04-2016] [as on 31-03-2017] %’:ﬁ?ﬂge
Shareholders Demat Physical Total %of Demat Physical Total %of .o eg f
Total Total 0¥
Shares Shares
a) Bodies Corporate:
i) Indian 0 0 0| 0 0 0 0 0 0
ii} Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Individuals:
i) Individual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh
i) Individual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
shareholders
¢) Others (specify):
Non Resident 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Indians
Overseas Corporate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bodies
Foreign Nationals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Clearing Members 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Trusts 0 0 0] 0 0 0 0 0 0
Foreign Bodies -D R 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(2):-
Total Public 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Shareholding
(B)=(BX1)+ (BX2)
C. Shares held by 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Custodlan for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total 0| 2971000 2971000 1000 0 2971000 2571000 100.0 0.00
{A+B+C)
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SL.
No.

ii) Shareholding of Promoter :
Shareholder's  Shareholding at the beginning of the  Shareholding at the end of the %
Name year year change
[as on 01-04-2016] [as on 31-03-2017] in
No. of % of total %o0f No.of % of total %0f sharehol
Shares Shares of  Shares Shares Shares  Shares ding
the Pledged / ofthe Pledged/ during
company encumber company encumber the year
ed to total ed to total
shares shares
1. Coal India Limited 2971000 100.0 0.00 2971000 100.0 0 0.00
ili) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) :
SL. Particulars Shareholding atthe =~ Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
[as on 01-04-2016] [2016-17]
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the  shares shares of the
company company
1. At the beginning of the year 2971000 100.0 2971000 100.0
2. Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/ bonus/ sweat equity etc.)
3. Atthe end of the year 2971000 100.0 2971000 100.0

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:(Other than Directors, Promoters and

Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SL. Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of the

No. Name year
[as on 01-04-2016]
No. of % of total %o0f

Shares Shares of Shares
the Pledged /
company encumber
ed to total

shares

Shareholding at the end of the %

year change
[as on 31-03-2017] in
No.of % of total %of sharehol
Shares Shares  Shares ding
ofthe Pledged/ during
company encumber the year
ed to total
shares
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v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel :

Shareholding at the

Shareholding of each Directors and each
Key Managerial Personnel

shares

Shri Rajiv Ranjan Mishra
Chairman-cum-Managing Director,Western
Coalfields Limited

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)
At the end of the year

Shri Animesh Bharti
Government Director (Part time)

At the beginning of the year Nil

Date wise Increase/Decrease in

Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year Nil

Shri. R. Mohan Das
Government Director (Part time)

At the beginning of the year 1

Date wise Increase/Decrease in

Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year 1

. Shri S.S. Malhi
Director (Technical) upto 01/08/2016
At the beginning of the year Nil
Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying the =
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year Nil
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beginning
of the year
[as on 01-04-2016]

No. of

% of total

Cumulative
Shareholding during
the Year
[2016-17]

No. of

shares of shares

the
company

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

% of total
shares of

the
company

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil



Shareholding at the Cumulative

SL Shareholding of each Directors and each gfet%iggigfr Share?r?(ladyga(:uring
No. i
Key Managerial Personnel [as on 01-04-2016] [2016-17]
No. of % of total No. of % oftotal
shéres shares of shares shares of
the the
company company
5. Shri B.K.Mishra
Director (Technical)
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

6 Shri Sanjay Kumar
Director (Personnel)
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying the -
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
7. Shri S.M.Choudhary

Director (Finance)

At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
8 Shri T.N. Jha

Director (Technical) w.e.f. 01/08/2016

At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
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No. Shareholding of each Directors and each

Key Managerial Personnel

8 Shri Kirit N Shelat, Independent Director

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year

10 Shri N Ramarao, Independent Director

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.qg.
allotment/transfer / honus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year
Shri Indra Ghosh, Independent Director

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotmentftransfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year

12 Shri Mahendrabhai Bhait
Independent Director
At the beginning of the year

Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (eg.
allotment/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year
Shri Rameher, Company Secretary

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year

13
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Shareholding at the Cumulative
beginning Shareholding during
of the year the Year
[as on 01-04-2016] [2016-17]
No.of of total No.of % oftotal
shares Shares of shares shares of
the the
company company
Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil



V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest out standing/accrued but not due

for payment

Indebtedness at the
beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount
i) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i-+ii-+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
Addition
Reduction
Net Change
Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil

Unsecured
Loans
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
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Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-Time Directors and/or Manager:

S Particulars of

N Remuneration Name of Managing Director Whole Time Director Total Amount
Shri Rajiv Shri ShriBK  ShriSanjay ShriSM Shri T.N.
Ranjan S.S.Malhi Mishra Kumar Choudhary Jha
Mishra (appointed
as Director
w.e.f
01/08/2016

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as  24,55,201.45 7,43,704.53 22,98,682.45 20,32,379.25 23,92,861.95 16,81,793.85 1,16,04,623.48
per provisions
contained in
section 17(1)
of the Income-
tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of 2,52,389.00 41,218.00 2,46,145.00 2,12,653.00 32,400.00 1,08,485.00 8,93,290.00
perquisites u's
17(2)} Income-
tax Act, 1961
{c) Profits in
lisu of salary
under section
17(3} Income-
tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option

3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission

- as % of profit
- others,
specify
5 Others, please
specify*
Leave 15,89,229.0 1,59,704.00 1,58,880.00 19,07,813.00
Encashment
31,40,651.00 15,88,793.00 17,69,420.00 8,21,002.00 12,84,734.00
PF & FP 2,49,767.00 2,80,075.00 247,830.00 2,07,105.00 245256.00 1,57,806.00 13,87,839.00
14,289.00 15,870. 37,002.00 6,878.00 24,421.00 2,448.00
Gratuity 10,00,000.00 10,00,000.00

Total (A) 61,12,297.45 52,58,880.53 47,58,783.45 32,80,017.25 41,38,552.95 20,00,339.85 2,55,48,880.48

Ceiling as per
the ACT

*includes Medical Reimbursements, Provident Fund & Family Pension, Gratuity, Encashment of Leave
and Profit related pay
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B. Remuneration to Other Directors:

] Particulars of Name of Directors Total Amount
N Remuneration (Rs.)

1 Independent Directors: Shri Kirit N Shri Ramarao  Shrilndra  Shri Mahendrabhai
Shelat Nuthakki Ghosh T Bhatt

Fee for attending board 4,50,000.00 5,45,000.00 4,85,000.00 4,30,000.00 19,10,000.00
committee meetings

Commission
Others, please specify

Total (1) 4,50,000.00 5,45,000.00 4,85,000.00 4,30,000.00 19 10 000 00
2 Other Non-Executive No Non-Executive Directors were present during the year NA
Directors:
Fee for attending board 0 0
committee meetings
Commission 0 0
Others, please specify 0 0
Total (2) 0 0
Total (B)=(1+2) 19,10,000.00
Total Managerial 2,74,58,880.48
Remuneration Y

Overall Ceiling as per the Act
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other han MD/Manager/WTD:

No. (Rs.)
Shri Rameher, CS

{(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of 22,38,540.00 22,38,540.00
the Income-tax Act, 1961
{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

{(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option

Sweat Equity

4. Commission

- as % of profit
Others, specify...

©

5. Others, please specify 18,05,260.00 18,05,260.00
PRP 12,69,726.00
PF & FP 2,40,769.00
MRS 5015.00

Total 40,43,800.00 40,43,800.00

*includes Medical Reimbursement, Provident Fund & Family Pension, Profit related pay.

Vil. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES :

Type Section of the Brief Detalls of Penalty / Authority Appeal made,
Companies Description Punishment/ Compounding [RD/NCLT/ if any
Act fees imposed COURT] (give Details)

A. COMPANY:
Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS:
Penalty
Punishment None

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS
IN DEFAULT:

Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding
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ADDENDUM TO DIRECTORS' REPORT
UNDER SCTION 134(3) and 143(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013
AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of WESTERN COALFIELDS
LIMITED (‘the Company') (A Subsidiary of Coal India Limited), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at 31 March,2017, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
cash flow statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. The Ind AS financial statements
audited by us incorporates the Ind AS Financial Statements of:-

a) 5 Areas (Branches)audited by us, and
b) 11 Areas (Branches)audited by Area (Branch) Auditors which are as under:

I) Pench ii) Majri iii) Patharkheda iv) Kanhan v) Wani (Urjagram) vi) Wani North vii) Central
Workshop Tadali viii) Umrer ix) Ballarpur x) Chandrapur xi) NandanWashery, Kanhan.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
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the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position of the Company as at 31st March,
2017, and its financial performance including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes in equity forthe year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to the following matters-

SINo. Audit Observation Management Reply
a) T'he company has not yet appointed at least One This being a Statement of fact.
Woman Director on the Company’s Board, Appointment of Directors and
contravention to provisions of section 149(1) of Independent Directors is looked after
the Companies Act 2013. by PESB and Government of India

b) Inmost of the cases the Balance Confirmations There is an inbuilt system of periodic
/ reconciliation of Loans and Advances, Trade reconciliation of dues with debtors.
Receivables, Other Current Assets, Trade However, confirmation letters have
Payable and other Current Liabilities as on 31 also been issued to parties. Similarly
March’17 is not received and the same is under balance confirmation letters have also
process. Refer Note 35(5)(mjto the Ind AS been issued to creditors.
financial statement

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Other Matters

a) The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2016 and
the transition date opening balance sheet as at 1st April 2015 included in these standalone Ind
AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements
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prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by
us, whose report for the year ended 31st March 2016 and 31st March 2015 dated 25th May
2016 and 5th June 2015 respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on those standalone
financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the
Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

We did not audit the financial statements/information of 11Areas(Branches) included in the Ind
AS financial statements of the Company whose financial statements / financial information
reflect total assets of ¥ 5705.64 Crores as at 31st March, 2017 and total revenues of 36482.17
Crores for the year ended on that date. The financial statements/information of these areas
(branches) have been audited by the area (branch) auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these areas (branches), is based solely on the report of such area (branch) auditors.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required under section 143(5) of the Companies Act,2013, we give in the Annexure “A”, a
statement on the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India after
complying with the suggested methodology of Audit, the action taken thereon and its impact on
the accounts and financial statement of the company.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure “B” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act,we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
sofarasitappears from our examination of those books.

(c) The report on the accounts of the Areas (Branches) of the Company, audited under section
143 (8) by area (branch) auditors has been sent to us and have been dealt with by us in
preparing this report.

(d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(e) Inouropinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued
thereunder, but subject to the following:
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(i) As stated in footnote no. 3.4 to Note
No.3, 'Assets Taken over on
Nationalization' of the company with
Gross Value of ¥ 9.07 crores,
Accumulated Depreciation of ¥ 9.06
crores and Carrying Value of ¥ 0.01
crores are not classified into proper
sub-head within fixed assets

(i) As stated in footnote no. 3.5 to Note
No.3, finalization of purchase
consideration of certain fixed assets
taken over by company from the Coal
Mines Labour Welfare Organization is
stil pending. This has impact on
reported figures of Carrying Value of
such Property, Plant & Equipment and
Retained Earnings and also on the
presentation of Property, Plant &
Equipment. The impact however is not
ascertainable and shown as
Contingent Liability.

(f Sub-section (2) of section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to
the Company being the Government
Company; and

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer our
separate reportin “Annexure C”; and

© (h) with respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to
us:

(I) The Company has disclosed the impact
of pending litigation on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial
statements — Refer Note 35 (4) to the
Ind AS financial statements;
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The detailed records are not available for the
taken over assets. However, Net Residual
value/ WDV of all such Assets is ¥ 1.00 lakh.
The value of these assets is very meagre &
henceimmaterial.

Assets were taken over from Coal Mines
Labour Welfare organisation (CMLWO)
through administrative orders issued by the
concerned ministries and no purchase
consideration was fixed.

This being a statement of fact calls for no
comments

This being a statement of fact calls for no
comments



(i)

(i)

(i)

AUDIT OBSERVATION

(ii) The company did not have any long

term contracts including derivatives
contracts, which require provision for
material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were

required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

(iv)The Company has provided requisite

disclosures in the Notes to accounts
of Ind AS financial statements as to
holdings as well as dealings in
Specified Bank Notes during the
period from 8th November, 2016 to
30th December, 2016. Based on our
enquiries, test check of books of
accounts and other details
maintained by the company and
relying on the management
representation regarding the holding
and nature of cash transactions,
including Specified Bank Notes, we
report that these disclosures are in
accordance with books of account
maintained by the Company and as
produced to us by the Management.
Refer Note 35(5)(k)(17) to the Ind AS
financial statements.

For V. K. Surana & Co.
Chartered Accountants

CA. Sudhir Surana
Partner

Membership No. 43414
Firm Reg. No.: 110634W

May 25, 2016
Nagpur

MANAGEMENT REPLY

This being a statement of fact calls for no
comments

This being a statement of fact calls for no
comments

This being a statement of fact calls for no
comments
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT OF
WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2017

(As referred to in Paragraph 1 of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our
report on the statement of Directions & Sub Directions under section 143(5) of Companies
Act2013,Issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of Indla for the year 2016-17.)

1) Directions under section 143(5) of the Act

SL. Details / Directions Auditor’s Reply Management
No
1 Whether the company has As per information and Purchase of land made in the
clear title/lease deeds for explanations provided tous, March2017 for new mines like
freehold and leasehold the company / areas have Dinesh O/C, Yekona O/C,
respectively? If not, please clear the title deeds of all Kolarpimpri extension and New
state the area of freehold and  Land except land of Sethia etc., for which compilation
leasehold land for which 2126.30Hect, - of title deeds is under process.
title/lease deeds are not Umrer— 807.76 Hect
available? Majri — 707.79 Hect Further mutation of land acquired
Wani North — 216.61 Hect under Coal Mines
Pench—202.05 Hect (Nationalisation) Act 1972 as well
Nagpur — 178Hect as CBA Act 1950, does not arise
Wani— 14.09 Hect in law as its right, title and
The compilation of above title interest remains vested
deeds of lands is under absolutely in the Central
process with Land and Government, which is on
Revenue Department. transfer, exercised by WCL, a

Govt. company.

o Whether there are any cases of No such cases are observed This being a statement of fact
waiver/ write off of debts / loans during Financial Year 2016-  calls for no comments.
/ interest etc., if yes, the 2017
reasons there for and amount
involved.

3  Whether proper records are No Inventories are lying with  This being a statement of fact
maintained for inventories lying third parties & no assets are  calls for no comments.
with third parties & assets received as gifts / grants from
received as gift / grant(s) from  the Government or other
the Govt or others authorities.  authorities during the
Financial Year 2016-2017.
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2) Additional Directions under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

SL. Details / Directions Auditor’s Reply Management Reply
No
1 Whether coal StOCk1.Yes. Steekibasiiemantwas This being a statement
measurement was done . ) . of fact calls for no
: . . done keeping in view the
keeping in view the contour comments.
map. Whether physical stock Lnigurmdp:
mea:surement reports are LR et Elage
sccompanied by cortour map TSN bl are
in all cases? Whether new all casgs y P
A DT s Tt 3. Yes. New Heap is created in
year has got the approval of the 3
competent authority? some mines as per approval of
P ) Competent Authority.
2 Whether the company No merger / split / re-structure  This being a statement
conducted physical verification have been carried out during  of fact calls for no

exercise of assets and the Financial Year 2016-17. And comments.
properties at the time of merger hence not applicable.

/ split / re-structure of an Area.

If so, whether the concerned

subsidiary followed the

requisite procedure?

3 Whether uniform treatment of At WCL Company level, This being a statement

land acquisition entries as well uniform treatment of land of fact calls for
as interest on delayed payment acquisition entries as well as comments.

of land compensation to the interest on delayed payment of

project affected persons (PAPs) land compensation to the

across the subsidiaries have project affected persons (PAPSs)

been considered during the have been done during the

preparation of Annual Accounts preparation of Ind AS Financial

for the year 2016-17. Statement for the year 2016-17.

4 Whether disputes, if any, as to The disputes as to GCV ranges
GCV ranges as a result of as a result of sampling done by
sampling have been du|y CIMFR have been examined
examined. . If so, these are to and suitable provision is being
be quantified and intimated to done.

C&AG Audit. Summarised details are as
under:
a) Total Despatch Quantity for
which CIMFR is applicable —
15254434 MT

of fact.

received.

no

This being a statement

Necessary Provision to
the tune of ¥ 238.58

crores has been made
for Grade Slippage as
per sampling of CIMFR
for which report yet to be
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SL. Details / Directions Auditor's Reply Management Rep
No

b) Qty for which CIMFR reports
received & accepted by
Nagpur Area — 5214380 MT

c) Qty for which CIMFR reports
received & but not accepted
and referred to referee—
4279090 MT Qut of above
4279090 MT, results of
Referee  received and
accepted by Company is
471598 MT. And for balance
3807492 MT results of
Referee awaited as on audit
cut-off date.

d) Qty for which CIMFR
Reports are not received till
the audit cut-off date —
5760964 MT.

For the cases where sampling

results / reporis is not received

1ill the audit cut-off date
involving 9568456 MT

(3807492 + 5760965), suitable

provision is done based on past

sampling results.
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT OF
WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2016
(As referred to in Paragraph 2 of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirement )

e —— Py [ QR pep—— ~ v £ N ] 1
rming part of our report or even date)

AUDIT OBSERVATION MANAGEMENT REPLY

() (@) The Company has maintained proper Assets were taken over from Coal Mines

records showing full particulars, including Labour Welfare organisation (CMLWO)
quantitative details and situation of fixed through administrative orders issued by
assets, except for assets taken over from the concerned ministries and no
Coal Mines Authority on Nationalization and purchase consideration was fixed.
those taken from Coal Mines Rescue Also, lease of Coal mines nationalised
Station and Coal Mines Labour Welfare under Coal Mines (Nationalisation) Act,
Organization, which have not been 1973 were vested in Coal Mines
recordedandthe situation is described in Authority Limited by statutory order No.
Fixed Asset register as at concerned mine GSR/345 dated 9" July’'1973, New Delhi.
only. Further as per Gazette Notification
No.45/2000 dated 8.12.2000, all title
/lease deeds are deemed to have been
vested with the subsidiary concern.

(b) The Physical verification of Plant & This being a statement of fact calls for no
Machinery and Vehicles valuing Rs. 1 Lac comments

and above as on 31.03.2017 has been

done by Departmental Committee at

respective areas and no material

discrepancies were noticed on such

verification.

Physical verification of remaining assets This being a statement of fact calls for no
has been carried out as per policy of the comments

company in a phased manner over a period
of three years.

In respect of CBE Plant Bhandara, fixed This being a statement of fact calls for no
assets are in the custody of the comments

management of Ordinance Factory and as
stated the same are physically verified by
them and no material discrepancy is
reported on such verification.

In respect of DFD Plant, Hinganghat, major This being a statement of fact calls for no
items of fixed assets are physically verified comments

by the management. No material

discrepancy is reported to have been

noticed on such verification.
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{(c) As per information and explanations Purchase of land made in the
provided to us , title deeds / lease deeds of March’2017 for new mines like Dinesh
all Land are held in the name of Company / O/C, Yekona O/C, Kolarpimpri extension
respective area except land of and New Sethia etc., for which
2126.30Hect. As explained, the compilation compilation of title deeds is under
of above title deeds of lands is under process.
process with Land and Revenue Further mutation of land acquired under
Department. Coal Mines (Nationalisation) Act 1972 as
Some of the title deeds / lease deeds for well as CBA Act 1950, does not arise in
land, buildng and moving rights are law as its right, title and interest remains
continue to be held in the name of Coal vested absolutely in the Central
India Limited and National Coal Government, which is on transfer,
Development Corporation Limited. exercised by WCL, a Govt. company.

The stock of coal has been physically verified at This being a statement of fact, closing
reasonable intervals by the management by stock of coal is measured volumetrically
adopting volumetric measures. The physical and converted to weight (tonne) by
verification of stock of coal as on 31.03.2017 applying the identified conversion factor.
has been done by a team appointed by Coal To take care of the inherent
India Lid. In accordance with Company's approximation error of volumetric
Policy.Due to approximate nature of the method measurement and subsequent
of measurement, no adjustment is made in the conversion thereof to weight by applying
books of accounts in case the difference a mathematically determined conversion
between books stock of coal and volumetrically factor, the variance of (+/-) 5% between
measured physical stock of coal is within (+/-) book stock and physical stock is ignored
5%, as per Accounting Policy of the
Company.
Physical verification of stock of stores & spares This being a statement of fact calls for no
as on 31st March 2017 of Regional Stores and .omments
Charged off Stores has been carried out by an
independent firm of Chartered Accountants /
Cost Accountants appointed for this purpose.

No material discrepancies are reported on such This being a statement of fact calls for no
physical verification. comments

According to the information and explanations This being a statement of fact calls for no
given to us, the Company has not granted any comments

loans, secured or unsecured to companies,

firms, Limited Liability Partnership or other

parties covered in the register maintained u/s

189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and

accordingly, Paragraph 3f(iii)(a), 3(iii))(b) and

3(iii)(c) of the Order are not applicable.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

AUDIT OBSERVATION MANAGEMENT REPLY

As per information and explanation given to us, This being a statement of fact calls for no
Company has not sanctioned any loans, comments
investments, guarantees and Security within

the provision of section 185 and 186 of
Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, Paragraph
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits This being a statement of fact calls for no
from the public. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of comments
the Order is not applicable.

Maintenance of cost records has been made The cost records as required by the
specified by the Central Government under notification are being maintained by
section 148(1) of the Act. As per information respective areas

and explanation provided to us, the required

accounts and records are being made and

maintained at respective Area offices. We

however have not made detailed examination

of such record.

(vii)(a)According to the information and explanations The company is regular in depositing the

given to us and on the basis of our statutory dues with the appropriate
examination of the records, the Company is authorities in time
generally regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues including Provident Fund,

Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Service Tax, Duty of

Customs, Duty Of Excise, Value Added Tax,

Cess and any other statutory dues with the

appropriate authorities applicable to the

company. As explained to us, the

employee’s state insurance is not applicable

to the company.

According to the information and explanation

given to us, no material undisputed arrears

of statutory dues were outstanding as on

31st March, 2017 for a period of more than

six months from the date they become

payable.

(b) According to information and explanations This being a statement of fact calls for no

given to us, there are no material dues of comments
duty of customs which have not been
deposited with appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute. However, according
to information and explanations given to us,
the dues of income tax, sales tax, duty of
excise, service tax and value added tax
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which have not been deposited by the
company on account of disputes and the
forum where the dispute is pending are given
in Annexure 1 attached herewith.

(viii) As per information and explanation given to us This being a statement of fact calls for no

Company does not have any loans or comments
borrowings from financial institutions, bank,
Government or any dues to Debenture holder

during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii)

of the Order is not applicable.

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way This being a statement of fact calls for no

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

of initial public offer or further public offer comments
(including debt instruments) and term loans

during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix)

of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations This being a statement of fact calls for no
given to us, no material fraud by the Company comments

or on the Company by its officers or

employees has been noticed or reported

during the course of our audit.

As per notification No. G.S.R. 463 (E). dated This being a statement of fact calls for no

5 June’ 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Comments

Affairs, Provisions of section 197 of
Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information This being a statement of fact calls for no
and explanations given to us, the Company is comments

not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph

3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

{xiii) According to the information and explanation This being a statement of fact calls for no

81}

given to us and based on our examination of comments
records, the Gompany has not entered into
any transactions with related parties during the
year except with state controlled enterprises
against which provisions of section 188 of
Companies Act 2013 is not applicable, being
Government Company as per Notification No. -
G.S.R. 463(E) dated 5th June’2015. Further,
under Ind AS 24 - Related Party
Disclosure,these transactions are exempted
and therefore no disclosure required.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



AUDIT OBSERVATION MANAGEMENT REPLY

(xiv) As per information and explanation given to us This being a statement of fact calls for no
and based on our examination of the records comments
of the Company, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fuly or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xv) According to the information and explanations This being a statement of fact calls for no
given to us and based on our examination of comments

the records of the Company, the Company has

not entered into any non-cash transactions

with directors or persons connected with him.

Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is

not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered This being a statement of fact calls for no
under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of comments
India Act, 1934.

For V. K. Surana & Co.
Chartered Accountants

CA. Sudhir Surana
Partner

Membership No. 43414
Firm Reg. No.: 110634W
Nagpur, May 25, 2016
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Name of
Statute

Central
Excise
Depart-
ment

Finance
Act

MVAT
Act

Central
Sales
Tax Act,
1956

Nature of
Dues

Central Excise
on Royalty &
SED

Cenvat Credit

Cenvat Credit

Service Tax

Sales Tax

Central Sales
Tax

Sales Tax

Annexure — 1
Statement of Disputed Statutory Dues referred to in clause (vii}(b)
Annexure 'B' of our report of even date in respect of
Western Coalfields Ltd., Nagpur.

Details of Disputed Liabilities are given below:-

Amount (%)

24,221,786,366

344,802,678

5,806,680
35,085,483
2,894,375,058
8,280,672

181,925,000
1,228,845,000

Periods to which
the amount
relates

2015-16

2016-17

2016-17
2015-16,2016-17
2016-17

2010-11

2011-12,2009-10,
2012-13 ,2006-07,
2007-08

Form where dispute
is Pending

CESTAT, Mumbai

CESTAT, Mumbai

Commissioner
(Appeals), Nagpur
Commissioner
(Appeals), Nagpur

CESTAT, Mumbai

Commissioner
(Appeals), Nagpur

AO, ST NAGPUR

Appellate Authority,
Nagpur

943,166,000 | 2005-06, 2008-09 MSTT, Mumbai
1,336,296 | 1998-99,2004-05,
5008-09 A.C, Jabalpur
37,244,697 | 2009-10,2013-14,  Addl. Comm.,
2014-15 Jabalpur
19,047,974 | 2010-11,2012-13, o
2013-14 Addl. Commissioner
44,481,992 | 2005-06,2006-07,
2007-08,2011-12  Appellate Board
i Appellate Board,
24,921,994 | 2012-13 Bhopal
746,280 | 2005-16 D.C. Chhindwara
626,518,000 2003-04,2006-
07,2007-08,2009-
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Name of
Statute

Bombay
Sales
Tax
Act,1959

Income
Tax Act

MP State
Govt.
Sales

Tax,
2002

Grand
Total

Nature of
Dues

Entry Tax

Sales Tax

Perks on
Income Tax

Central Sales Tax

Entry Tax

State Sales Tax

Amount (%)

416,902,000

59,000

83,661,000
345,137,000

22,156,000

5,391
2,580,187

1,521,271

522,401

41,580,689

33,781,778

1,412,016
31,567,688,903

Periods to which
the amount
relates

1989-90,1994-
95,1997-98,2002-
03,2004-05,2005-

06,2008-09

2003-04

1993-94,1994-
95,2001-02,2002-
03,2004-05

2000-01

2001-02,2004-
05,2005-06,1998-
99,2011-12,2012-
13

2004-05

2009-10

2001-02,2003-04,
2005-06,1998-99,
1986-87,2006-07,
2007-08,2008-09,
2009-10,2010- 11

2011-12,201213,
,2013-14,201445

2007-08,2008-09,
2009-10,2010-11,
2011-12,2012- 13,
2013-14,2006-07

2000-01,2004-05

Form where dispute
is Pending

MSTT, Mumbai

Sales Tax, Tribunal,
Nagpur

Appellate
Nagpur

Authority,

MSTT, Mumbai

ITAT, Nagpur

For revision With Dy
Comm. Bhopal

Appeal Dy. Comm.
Bhopal
Appellate Board,
Bhopal

Addl. Commissioner

Appeal
Bhopal

Dy. Comm.

Appellate Board

Appellate Board,
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ANNEXURE "C" TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT OF
WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2017

(As referred to in Paragraph 3 {g) of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
forming part of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of WESTERN COALFIELDS
LIMITED ('the Company') (A Subsidiary of Coal India Limited) as of 31 March 2017 in conjunction
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
The Internal Financials Controls over financial reporting audited by us incorporate the:-

a) 5Areas(Branches)audited by us, and
b) 11 Areas (Branches) audited by Area (Branch) Auditors

The reports of Branch Auditors have been furnished to us and have been appropriately dealt
with by us in preparing this report.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud orerror.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
onthe Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, orthat the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to 11Areas
(Branches), which are Areas (Branches) of the Company, is based on the corresponding reports of
the Area (Branch) auditors.

ForV.K.Surana & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.No.: 110634W

CA.Sudhir Surana
Partner

Membership No.43414
Nagpur, May 25,2017
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R - A 205, 2nd Floor, "HIMALAY A ENCLAVE”
amanl] Asawa 1. SHIVAIINAGAR, GANDHINAGAR SQUARE,
B.Com., IF.C.S. OPP. LAD COLLEGE, NORTH AMBAZAR] ROAD.
Company Secretary \ NAGPUR 440010.
Cell: 9423880361, 9422095636, 9422803662

Ph. No. 0712-2221217

e-mail: asawaramanujg@gmail.com
ramanuj.asawa@@gmail.com

Corporate Governance Certificate

To,

The Members,

Western Coalfields Limited
Coal Estate
Nagpur-440001

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Cerporate Governance by Western
Coalfields Limited for the vear ended 31" March 2017 as stipulated in the Guidelines on Corporate
Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSEs) issued by the Department of Public
Enterprises, Govt. of India , vide O M. No. 18(8)/2005- GM dated 14" May 2010.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management.
Our examination was limiled to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Campany for
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
we certify that the company has complied with the conditions {except & few which are under progress)
of Corporale Governance as slipulated in the above mentioned OM dated 14" May 2010.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of

the company.

RAMANU) ASAWA
{Company Secretary)
F.C.5. No. 3107
C.P.No. 1872

Place: Nagpur
Date: 30/06/2017
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. #205. 2nd Floor. “HIMALAYA ENCLAVE®
Raman uj Asawa [ SHIVAJINAGAR, GANDHINAGAR SQUARE.
BCom.ICS. OPP.LAD COLLEGE. NORTH AMBAZARI ROAD.
Company Secretary NAGPUR 440010.

Cellr 9423880361, 9422095636, 9422803662
Ph. No. 0712-2221217

e-mail: asawaramanuj@gmail.com
ramanuj.asawagdgmail.com

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended 31 Mareh 2017
(FORM NQO. MR-3)

[Pursuant 10 Scction 204(1) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remunceration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To.

{'he Members.

M/s Western Coallields Limited
Coal Fstawe

Nagpur-440001.

I have conducted the sceretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence (0 good corporate practices by Western Coalfields Limited, a Mini-Ratna PSU
(hereinalier called the ~Company™). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
apinion thereon,

Basced on my verification ol the Company's books. papers. minute books, forms and returns [1led and
other yecords maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company. ils
ollicers. agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secrelarial audit, | hereby report
that in my opinion. the Company has. during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31*
March 2017 ("Audit Period™). complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent. in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hercinalier:

I have examined the books. papers. minute hooks. Torms and retuns liled and other records
maintained by the Company lor the financial year ended on 317 March 2017 according 1o the
provisions of’

(i) The Companies Act. 2013 (the *Act™) and the rules made there under and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act. 1956 which are still in lorce:

(ity  The Sccurities Contracts (Regulation) Act. 1936 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there
under (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(iti)  The Depositories Act. 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Iramed there under (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(iv)  Foreign Lxchange Management Act. 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made therce
ander o the extent of Foreign Direet Investment. Overseas Direct Invesument and

External Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit

Period);
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(vy  The Sceurities and  Fxchange Board ol India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations. 1992:

(vi)  Other laws applicable (o the Company as per the representations made by the
Muanagement.

I have also examined compliance with the appitcable clauses of 1he Tollowing:

e Scerctarial Standard-1 and Seerctarind Standard-20 with respeet o Board and  General
Meetings respeetively, issued by The Institite o Company Sceretacies ol India.

During vhe peried under review the Company has complicd with the provisions ol the Act, Rules.
Regalanions, Guidelmes. Suandards. ctes mentioned above,

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors. Non-Executive Directors and Independent Dirvectors. The changes in the composition of the
Board ol Pirectors that ook place during the period under review were carried out in comphance with
the provisions ol the Act.

The Company has represented w Ministry of Coal. Government ol Indiac [or nominating Woman
Dirvector en the Board of Western Coalfields Limited,

Adequate notice is given w all directors 1o schedule the Board Meetings. agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were senta least seven davs inadvance. and a systen exists lor seehing and oblaining lurther
idormaion and  clarilications on the agenda items before the meeting and Tor meaninglul
participation at the meeting.

Al decisions ar Board Meetings and Commiiitee Meclings are carried ool unanimeusly.

1 further report that, there are adequate systems and processes i the company commensurate wiil
the size and operations of the Company e monitor and ensure compliance sith applicable laws, rules.
regulations and gnidelines.

3

RAMANUI ASAWA
(Company Secrelary)
.05 No. 3107

C. P No, 1872

Place: Nagpur
Date: 30/06/2017

MNote: This report is o be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure-A™ and

forms an integral part of this report,
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Annexure-A

To.

The Members,

M/s Western Coallields Limited
Coal Estate

Nagpur-440001.

My report of even date is 0 be read with this letter.

a. Mainlenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these seeretarial records based on my audit.

b. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that
the processes and practices | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

¢. 1 have not verilied the correctness and appropriateness ol financial records and Books of
Accounts ol the Company.

d. Where ever required, ‘| have obtained Management Representation about the compliance,
laws. rules and regulations and happening of events ete.

¢. The compliance of the provisions ol corporate and other applicable faws. rules. regulations.
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verilication
ol procedures on Lest basis.

[ The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as Lo the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

RAMANUJ ASAWA
(Company Secretary)
.C.S. No. 3107
C.P.No. 1872

Place: Nagpur
Date: 30/06/2017
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Under Jurisdiction of Nagpur Court Only”
WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED

(A Govt, of India Undertaking)
CIN : U10100MH1975G01018626 Website: weslerncoal.nic.in

Regd. Office: Coal Estate,Civil Lines, Tel/Fax: 0712-2511381/2510038
Nagpur-440001

To,
The Board of Directors,
CEQ AND CFQ CERTIFICATION

We, Chairman-Cum-Managing-Director and Director(Finance), responsible for the finance function
certify that:

a. We have reviewed the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on 317 March 2017
together with Accounting Policies and Additional Notes thereon as well as Financial Resuits fof the year
ending 31 March 2017 as per Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

I. These statements do not contain any materially uvntrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in
~ compliance with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered inte by the Company during the
year ended on 31" March 2017 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct,

¢. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting  and we
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial
reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committe, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which they are aware and the steps they have taken or
propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:
i} There has not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the
year under reference;

i) There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the period;However,
there were changes in measurement and recognition of certain income / expenses and assets /
liablities necessitated by implementation / transition to Ind AS w.e.f. 01.04.2015, which have been
adequately disclosed in appropriate places in Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the
Financial Statements and

iii) We have not become aware of any instance of significant fraud with |nvo|vemenl therein of the
management or an employee havmg a significant role in the Companys mternal control system over
financial reporlmg\

CA. S M.CBOUDHARY RAJTV R. MI\-YR/
Director{Finance} Chairman-Cum-Managing-Director
{DIN 07478302) {DIN 05103300}

Date: /05 /2017 ﬂ/ Y]/
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - OF WESTERN COALFIELDS LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017.

The preparation of financial statements of Western Coalfields Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2017 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the

management of the company. The statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and
| Auditor General of India under Section [39(5) ofthe. Actis responsiblelfor expressing
opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent
audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143 (10)
of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report/dated
25.05.17

[, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of [ndia, have conducted a
supplementary audit under section 143(6) (a) of the Act of the financial statements of
Western Coalfields Limited for the year ended 31 March 2017. This supplementary
audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the
statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and
company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.
On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would

give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

1, f

| NaE e
(Reena Sahay[.
Place: Kolkata Principal Qi/r_ec&oﬁC, mm[erc"fl Audit
Dated: |13 June 2017 & Ex-Officio Merr]b};‘;r| ‘éudi} 36ard-l
KolkataiL/ i

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17 | 92



WESTERN COAL FIELDS LIMITED

Company Statutory o[-0
Reports .. - " ']

Overview

WESTERN COALFIELDS LTD

( A Miniratna Company)

BALANCE SHEET
(T in Crore )
Note As at As at As at
Particulars No. 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
31.03.2017 (Restated) {Restated)
ASSETS
A. Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 3 3,538.59 3,072.91 2,058.87
(b) Capital Work in Progress 4 376.59 237.40 221.84
(c) Exploration and Evaluation Assets 5 300.41 259.99 197.27
(d) Cther Intangible Assets 6 9.99 9.99 9.99
(e) Financial Assets
{i) Loans 3.83 5.18 6.81
(i} Other Financial Assets 1,596.44 1,244.41 968.30
(f) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 806.24 520.88 484.13
(g) Other non-current assets 10 80.03 87.75 81.37
Total Non-Current Assets (A) 6,712.12 5,438.51 4,008.58
B. Current Assets
(a) Inventories 12 1,765.21 1,034.64 74712
(b} Financial Assets
(i) Investments 7 0.10 114.36 137.31
(i} Trade Recsivables 13 854.33 832.13 672.92
(i) Cash and Cash equivalents 14 57.15 402.06 853.09
{iv} Other Bank Balances 15 870.53 2,262.01 331722
{v) Other Financial Assets 9 610.88 188.85 354.56
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 926.56 871.90 818.40
(d) Other Current Assets 11 215.69 269.14 187.47
Total Current Assats (B) 5,300.45 5,975.09 7,088.09
Total Assets (A+B) 12,012.57 11,413.60 11,096.67
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(% in Crore )

Particulars Note As at As at As at
No. 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A. Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 16 297.10 297.10 297.10
(b) Other Equity 17 2,260.03 3,024.50 3,580.70
Equity attributable to equityholders of the company 2,557.13 3,321.60 3,877.80
Total Equity (A) 2,557.13 3,321.60 3,877.80
LIABILITIES
B.1 Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities 19 6.42 6.54 6.45
(b) Provisions 20 5,138.16 4,847.32 4,199.58
Total Non-Current Liabilities (B.1) 5,144.58 4,853.86 4,206.03
B.2 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 18 584.13 418.89 327.01
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 19 162.88 144.04 117.24
(b) Other Current Liabilities 21 2,254.59 1,648.09 1,510.34
(c) Provisions 20 1,309.26 1,027.12 1,058.25
Total Current Liabilities (B.2) 4,310.86 3,238.14 3,012.84
Total Liabilities (B=(B.1+B.2)) 9,455.44 8,092.00 7,218.87
Total Equity and Liabilities (A+B) 12,012.57 11,413.60 11,096.67
The accompanying notes form an integral part of Financial Statements.
CA B.K JHA RAMEHER CA S. M. CHOUDHARY RAJIV R. MISHRA

General Manager (Finance)

Date
Place

Company Secretary

: 25/05/2017

: Nagpur

Director (Finance)
(DIN 07478302)

Chairman-cum-Managing Director
(DIN 05103300)

As per our report of even date
FORV. K. SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN 110634W

CA. SUDHIR SURANA
PARTNER
(M.N0.43414 )
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WESTERN COALFIELDS LTD

( A Miniratna Company)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(R in Crore)
- Note For the Year Ended
Particulars N
0. 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Revenue from Operations 22
A Sales (including Excise Duty) 7,157.29 7,954.98
B Other Operating Revenue (including Excise Duty) 307.95 281.27
()  Revenue from Operations (A+B) 7,465.24 8,236.25
(1) Other Income 23 317.45 506.44
() Total Income (I+11) | 7,782.69 | | 8,742.69 |
(IV) EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 24 1,020.96 1,056.70
Change in Inventories of finished goods, Stock in trade 25 (695.84) (290.89)
and work-in-progress
Employee Benefits Expenses 26 5,006.13 4,583.68
Power & Fuel 303.25 327.85
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 27 10.81 65.27
Repairs 28 53.74 53.96
Contractual Expenses 29 1,179.75 1,001.83
Finance Costs 30 85.03 76.69
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 368.22 371.61
Provisions 31 269.50 18.41
Stripping Activity Adjustment 297.93 242.08
Other Expenses 32 439.26 330.86
Total Expenses (IV) | 8857.95| | 8,348.49 |
(V)  Profit/(loss) before Tax (IlI-IV) | (1,075.26) | 394.20 |
(VI) Tax expense 33
Current tax - 187.11
Deferred tax (285.36) (95.10)
Earlier year tax (12.88) 4.49
(VIl)  Profit/(loss) for the period from continuing operations
(V-VI) (777.02) 297.70
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Profit & Loss Continued.....

(% in Crore)
Particulars Note For the Year Ended
No. 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
(VIIl) Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations (0.01) (0.01)
(IX) Tax expense of discontinued operations - -
(X) Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations (after Tax) (0.01) (0.01)
(VIII-1X)
(X1)  Profit/(loss) for the Period (VII+X) | (777.03)| | 297.69 |
(Xm) Other Comprehensive Income 34
A. ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 19.21 110.81
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss 6.65 38.35
Total Other Comprehensive Income (XII) 12.56 72.46
(Xlll) Total Comprehensive Income for the period (X1+XIl)
(764.47) 370.15
(XIV) Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation):
(1) Basic (2,573.11) 1,245.88
(2) Diluted (2,573.11) 1,245.88
(XV) Earnings per equity share (for discontinued
operation):
(1) Basic o -
(2) Diluted - -
(XVI) Earnings per equity share (for discontinued &
continuing operation):
(1) Basic (2,573.11) 1,245.88
(2) Diluted (2,573.11) 1,245.88
The accompanying notes form an integral part of Financial Statements.
CA B.K JHA RAMEHER CA S. M. CHOUDHARY RAJIV R. MISHRA

General Manager (Finance)

Company Secretary

Director (Finance)
(DIN 07478302)

Chairman-cum-Managing Director
(DIN 05103300)

As per our report of even date
FOR V. K. SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN 110634W

CA. SUDHIR SURANA

Date :25/05/2017
Place : Nagpur

PARTNER

(M.No.43414 )
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WESTERN COALFIELDS LTD
( A Minlratna Company)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FORTHEYEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2017

A.EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Changes in

Balance as Equity share Balance as Balance as L Balance as
Equlty share
Particulars at capltal at at capital durin

01.04.2015 during the 31.03.2016 01.04.2016 p 9 31.03.2017

year the year
Equity Shares 297.10 - 29710 297.10 - 297.10

B. OTHER EQUITY
. General Retalned
Particulars Reserve Earnings Total

Balance as at 01.04.2015 1,210.13 2,279.72 3,489.85
Changes in accounting policy - 76.30 76.30
Prior Period Errors - 14.55 14.55
Restated balance as at 01.04.2015 1,210.13 2,370.57  3,580.70
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 370.15 37015
Dividends (including Dividend tax) - (926.35) (926.35)

Transfer to Retained Eamings - -

Transfer to General Reserve 1,014.83 (1,014.83) -

Balance as at 31.03.2016 2,224 96 799.54 302450
Balance as at 01.04.2016 2,224.96 799.54  3,024.50
Total Comprehensive Income for the period - (764.47)  (764.47)

Dividends (including Dividendtax) - .

Transfer to Retained Eamings - -

Transfer to General Reserve - -
Balance as at 31.03.2017 2,224.96 35.07 2,260.03

CA B.KJHA RAMEHER CA S. M. CHOUDHARY
General Manager (Finance)  Company Secretary Director (Finance)
(DIN ©07478302)

RAJIV R. MISHRA

Chairman-cum-Managing Director

(DIN 05103300)
As per our report of even date

FOR V. K. SURANA & CO

Chartered Accountants
FRN 110634W

Date :25/05/2017
Place : Nagpur
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WESTERN COALFIELDS LTD

( A Miniratna Company)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (INDIRECT METHOD)

(T in Crore )
Particulars For the Year Ended on
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Cash flow from operating activities
Total Comprehensive Income before tax (1056.05) 505.01
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 395.70 371.61
Interest Income (275.91) (332.86)
Dividend Received from Mutual Fund (4.24) (17.31)
Stripping Activity Adjustment 29793 242.08
Provisions made during the period 269.50 186.13
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Assets 1.22 (0.43)|
Operating profit before working capital changes (371.85) 954.23
Changes in assets and liabilities
Trade Receivables (284.05) (177.91)
Inventories (730.30) (287.72)
Loans, other financial assets and other assets (719.147) (752.00)
Trade payables, Other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions 1065.51 162.18
Cash generated from operations (1040.16) (101.22)
Direct Taxes paid (48.43) 310.67
Cash flow before Extraordinary ltems (1088.59) 209.45

Net cash flow from Operating Activities 1088.59 209.45

Cash Flow F I ting Activiti
Purchase of Fixed Assets (1048.06) (1163.47)
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 5.85 1.01
Proceeds/(Purchase) of Investments including Fixed Deposit and Mutual funds 1,505.74 1,078.16
Interest Received 275.91 332.86
Dividend Received from Mutual Fund 4.24 17.31

Net cash flow from investing activities 743.68 265.87
Cash Flow F Fi ing Activiti

Dividend Paid - (769.66)
Dividend Distribution Tax - (156.69)

Net cash used in Financing Activities - (926.35)
Net Increase/ Decrease in cash and cash Equivalents (344.91) (451.03)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning 402.06 853.09
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end 57.15 402.06
The accompanying notes form an integral part of Financial Statements.

CA B.K JHA RAMEHER CA S. M. CHOUDHARY RAJIV R. MISHRA

General Manager (Finance) = Company Secretary Director (Finance) Chairman-cum-Managing Director
(DIN 07478302) (DIN 05103300)

As per our report of even date
FOR V. K. SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN 110634W

CA. SUDHIR SURANA
Date :25/05/2017 PARTNER
Place : Nagpur (M.No.43414)
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Note: 1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Western Coalfields Limited (WCL), a Mini Ratna (Category-1) Company with headquarters at
Nagpur, Maharashtra, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Coal India Limited {CIL) listed on the Bombay
Stock Exchange (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange (NSE).

WCL came into existence after Nationalization of Coal Mines and was incorporated on 29th
October, 1975 upon take-over of assets and liabilities as at 1st November,1975 vested with the
Western Division of Coal Mines Authority Limited.

The Company is mainly engaged in mining and production of Coal and also operates Coal washery.
The major consumers of the company are power and steel sectors. Consumers from other sectors
include cement, fertilisers, brick kilns etc.

WCL is having 10 (Ten) coal producing Areas and 1 (one) service unit (Central Workshop) spread
over 2 states {Maharashtra & Madhya Pradesh} in India.

Note 2
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules,2015.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31stMarch 2016, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards (AS) notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
and in accordance with companies (Accounting Standards), Rules 2006. These financial
statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2017 are the first financial statements of the Company
prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer to Note no. 35.6 for information on first time adoption of
Ind AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis of measurement, except for

e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on
financialinstruments in para2.14);

e Defined benefit plans- plan assets measured atfair value;
e Inventories at Cost or NRV whichever is lower (refer accounting policy in parano.2.20).
2.1.1 Rounding of amounts

Amounts in these financial statements have, unless otherwise indicated, have been rounded off to
'rupees in crore' upto two decimal points.

2.2 Current and non-current Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current
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classification. An asset s treated as current by the company when:
(a) itexpectsto realise the asset, orintends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;
(b) itholdsthe asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) itexpectsto realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(d) the assetis cash or a cash equivalent (as defined in Ind AS 7) unless the asset is restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current by the Company when:
(a) itexpectsto settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;
(b) itholdsthe liability primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) theliability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(d) it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
2.3 Revenue recognition
2.3.1 Revenue from sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

(a) The company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

(b) The entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

(c) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
entity; and

(e) the costsincurredorto be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes, levies or duties collected on
behalf of the government/ other statutory bodies.

Advances received from the customers are reported as customer's deposits unless the above
conditions for revenue recognition are met.

However, based on the educational material on Ind AS 18 issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the company has assumed that recovery of excise duty flows to the company
on its own account. This is for the reason that it is a liability of the manufacturer which forms part of
the cost of production, irrespective of whether the goods are sold or not. Since the recovery of
excise duty flows to the company on its own account, revenue includes excise duty.

However, other taxes, levies or duties are not considered to be received by the company on its own
account and are excluded from net revenue.
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2.3.2Interest

Interestincome is recognised using the Effective Interest Method.

2.3.3 Dividend

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights to receive payment is established.
2.3.4 Other Claims

Other claims (including interest on delayed realization from customers) are accounted for, when
there is certainty of realisation and can be measured reliably.

2.3.5 Rendering of Services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably,
revenue associated with the transaction is recognised with reference to the stage of completion of
the transaction at the end of the reporting period. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated
reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(b) it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
company;

(c} the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be
measured raliably; and

(d) the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.

2.4 Grants from Government

Government Grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the company will
comply with the conditions attached to them and that there is reasonable certainty that grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are
intended to compensate.

Government Grants/assistance related to assets are presented in the balance sheet by setting up
the grant as deferred income and are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on systematic
basis over the useful life of asset.

Grants related to income (i.e. grant related to other than assets) are presented as part of statement
of profit or loss under the general heading 'Other Income".

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related
cost, is recognised in profit orloss of the period in which it becomes receivable.

The Government grants orin the nature of promoters contribution are recognised directly in “Capital
Reserve” which forms part of the “Shareholders fund”.

2.5 .eases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred.
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An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.
2.5.1 Company as alessee
Alease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.

2.5.1.1 Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
achieve a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the
Company's general policy on the borrowing costs.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

2.5.1.2 Operating lease

Lease payments under an operating lease is recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term unless either:

(a) another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit
even if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or

(b) the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary costincreases. If payments to the lessor
vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

2.5.2 Company as a lessor

Operating leases Lease income from operating leases (excluding amounts for services such as
insurance and maintenance) is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
unless either:

(a) another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which use benefit
derived from the leased asset is diminished, even if the payments to the lessors are not on
that basis;or

(b) the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the
lessor vary according to factors other than inflation, then this condition is not met. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the initial lease
term onthe same basis as lease income.

Finance leases : Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at
the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in
respect of the lease.

2.6 Non-current assets held for sale

The company classifies non-current assets and (or disposal groups) as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. Actions
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required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale
will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the
sale expected within one year from the date of classification.

For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-
current assets when the exchange has commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale
classification is regarded met only when the assets or disposal group is available forimmediate sale
in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets
(or disposal groups), its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The
company treats sale of the asset or disposal group to be highly probable when:

e The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal
group),
An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has beeninitiated

The asset (or disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable
in relation to its current fair value,

e The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification, and

e Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely those significant changes to
the plan will be made orthat the plan will be withdrawn.

2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Land is carried at historical cost. Historical cost includes expenditure which are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the land like, rehabilitation expenses, resettlement cost and compensation in
lieu of employment incurred for concerned displaced persons etc.

After recognition, an item of all other Property, plant and equipment are carried at its cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses under Cost Model. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

(a) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates.

(b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the mannerintended by management.

(c} the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site
on which it is located, the obligation for which an company incurs either when the item is
acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for
purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item depreciated separately. However, significant part(s) of an item of PPE having
same useful life and depreciation method are grouped together in determining the depreciation
charge.

Costs of the day to-day servicing described as for the ‘repairs and maintenance' are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the same are incurred.

Subsequent cost of replacing parts significant in relation to the total cost of an item of property, plant
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and equipment are recognised in the carrying amount of the item, if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company; and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognised in
accordance with the de-recognition policy mentioned below.

When major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of
property, plant and equipment as a replacement if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the company; and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous inspection (as distinct from physical
parts) is derecognised.

An item of Property, plant or equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from the continued use of assets. Any gain or loss arising on such de-
recognition of an item of property plant and equipment is recognised in profit and Loss.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, except freehold land, is provided as per cost model
on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the asset as follows:

Other Land (including : Life of the project or lease term whicheveris lower
lease hold land)

Building : 3-60years

Roads : 3-10years

Telecommunication : 3-9years

Railway Sidings : 15years

Plant and Equipment : 5-15years

Computers and Laptops : 3Years

Office equipment : 3-6years

Furniture and Fixtures : 8-10years

Vehicles : 8-10years

Site restoration costs : Life of the Mine

Other Mining Infrastructure : 20years or Life of project whicheveris lower

Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives given above best
represents the period over which the management expects to use the asset. Hence the useful lives
of the assets may be different from useful lives as prescribed under Part C of schedule Il of
companies act, 2013.

The estimated useful life of the assets is reviewed at the end of each financial year.

The residual value of Property, plant and equipment considered as 5% of the original cost of the
asset except some items of assets such as, Coal tub, winding ropes, haulage ropes, stowing pipes
& safety lamps etc. for which the technically estimated useful life has been determined to be one
year with nil residual value. In case of High volume respiratory dust samplers the technically
estimated useful life has been determined to be three year.

Depreciation on the assets added / disposed of during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with
reference to the month of addition / disposal.
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Value of “Other Lands” includes land acquired under Coal Bearing Area (Acquisition &
Development){CBA) Act, 1957, Land Acquisition Act, 1894, Right to Fair Compensation and
Transparency in Land Acquisition, Rehabilitation and Resettlement (RFCTLAAR) Act, 2013, Long
term transfer of government land etc, which is amortised on the basis of the balance life of the
project, and in case of Leasehold land such amortisation is based on lease period or balance life of
the project whichever is lower.

Fully depreciated assets, retired from active use are disclosed separately as surveyed off assets at
its residual value under Property, plant Equipment and are tested forimpairment.

Capital Expenses incurred by the company on construction/development of certain assets which
are essential for production, supply of goods or for the access to any existing Assets of the
company are recognised as Enabling Assets under Property, Plant and Equipment.

Transition tolnd AS

The company elected to continue with the carrying value as per cost model for all of its property,
plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind
ASs, measured as per the previous GAAP.

2.8 Mine Closure, Site Restoration and Decommissioning Obligation

The company's obligation for land reclamation and decommissioning of structures consists of
spending at both surface and underground mines in accordance with the guidelines from Ministry
of Coal, Government of India. The company estimates its obligation for Mine Closure, Site
Restoration and Decommissioning based upon detailed calculation and technical assessment of
the amount and timing of the future cash spending to perform the required work. Mine Closure
expenditure is provided as per approved Mine Closure Plan. The estimates of expenses are
escalated for inflation, and then discounted at a discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks, such that the amount of provision reflects the
present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The company
records a corresponding asset associated with the liability for final reclamation and mine closure.
The obligation and corresponding assets are recognised in the period in which the liability is
incurred. The asset representing the total site restoration cost (as estimated by Central Mine
Planning and Design Institute Limited) as per mine closure plan is recognised as a separate item in
PPE and amortised over the balance project/mine life.

The value of the provision is progressively increased over time as the effect of discounting unwinds;
creating an expense recognised as financial expenses.

Further, a specific escrow fund account is maintained for this purpose as per the approved mine
closure plan. The progressive mine closure expenses incurred on year to year basis forming part of
the total mine closure obligation is initially recognised as receivable from escrow account and
thereafter adjusted with the obligation in the year in which the amount is withdrawn after the
concurrence of the certifying agency.

2.9 Exploration and Evaluation Assets

Exploration and evaluation assets comprise capitalised costs which are attributable to the search
for coal and related resources, pending the determination of technical feasibility and the
assessment of commercial viability of an identified resource which comprises inter alia the
following:
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researching and analysing historical exploration data;

gathering exploration data through topographical, geo chemical and geo physical studies;
exploratory drilling, trenching and sampling;

determining and examining the volume and grade of the resource;

surveying transportation and infrastructure requirements;
Conducting market and finance studies.

The above includes employee remuneration, cost of materials and fuel used, payments to
contractors etc.

As the intangible component represents an insignificant/indistinguishable portion of the overall
expected tangible costs to be incurred and recouped from future exploitation, these costs along with
other capitalised exploration costs are recorded as exploration and evaluation asset.

Exploration and evaluation costs are capitalised on a project by project basis pending determination
of technical feasibility and commercial viability of the project and disclosed as a separate line item
under non-current assets. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
impairment/provision.

Once proved reserves are determined and development of mines/project is sanctioned, exploration
and evaluation assets are transferred to “Development” under capital work in progress. However, if
proved reserves are not determined, the exploration and evaluation asset is derecognised.

2.10 Development Expenditure

When proved reserves are determined and development of mines/project is sanctioned, capitalised
exploration and evaluation cost is recognised as assets under construction and disclosed as a
component of capital work in progress under the head “Development”. All subsequent development
expenditure is also capitalised. The development expenditure capitalised is net of proceeds from
the sale of coal extracted during the development phase.

Commercial Operation

The project/mines are brought to revenue; when commercial readiness of a project/mine to yield
production on a sustainable basis is established either on the basis of conditions specifically stated
in the project report or on the basis of the following criteria:

(a) From beginning of the financial year immediately after the year in which the project achieves
physical output of 25% of rated capacity as per approved project report, or

(b) 2years oftouching of coal, or

(c) From the beginning of the financial year in which the value of production is more than total,
expenses.

Whichever event occurs first;

On being brought to revenue, the assets under capital work in progress are reclassified as a
component of property, plant and equipment under the nomenclature “Other Mining Infrastructure”.
Other Mining Infrastructure are amortised from the year when the mine is brought under revenue in
20 years or working life of the project whichever is less.
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2.11 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Followinginitial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
(calculated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives) and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised.
Instead, the related expenditure is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is not amortised but is tested forimpairment at each
reporting date

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss

Explcration and Evaluation assets attributable to blocks identified for sale or proposed to be sold to
outside agencies (i.e. for blocks not earmarked for CIL) are however, classified as Intangible Assets
and tested forimpairment.

Cost of Software recognized as intangible asset, is amortised on straight line method over a period
of legal right to use or three years, whichever is less; with a nil residual value.

2.12 impairment of Assets (other than financial assets)

The company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the group estimates the recoverable amount of
the asset. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Company considers individual mines as separate cash generating units
for the purpose of test of impairment

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated o be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.13 Investment Property

Property {land or a building or part of a building or both) held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both, rather than for, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
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administrative purposes; or sale in the ordinary course of businesses are classified as investment
property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives.

2.14 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

2.14.1 Financial assets
2.14.1 Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded
atfair value through profit or loss, plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the corpany commits to purchase or sell the asset.

2.14.2 Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debtinstruments at amortised cost

e Debtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debtinstruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
2.14.2.1 Debt instruments at amortised cost

A'debtinstrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

2.14.2.2 Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A'debtinstrument'is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.
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Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to Profit and Loss. Interest
earned whilst holding FVTOCI debtinstrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

2.14.2.3 Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting
mismatch'). The company has not designated any debtinstrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized inthe P&L.

2.14.2.4 Equity investments in subsidiaries, associates and Joint Ventures

In accordance of Ind AS 101 (First time adoption of Ind AS), the carrying amount of these
investments as per previous GAAP as on the date of transition is considered to be the deemed cost.
Subsequently Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are measured at cost.

2.14.2.5 Other Equity Investment
All other equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

For all other equity instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such election on
an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCIl. There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the
cumulative gain orloss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Profitand Loss.

2.14.2.6 De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from balance sheet) when:

e Therightstoreceive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e Thecompany has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through' arrangement» and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
company could be required to repay.

2.14.2.7 Impairment of financial assets (other than fair value)

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt, securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI
c) LeasereceivablesunderindAS 17

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

The company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
e Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
e Alllease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition.

2.14.3 Financial liabilities
2.14.3.1 Initial recognition and measurement

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

2.14.3.2 Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
2.14.3.3 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the company

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17 | 110



(;‘» Company Statutory Fllumhl
"/ WESTERN COAL FIELDS LIMITED Overview Reports -

that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own
credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L.
However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in
fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

2.14.3.4 Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, these are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

2.14.3.5 Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a
financial liability) extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, shall be recognised in profit or loss.

2.14.4 Reclassification of financial assets

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model
are expected to be infrequent. The company's senior management determines change in the
business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the company's
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs
when the company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations.
If the group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(includingimpairment gains or losses) or interest.
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The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for

Original Revised Accounting treatment
Classification Classification
Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date.

Difference between previous amortized cost and
fair value is recognised in P&L.

FVTPL Amortised Cost  Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated
based on the new gross carrying amount.

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost and
fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR
due to reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortised cost  Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new amortised cost carrying amount. However,
cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against
fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured
as if it had always been measured at amortised

cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new carrying amount. No other adjustment is
required.

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.

Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification
date.

2.14.5 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.15 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are expensed as and when incurred except where they are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets i.e. the assets that necessarily takes
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use, in which case they are capitalised as part
of the cost of those asset up to the date when the qualifying asset is ready forits intended use.

2.16Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (tax
loss) for a period. Taxable profit differs from “profit before income tax” as reported in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the company is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting year and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

2.17 Employee Benefits

2.17.1 Short-term Benefits

All short term employee benefits are recognized in the period in which they are incurred.
2.17.2 Post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits

2.17.2.1 Defined contributions plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan for Provident fund and Pension under
which the company pays fixed contribution into fund maintained by a separate statutory body (Coal
Mines Provident Fund) constituted under an enactment of law and the company will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
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plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss in the
periods during which services are rendered by employees.

2.17.2.2 Defined benefits plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
Gratuity, leave encashment are defined benefit plans (with ceilings on benefits). The company's net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return of their service in the current and prior periods. The benefit is
discounted to determine its present value and reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if any. The
discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the
reporting date that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the company's obligations and
that are denorinated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The application of actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rate, expected
rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates etc. Due to the long term nature of
these plans, such estimates are subject to uncertainties. The calculation is performed at each
balance sheet by an actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in
to the benefit to the company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of the economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reduction in future contributions
to the plan. An economic benefit is available to the company if it is realisable during the life of the
plan, or on settlement of plan liabilities.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gain and losses
considering the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effects of the assets ceiling (if
any, excluding interest) are recognised immediately in the other comprehensive income. The
company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset)
for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account
any changes in the net defined benéfit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognised in profit and loss.

When the benefits of the plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past
service by employees is recognised as expense immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

2.17.3 Other Employee benefits

Certain other employee benefits namely benefit on account of LTA, LTC, Life Cover scheme, Group
personal Accident insurance scheme, settlement allowance, post-retirement medical benefit
scheme and compensation to dependents of deceased in mine accidents etc., are also recognised
on the same basis as described above for defined benefits plan. These benefits do not have specific
funding.

2.18 Foreign Currency

The company's reported currency and the functional currency for majority of its operations is in
Indian Rupees (INR) being the principal currency of the economic environment in which it operates.

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into the reported currency of the company using
the exchange rate prevailing at the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies outstanding at the end of the reporting period are translated at the exchange
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rates prevailing as at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary assets and liabilities or on translating monetary assets and liabilities at rates different
from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous
financial statements are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are valued at the exchange rates prevailing
on the date of transactions.

2.19 Stripping Activity Expense/Adjustment

In case of opencast mining, the mine waste materials (“overburden”) which consists of soil and rock
on the top of coal seam is required to be removed to get access to the coal and its extraction. This
waste removal activity is known as 'Stripping'. In opencast mines, the company has to incur such
expenses over the life of the mine (as technically estimated).

Therefore, as a policy, in the mines with rated capacity of one million tonnes per annum and above,
cost of Stripping is charged on technically evaluated average stripping ratio (OB:COAL) at each
mine with due adjustment for stripping activity asset and ratio-variance account after the mines are
brought to revenue. Net of balances of stripping activity asset and ratio variance at the Balance
Sheet date is shown as Stripping Activity Adjustment under the head Non - Current Provisions /
Non-Current Assets as the case may be.

The reported quantity of overburden as per record is considered in calculating the ratio for OBR
accounting where the variance between reported quantity and measured quantity is within the
lower of the two alternative permissible limits, as detailed hereunder :

Annual Quantum of OBR Permissible limits of variance
of the Mine I Il
% Quantum (in Mill. Cu. Mtr.)
Less than 1 Mill. CUM ik 53/0 ggg
Between 1 and 5 Mill. CUM +- 3% :
More than 5 Mill. CUM +/- 2% NIL

However, where the variance is beyond the permissible limits as above, the measured quantity is
considered.

In case of mines with rated capacity of less than one million tonne, the above policy is not applied
and actual cost of stripping activity incurred during the year is recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

2.20 Inventories
2.20.1 Stock of Coal

Inventories of coal/coke are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories are
calculated using the First in First out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price forinventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Book stock of coal is considered in the accounts where the variance between book stock and
measured stock is upto +/- 5% and in cases where the variance is beyond +/- 5% the measured
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stock is considered. Such stock are valued at net realisable value or cost whichever is lower. Coke is
considered as a part of stock of coal.

Coal & coke-fines are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value and considered as a part of
stock of coal.

Slurry (coking/semi-coking), middling of washeries and by products are valued at net realisable
value and considered as a part of stock of coal.

2.20.2 Stores & Spares

The Stock of stores & spare parts (which also includes loose tools) at central & area stores are
considered as per balances appearing in priced stores ledger and are valued at cost calculated on
the basis of weighted average method. The inventory of stores & spare parts lying at collieries / sub-
stores / drilling camps/ consuming centres are considered at the year end only as per physically
verified stores and are valued at cost.

Provisions are made at the rate of 100% for unserviceable, damaged and obsolete stores and
spares and at the rate of 50% for stores & spares not moved for 5 years.

2.20.3 Other Inventories

Workshop jobs including work-in-progress are valued at cost. Stock of press jobs (including work in
progress) and stationary at printing press and medicines at central hospital are valued at cost.

However, Stock of stationery (other than lying at printing press), bricks, sand, medicine (except at
Central Hospitals) and scraps are not considered in inventory considering their value not being
significant.

2.21 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not wholly
within the control of the company, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, when the realisation of
income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is
appropriate.

2.22 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per shares is computed by
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dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per shares and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have
beenissued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.23 Judgements, Estimates and Assumplions

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to
make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of financial statements and the amount of revenue and expenses during the
reported period. Application of accounting policies involving complex and subjective judgements
and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed. Accounting
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimate are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and, if material, their
effects are disclosedin the notes to the financial statements.

2.23.1 Judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

2.23.1.1 Formulation of Accounting Policles

Accounting policies are formulated in a manner that result in financial statements containing
relevant and reliable information about the transactions, other events and conditions to which they
apply. Those policies need not be applied when the effect of applying them is immaterial.

In the absence of an Ind AS that specifically applies to a transaction, other event or condition,
management has used its judgement in developing and applying an accounting policy that results
ininformation that is:

a) relevanttothe economic decision-making needs of users and
b) reliableinthatfinancial statements:

(I) represent faithfully the financial position, financial perfformance and cash flows of the
entity; (i) reflect the economic substance of transactions, other events and conditions,
and not merely the legal form; (iii) are neutral, i.e. free from bias; (iv) are prudent; and (v)
are complete in all material respects on a consistent basis

In making the judgement management refers to, and considers the applicability of, the following
sources in descending order:

(a) TherequirementsinInd ASs dealing with similar and relatedissues; and

(b) The definitions, recognition criteria and measurement concepts for assets, liabilities,
income and expenses in the Framework.

In making the judgement, management considers the most recent pronouncements of
International Accounting Standards Board and in absence thereof those of the other standard-
setting bodies that use a similar conceptual framework to develop accounting standards, other
accounting literature and accepted industry practices, to the extent that these do not conflict with
the sources in above paragraph.
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The company operates in the mining sector (a sector where the exploration, evaluation,
development production phases are based on the varied topographical and geo-mining terrain
spread over the lease period running over decades and prone to constant changes), the accounting
policies whereof have evolved based on specific industry practices supported by research
committees and approved by the various regulators owing to its consistent application over the last
several decades. In the absence of specific accounting literature, guidance and standards in certain
specific areas which are in the process of evolution. The Company continues to strive to develop
accounting policies in line with the development of accounting literature and any development
therein shall be accounted for prospectively as per the procedure laid down above more particularly
inInd AS 8.

The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis using accrual basis of accounting.
2.23.1.2 Materiality

Ind AS applies to items which are material. Management uses judgment in deciding whether
individual items or groups of item are material in the financial statements. Materiality is judged by
reference to the size and nature of the item. The deciding factor is whether omission or misstatement
could individually or collectively influence the economic decisions that users make on the basis of
the financial statements. Management also uses judgement of materiality for determining the
compliance requirement of the Ind AS. In particular circumstances either the nature or the amount of
an item or aggregate of items could be the determining factor. Further an entity may also be required
to present separately immaterial items when required by law.

2.23.1.3 Operating lease

Company has entered into lease agreements. The Company has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting
a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the
contracts as operating leases.

2.23.2 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

2.23.2.1 Impairment of non-financial assets

There is an indication of impairment if, the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Company considers individual mines as separate cash generating units for the
purpose of test of impairment. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash
flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities
that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the
asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount
rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
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extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to other mining infrastructures. The key
assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUSs, are disclosed and
further explainedin respective notes.

2.23.2.2Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

2.23.2.3 Defined benefitplans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates.

Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the
appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates
of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables of the country. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases
and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rate.

2.23.2 .4 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using generally
accepted valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility and other relevant input /considerations. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

2.23.2.5 Intanglble asset under development

The Company capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management's judgement that
technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a project report is formulated and
approved.

2.23.2.6 Provision for Mine Closure, Site Restoration and Decommissioning Obligation

In determining the fair value of the provision for Mine Closure, Site Restoration and
Decommissioning Obligation, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates,
the expected cost of site restoration and dismantling and the expected timing of those costs. The
Company estimates provision using the DCF method considering life of the project/mine based on
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e Estimated cost per hectare as specified in guidelines issued by ministry of Coal,
Government of India.

e The discount rate (pre tax rate) that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability.

2.24 Abbreviation used:

AT T SQ@T0QR0 T

CGU
DCF
FVTOCI
FVTPL
GAAP
Ind AS
OClI
P&L
PPE
SPPI
EIR

Cash Generating Unit

Discounted Cash Flow

Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
Fair Value Through Profit & Loss
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
Indian Accounting Standards

Other Comprehensive Income

Profit and Loss

Property, Plant and Equipment

Solely Payment of Principal and Interest
Effective Interest Rate
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NOTESTOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 3:PROPERTY,PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

3.1
3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Building includes Water supply, roads and culverts.

Land Reclamation/ Site Restoration Costs is the asset representing the total cost as per
mine closure plan, estimated by CMPDIL. During the current year the company has
restated the accounts as on 01/04/2015 and 31/03/2016 whereby, the mine closure
expenses are capitalised as ‘site restoration asset’ in conformity with Ind AS - 16, as a result
T 608.76 crores (net) is capitalized with corresponding provision for mine closure. As a
result of this change in method, the mine closure provision upto 31/03/15, are reversed and
depreciation on site restoration & unwinding of interest upto that date is charged to restated
retained earnings having netimpact of ¥ 3.85 crores.

Other Mininig Infrastructure consists of Development and Prospecting boring activity
assets for mines which are brought to revenue.

Others includes fixed assets taken over by Company from Western Division of Coal Mines
Authority of India Ltd, vested consequent to nationalisation of Coal Mines, appearing as
“Assets taken over on Nationalisation” stood depreciated in the course of earlier years and
are appearing in accounts at a total residual value of ¥ 0.01 crore only

Company took over various assets from the Coal Mines Labour Welfare Organisation (since
repealed) situated at various locations and Coal Mines Rescue Station at Pench, in the
years 1984 and 1986 respectively, consequent to decision by Government of India. These
Assets have not been incorporated in the Accounts pending finalisation of purchase
consideration thereof by the Central Government. Accounting adjustment would be made
onfinal determination

DFD Plant and CBE Plant continue to remain inoperative during the year. Leasehold Land
of DFD Plant is being amortized over the lease period of 30 years. Other assets of both
these plants are carried in the books at a residual value of 5% of their cost.

Cost of Asset as well as provision for depreciation on final Surveyed off Assets(Grounded
off) are taken out of the Gross Block and provision for depreciation respectively and the
residual value at 5% of Book Value are shown as a separate line item as Surveyed off
assets. In case of premature survey off, the difference between the WDV and residual value
of 5% is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss, as loss on surveyed off assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 : CAPITAL WIP
(X in Crore)

Plant and Railway Development Others Total

Particulars Building Equipments Sidin gs

Gross Carrylng Amount:

As at 1% April 2015 14.07 10.83 - 166.59 30.35 221.84
Additions 28.99 15.29 0.02 30.31 85.02 159.63
Capitalisation/ Deletions (15.17) {17.50) - {25.83) (85.46) {143.96)
As at 31" March 2016 27.89 8.62 0.02 171.07 29.91 237.51
As at 1 April 2016 27.89 8.62 0.02 171.07 28.91 237.51
Additions 45.61 26.37 2.38 106.06 67.60 248.02
Capitalisation/ Dsletions (8.71) (4.81) (0.09) {26.44) (68.79) {108.84)
As at 31* March 2017 64.79 30.18 2.1 250.69 28.72 376.69

Provislon and Impalrment
As at 1 April 2015 - - - - - -

Charge for the year - - - - 0.05 0.05
Impairment - - - 0.01 0.05 0.06
Delstions/Adjustments - - - - - -
As at 31" March 2016 - - - 0.01 0.10 0.11
As at 1% April 2016 - - - 0.01 0.10 0.11
Charge for the year - - - - 0.02 0.02
Impairment - - - - 0.01 0.01
Deletions/Adjustments - - - - {0.04) {0.04)
As at 31* March 2017 - - - 0.01 0.09 0.10
Net Carrylng Amont
As at 31* March 2017 64.79 30.18 2.31 25068 2863 376.59
As at 31* March 2016 27.89 8.62 0.02 171.06 29.81 237.40
As at 1% April 2015 14.07 10.83 - 166.59 30.35 221.84
Reconciliation of Carrying value as per Ind AS and Previous GAAP as on 01.04.2015
Plant and Railway

Bullding et Sidings Development Others Total
Gross Carrylng Amount:
As at 1% April 2015 14.11 18.80 - 166.59 31.60 231.10
Provision and Impairment
As at 1% April 2015 0.04 7.97 - - 1.25 9.26
Net Carrying Amount 14.07 10.83 - 166.59 30.35 221.84

4.1 Building includes Water supply, roads and culverts.

4.2 Others includes Plant and Equipments in stores and spare parts of capital items

4.3 Provision Equivalent to Depreciation has been provided on Plant & Machinery lying in Stores (Pending
capitalisation) for more than three years. The resultantimpact in currentyearis¥0.02 (% 0.05 Crores)

4.4 Inventory of Steel, Cement, Cables, Conveyors, ete. lying at year end are forming part of Capital Work-In-Progress.

4.5 Provision for Non-moving Capital Stores & Spares, not moved for 5 years is made as per company's accounting
policy @ 50% and @ 100% for unserviceable, damaged and obsolete obsolete stores. During the current year an
additional provision to the tune of ¥0.01 crores has been made.
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5.1

NOTE 5 : EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

(X in Crore)

Particulars

Total

Gross Carrying Amount:
As at 1% April 2015
Additions
Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31* March 2016

As at 1 April 2016
Additions
Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31% March 2017

Provision and Impairment
As at 1 April 2015

Charge for the year
Impairment
Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31**March 2016

As at 1% April 2016
Charge for the year
Impairment
Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31% March 2017

Net Carrying Amount
As at 31st March 2017
As at 31**March 2016
As at 1% April 2015

Reconciliation of Carrying value as per Ind AS and
Previous GAAP as on 01.04.2015

Gross Carrying Amount:
As at 1 April 2015
Provision and Impairment
As at 1 April 2015

Net Carrying Amount

Exploration and Evaluation Assets comprise capitalised costs which are attributable to the search for coal and
related resources, the determination of technical feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of an

identified resource.

197.27
62.72

259.99

259.99
51.32
(10.90)

300.41

300.41
259.99
197.27

Exploration and
Evaluation Costs

197.27

197.27
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NOTE 6 : OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

€ in Crore)

Particulars

Coal Blocks Meant for
sale

Gross Carrylng Amount:
As at 1% April 2015
Additions
Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31" March 2016

As at 1% April 2016
Additions
Deletions/Adjustments
As at 31" March 2017

Amortisation and Impairment
As at 1% April 2015

Charge for the year

Impairment
Deletions/Adjustments

As at 31* March 2016

As at 1% April 2016
Charge for the year
Impairment
Deletions/Adjustments
As at 31" March 2017

Net Carrying Amont
As at 31" March 2017
As at 31 March 2016
As at 1** Aprll 2015

Reconciliation of Carrying value as per Ind
AS and Previous GAAP as on 01.04.2015

Gross Carrying Amount:

9.99

9.99

9.99
9.99
9.99

Coal Blocks Meant
for sale

As at 1* April 2015 9.99
Provislon and Impalrment

As at 1%April 2015 -
Net Carrying Amount 9.99
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NOTE -7 : INVESTMENTS (in Crore)

Number of NAV As at As at As at
units current

Particulars year/ (previous  (In%) 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
year)
CURRBRENT
Mutual Fund Investment
UTI Mutual Fund 228 1,019.45 0.02 0.05 0.05
(450)
SBI Mutual Fund 314 1,003.25 0.03 60.66 86.13
(604,618)
Canara Robeco Mutual Fund 115 1,005.50 0.01 2.93 19.01
(29,112)
Union KBC Mutual Fund 176 1,000.65 0.02 0.01 0.02
(148)
BOI AXA Mutual Fund 158 1,002.65 0.02 50.71 0.01
(505,756)
Investments in Govt. Securities
8.5% Tax Free Special Bonds (Fully Paid up)
(On securitisation of Trade Receivables Major
State-wise Break-up)
Maharashtra - - 19.70
Madhya Pradesh - - 12.39
Total : 0.10 114.36 137.31
Aggregate of Quoted Investment: - - -
Aggregate of unquoted investments: 0.10 114.36 137.31

Market value of Quoted Investment: - - -
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments: - - -

NOTE - 8 : LOANS

R in Crore)
Particulars As at As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
NON CURRENT
Loans to Employees
- Secured, considered good 3.83 5.18 6.81
- Unsecured, considered good - - -
- Doubtful - - -
3.83 5.18 6.81
Less: Provision for doubtful loans - - -
3.83 5.18 6.81
TOTAL 3.83 5.18 6.81
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NOTE - 9 : OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

{@in Crore)
As at As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
NON CURRENT

Bank deposits 56.77 - -
Deposits with bank under

- Mine Closure Plan 1,537.19 1,242.20 967.72
Receivable from Escrow Account
for Mine Closure Expenses 2.48 2.21 0.58
TOTAL 1,596.44 1,244.41 968.30

CURRENT

Surplus Fund with CIL 25.93 13.42 177.46
Interest accrued an

- Investments 0.68 205

- Bank Deposits 10.16 54.53 96.66
Claims receivables (refer note 9.1) 555.29 99.75 65.15
Less : Provision for doubtful claims 14.01 541.28 5.91 93.84 6.04 59.11
Other receivables (refar nots 9.2} 33.60 2647 19.37
Less : Provision for doubtful claims 0.09 33.51 0.09 26.38 0.09 19.28
TOTAL 610.88 188.85 354.56

9.1 Claims recievables includes arrears towards Distric Mineral Foundation cess (DMF) of T468.48 crores, to be

collected from the customers.

9.2 Other receivables includes Subsidy receivable for stowing and protective works ¥19.37 crores and other

recoverables T 14.23 crores.

NOTE 10 : OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

X in Crore)
Particulars As at As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
(i) Capital Advances 1.91 3.53 0.97
Less : Provision for doubtful advances 0.91 0.91 0.92
1.00 2.62 0.05
(li) Advances other than capital advances
{a) Security Deposit for utilities 80.12 86.22 82.41
Less :Provision for doubtful deposits 1.09 1.09 1.09
79.03 85.13 81.32
TOTAL 80.03 87.75 81.37
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NOTE -11 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

R in Crore)
Particulars As at As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
(a) Advance for Revenue 16.57 14.34 9.70
Less : Provision for doubtful advances 1.35 1.51 1.98
15.22 12.83 7.72
(b) Advance to Employees 4.96 72.54 94.33
Less : Provision for doubtful advances 0.11 0.12 0.10
4.85 72.42 94.23
(c) Advance- Others (refer note 11.1) 109.97 110.56 40.05
Less : Provision for doubtful claims 1.31 1.31 1.31
108.66 109.25 38.74
(d) Deposits- Others (refer note 11.2) 12.15 14.01 6.49
Less: Provision - - -
12.15 14.01 6.49
(e) CENVAT / VAT Credit receivable 63.13 49.24 31.56
(f) Prepaid Expenses 11.68 11.39 8.73
TOTAL 215.69 269.14 187.47
11.1 Advance others includes payment made to land owners for land but possesion is not taken yet.
11.2 Payment under protest ¥ 12.11 crores to sales tax authorities is included in deposit others.
NOTE - 12 : INVENTORIES
( As taken, valued and certified by the Management)
(¥ in Crore)
Particulars As at As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
(a) Stock of Finished Goods (Lower of Cost and NRV)
Stock of Coal - Revenue Mines 1,649.52 957.53 661.50
-Development Mines 32.15 - 6.99
1,681.67 957.53 668.49
Less : Provision 0.01 0.01 0.01
Stock of Coal (Net) 1,681.66 957.52 668.48
(b) Stock of Stores & Spares (at cost) 73.41 71.49 68.87
Add: Stores-in-transit 4.38 3.99 9.78
Less : Provision (refer note 12.1) 14.12 14.39 14.19
Net Stock of Stores & Spares (at cost) 63.67 61.09 64.46
(c) Workshop Jobs:
Work-in-progress and Finished Goods 21.33 17.48 15.63 -
Less: Provision 1.45 1.45 1.45
Net Stock of Workshop Jobs 19.88 16.03 14.18
1,765.21 1,034.64 747.12

12.1 Provision- Stores: As per accounting policy provisions are made at the rate of 100% for unservisceable, damaged
and obsolete stores and spares and at the rate of 50% for stores and spares not moved for Syears
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ANNEXURE TO NOTE - 12

(Qty in '000 tonnes) ( value in crores)

® in Crore)
Reconciliation of closing stock adopted in Account with Book stock as at the end of the year: Table:A
31.03.2017
OVERALL STOCK NON-VENDABLE STOCK VENDABLE STOCK
Qty. Value Qty. Value Oty. Value
1. {A) Opening stock as on 01.04.16 8,060.98 957.53 8,060.98 0957.53
{ B) Adjustment in Cpening Stock - - - - - -
2. Production for the year 45,713.63 7.911.66 - - 45,713.63 7,911.66
3. Sub-Total { 1+2) 53,774.61 8,888.19 - - B3,774.61 8,888.19
4.  Off- Take for the year :
(A) Oulside Despalch 39,366.82  7,157.20 - - 30,366.82 7.157.29
(B) Goal feed to Washaries 79.10 9.1 - - 79.10 9.1
(G) Own Consumption 4.94 1.24 - - 4.94 1.24
(D) Development despatch 123.98 19.88 123.98 19.88
TOTAL(A) 39,5674.84 7,187.52 - - 39,5674.84 7,187.62
5. Darived Stock 14,199.77 1,681.67 - - 14,198.77 1,681.67
6. Measured Stock 18,878.17 1640.84 - - 13,878.17 1640.84
7. Differencs (5-6) 321.60 40.83 - - 321.60 40.83
8. PBreak-up of Diffarence:
(A) Excoss within 5% 28.88 2.30 - - 26.88 2.30
(B) Shortage within 5% 350.48 43.13 - - 350.48 43.13
(C ) Excess beyond 5% - - - - - -
(D ) Shortage beyond 5% - - - - - -
9. Closing stock adopted 14,199.77 1,681.67 - - 14,199.77 1,681.67
in Alc.{ 6-BA+8B)
Summary of Closing Stock of Coal Table:B
Raw COlaI Washed / Deshalled Coal Other Products Total
Non-Coking Non-Coking
Cty Value Qty Value Qty Value Qty Valus
Opening Stock {Audited) 8,006.98 948.11 0.60 0.33 53.40 9.09 8,060.98 95753
Developmant Stock brought to revenue - - - - - -
Opening Stock (Development) - - - -
Less: Nen-vendable Coal - - - - - - - -
Adjusted Opening Stock ( Vendable) 8,006.98 845.11 0.60 033 53.40 9.09 §,060.98 957.53
Production 45,107.81 - 40.74 - 41,08 - 45,189.63 -
Production (Davelopment Mines) 524.00 - - - - - 524.00 -
Offtake - -
{(A) Outside Despatch 39,288.72 712375 4109 26.39 7.1 7.15 39,366.82 715729
(B) Coal feed to Washeries 79.10 an - - - - 79.10 9.1
{C) Own Consumplion 494 124 - - - - 4.94 1.24
Cfftake (Development Mines} 123.98 19.88 - - - - 123.98 19.88
Closing Stock 13,742.03 1,639.58 0.25 015 57.47 279 13,789.75 1,649.52
Closing Stock (Development) 400,02 32.15 - - - - 400.02 32.15
Closing Stock {Audited) 14,142.05 1,671.73 0.25 0.15 57.47 9.79 14,199.77  1,681.67
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NOTE - 13 : TRADE RECEIVABLES

(X in Crore)
Particulars As at As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
CURRBRENT
Trade receivables
- Secured, considered good - - -
- Unsecured, considered good 854.33 832.13 672.92
- Doubtful 364.36 102.51 83.81
1,218.69 934.64 756.73
Less : Provision for bad & doubtful debts/ quality
deductions 364.36 102.51 83.81
854.33 832.13 672.92

13.1 Ministry of Power, Government of India had advised Madhya Pradesh Power Generation Corporation Ltd.
(MPPGCL) to securitise outstanding principal and interest up-to 30.09.2001 of ¥ 171.94 crores and ¥ 21.99 crores
respectively. MPPGCL had securitised ¥ 123.91 cores in 2003. For the balance of ¥ 70.02 crores MPPGCL had
gone for Arbitration. Provision for Doubtful debts for ¥ 62.08 crores is made and the balance ¥ 7.94 crores being

interest has not been recongnised in the books due to uncertainity as arbitration case is going on.

NOTE - 14 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

X in Crore)
Particulars As at As at As at
31.03.2017  31.03.2016  01.04.2015
(a) Balances with Banks
- in Deposit Accounts 6.44 307.93 577.73
- in Current Accounts 27.96 90.30 271.84
(b) Cheques, Drafts and Stamps on hand 21.82 2.46 2.82
(c) Cashon hand 0.06 0.17 0.18
(d) Others (refer note 14.1) 0.87 1.20 0.52
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 57.15 402.06 853.09
14.1  Others includes remittance in transit ¥ 0.87 crores.
NOTE - 15 : OTHER BANK BALANCES
 in Crore)
. As at As at As at
Particulars
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
Balances with Banks
- Deposit accounts 870.53 2,262.01 3,317.22
Total 870.53 2,262.01 3,317.22
 in Crore)
15.1 | Balance with banks, in deposit account includes deposit for: As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
a) |Bank guarantee 4.16 4,74
b) |Undisbursed wages 2.04 2.04
C) |Court cases for union fund, relief fund, MPGATSVA 170.90 100.98
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NOTE - 16 : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

& in Crore)
As at As at As at

Particulars 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.4.2015
Authorised
80,00,000 Equity Shares with face value of ¥ 1000/-each 800.00 800.00 800.00

800.00 800.00 800.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully Pald-up
29,71,000 Equity Shares with face value of 297.10 297.10 297.10
T 1000/-sach fully paid up

297.10 297.10 297.10

16.1 The reconcialiation of the number of shares outstanding:
Details As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

Number of shares at the beginning of the period 2,971,000.00 2,971,000.00
Add: shares Issued during the period = -
Number of shares at the end of the pericd 2,971,000.00 2,971,000.00

16.2

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value ¥ 1000/- per share. The holders of the equity
shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to voting rights proportionate to their
share holding at the meetings of shareholders

16.3 The details of shareholder holding mere than 5% shares:
Name of Shareholder As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
No. of shares | % held No. of shares % held
Coal India Ltd - Holding Company 2971000 100 2971000 100
16.4 Share holding details of Holding company:
Details As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
No. of shares | % held No. of shares % held
Coal India Ltd - Holding Company 2971000 100 2971000 100
NOTE 17 : OTHER EQUITY .
{ in Crore)
Particulars General Retained Total
Reserve Earnings
Balance as at 01.04.2015 1,210.13 2,279.72 3,489.85
Changes in accounting policies - 76.30 76.30
Prior Period Errors - 14,55 14.55
Restated balance as at 01.04.2015 1,210.13 2,370.57 3,580.70
Total comprehensive income during the year - 370.15 370.15
Appropriations
Transfer to General reserve 1,014.83 (1,014.83) -
Interim Dividend - (581.60) (581.60)
Final Dividend - {188.06) (188.086)
Corporate Dividend tax - (156.69) {156.69)
alance as at 31.03. 2,224.96 799.54 3,024.50
Balance as at 01.04.2016 2,224 96 799.54 3,024.50
Total comprehensive income during the year - (764.47) (764.47)
Appropriations

Transfer to General reserve - - -
Interim Dividend - - -
Final Dividend - - -

Corporate Dividend tax - - -
Balance as at 31.03.2017 2,224.96 35.07 2,260.03
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NOTE - 18 :TRADE PAYABLES

(X in Crore)
Particulars As at As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
CURRENT
Trade Payables for Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises (refer note 18.1) 5.31 5.43 6.30
Other Trade Payables for
-Stores and Spares 161.22 107.64 100.30
-Power and Fuel 35.03 36.83 27.46
-Others (refer note 18.3) 382.57 268.99 192.95
TOTAL 584.13 418.89 327.01
18.1 An amount of ¥ 5.31 crores towards principal and ¥ Nil amount towards interest is due/accrued to MSME as on
31.03.2017
18.2 Nointerest was paid/payable to MSME, under section 16 of the MSME Act, 2006 as no payment was made beyond
the appointed day.

18.3 Others includes payment due for contractors for revenue works ¥ 326.38 crores.

NOTE - 19 : OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(X in Crore)
Particulars As at As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
NON CURRENT
Others 6.42 6.54 6.45
TOTAL 6.42 6.54 6.45

19.1 Others includes security deposit deducted from employees as per employement agreeement.

CURRENT
Security Deposits 113.47 99.52 75.95
Earnest Money 49.41 44.52 41.29
TOTAL 162.88 144.04 117.24
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NOTE - 20 : PROVISIONS
 in Crore)
Particulars As at As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
NON CURRENT
Employee Banefits
- Gratuity - - -
= Leave Encashment 171.94 442 58 422 .48
- PRMBS 144.67 119.80 110.00
- Other Employee Benefits (refer note 20.4) 82.55 79.65 89.28
Site Restoration/Mine Closure (refer note 20.3) 1,869.08 1,633.20 1,237 .91
Stripping Activity Adjustment 2,869.92 2,571.99 2,329.91
TOTAL 5,138.16 4,847.32 4,199.58
CURRENT
Employee Benefits
- Gratuity - a4 105.95
- Leave Encashment 48.17 44.76 41.95
- Ex- Gratia 230.86 200.23 175.62
- Performance Related Pay ({refer note 20.5) 260.92 460.99 478.60
- PRMBS 10.69 8.92 7.82
- Other Employee Benefits (refer note 20.4} 245.25 215.97 184.64
- NCWA X (refer note 20.1) 322.06 - -
- Executive Pay Revision (refer note 20.2) 14.05 - -
Excise Duty on Closing Stock of Coal 177.26 92.84 63.87
TOTAL 1,309.26 1,027.12 1,058.25

NOTE - 20 : PROVISIONS

211

21.2

21.3

21.4

21.5

NCWA - X : Pending finalisation of National Coal Wage Agreement (NCWA) - X for Non Executives, an estimated
lump sum provision @ T 8000/- per employae (Non-Exscutive) per month, considering total impact of increasein all
elements of salary & wages (including the employers PF contribution), other employee benefits and all
superannuation benefits like Gratuity etc. has been made for the period 01.07.2016 to 31.03.2017 amounting to T
322.06 and shown as "NCWA X - Provision" above.

Executive Pay Revision : Pending finalisation of PSUs' pay revision for executives, an estimated lump sum
provision @ ¥ 18000/- per employee {Executive) per month, considering total impact of increase in all elements of
executive salary (including the employer's PF contribution), other employee benefits and all superannuation
benefits like Gratuity etc. has been made for the period 01.01.2017 to 31.03.2017 amounting to ¥ 14.05 crore and
shown as "Executive Pay Revision" above.

Provislon for Mine Closure : Following the guidelines from Ministry of Coal, Government of India for preparation of
Mine Closure plan a provision is made in the accounts. Such provision is made as per CMPDIL's (A Subsidiary of
Coal India Ltd.) techical assessment. The liability for mine closure expenses (as estimated by CMPDIL) of each
mine has been discounted @ 8% and capitalized to arrive at the mine closure liability as on 1st year of making of
such provision. Thereafter the provision has been resstimated in subsequent year by unwinding the discount to
arrive atthe provisionas on 31.03.2017.

During the year provision for other superannuation benefits to executives @ 9.84% of pay (Basic+DA) amounting to
¥ 28.56 crore (T 27.27 crores) has been provided. Total provision up t0 31.03.2017 is ¥ 211.78 crores, included in
"Other Employee Benefits" above.

Performance Related Pay (PRP) Provision:During the year provision for PRP amounting to ¥ 26.28 crores

& 26.68 crores) has been made.
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NOTE - 21 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

R in Crore)
. As at As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2017 31.03.2016 01.04.2015
Liability for Capital Expenditue 99.77 92.12 27.81
Liability for Salary, Wages and Allowances 313.26 367.82 346.81
Statutory Dues:
Central Sales Tax 4.16 442 3.56
Sales Tax/Vat 30.06 26.78 20.04
Provident Fund & Others 75.37 76.66 72.15
Central Excise Duty 0.33 0.51 0.40
Royalty & Cess on Coal 92.12 76.36 81.05
Stowing Excise Duty 12.46 10.69 10.98
Clean Environment Cess 220.63 215.28 73.92
National Mineral Exploration Trust 2.04 2.06 -
District Mineral Foundation 445.41 4.72 -
Other Statutory Levies 42.15 35.36 32.22
Income Tax deducted/collected at Source 24.14 948.87 26.43 479.27 17.51 311.83
Advance from customers / others 695.84 551.97 613.77
Others liabilities (refer note 21.1) 196.85 156.91 210.12
TOTAL 2,254.59 1,648.09 1,510.34

21.1 Others miscellaneous liabilities includes interest from Deposits on court cases ¥ 94.03 crores, contractors liability
acceptance ¥ 36.02 crores and other liabilities ¥ 65.93 crores.

21.2 Asper instruction from CIL, liability for Coal India Sports Promotion Association (CISPA) is provided at ¥ 0.25 paise
per tonne of coal production of FY 2015-16 (Previous year) amounting to ¥1.12 Crores (31.03 crores).
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NOTE - 22 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(X in CGrore)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
A. SALE OF PRODUCT:
Sale of Coal 10,413.39 10,349.54
Less : Levies
Royalty 887.57 983.47
Stowing Excise Duty 39.28 4112
Central Sales Tax 37.38 37.50
Clean Environment Cess 1,573.02 898.70
State Sales Tax'VAT 434.81 416.99
National Mineral Exploration Trust 17.77 12.17
District Mineral Foundation 266.27 4.61
Cther Levies - -
Total Lavies 3,256.10 2,304.56
Sales (Including Exclise Duty) (A) 7,157.29 7,954.98
B. Other Operating Revenue
Re-imbursment for Sand Stowing & Protective Works 21.88 24.02
Loading and additional transportation charges 298.50 267.79
Less : Levies 12.43 286.07 10.54 257.25
Other Operating Revenue (including Excise Duty) (B) 281.27
Revenue from Operatlons (A+B) W

22.1 QOperating Revenue includes excise duty T 503.02 crores (¥ 495.88 crores). Net Operating Revenue {excluding
excise duty) for the current year is ¥ 6654.27 crores X 7459.10 crores).

22.2 Other Operating Revenue includes excise duty ¥ 16.19 crores (X 14.56 crores). Net Other Operating Revenue
(excluding excise duty) for the current year is¥ 291.76 crores (Y 266.71 crores)

22.3 Impact of revision of coal price :
Net sales has increased by ¥ 320.29 crores, due to revision of coal price w.e.f 30.05.2016
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NOTE 23 : OTHER INCOME

(X in Crore)
For the For the

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Interest Income
Deposits with Banks 139.95 293.68
Investments - 2.05
Loans Employees 0.08 0.08
Funds parked within Group 0.20 12.68
Others (refer note 23.1) 135.68 114.88

275.91 423.37

Dividend |
Investments in Mutual Funds 4.24 17.31
Other Non-Operating Income
Profit on Sale of Assets 1.32 0.45
Miscellaneous Income (refer note 23.2) 35.98 65.31
Total 317.45 506.44

23.1 Interest income from others includes, interest from escrow a/c ¥ 102.82 crore, interest received from deposit for
Electricity utilities ~ 4.05 and interest on delayed payments from customers ¥ 28.47 crores and other
miscellaneous ¥ 0.34 crore.

23.2 Miscellaneous income includes, penalty recovered from contractors, penalty recovery for short lifting of coal and
forteiture of E-auction EMD.
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NOTE 24 : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

(T in Crore)

. For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2017 31,03.2018
Explosives 198.93 197.61
Timber 10.23 13.72
QOil & Lubricants 480.93 479.46
HEMM Spares 176.18 188.41
Other Consumables (refsr note 24.1) 154.69 177.50
Total 1,020.96

24.1 QOther consumables includes, safety items, stores for vehicles,
washery stores & spares and stores and sparss on weighbridge.

NOTE 25 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,
STOCK INTRADE ANDWORK IN PROGRESS

X in Crore)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
A Finished Goods:
Opening Stock of Coal 957.53 661.50
Development stock brought to revenue - 6.99
Less: Deterioration of Coal 0.01 957.52 0.01 668.48
Less:-
Closing Stock of Coal 1,649.52 957.53
Less: Deterioration of Coal 0.01 1,649.51 0.01 957 52
Change In Inventory of Coal {691.99) {289.04)
B Workhop Inventory:
Opening Stock of Workshop 17.48 15.63
Less: Provision 1.45 16.03 1.45 14.18
Closing Stock of Workshop 21.33 17.48
Less: Provision 1.45 19.88 1.45 16.03
Change In Inventory of workshop {3.85) (1.85)
Change in Inventories of finished goods,
Stock in trade and work-in- (695.84) (290.89)

progress (A+B) { Decretlon / ( Accretion) }
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NOTE 26 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

® in Crore)
For the Year For the Year
Particulars Ended Ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

A Salaries and wages
Salary, Wages, Allowances ,Bonus etc. 3,319.12 3,368.67
Ex-Gratia 256.28 233.80
Performance Related Pay 25.93 26.65
Gratuity 141.81 161.38
Leave Encashment 168.18 104.05
Workman Compensation 0.82 1.35
NCWA X - Provision (refer note 20.1) 321.54 -
Executive Pay Revision (refer note 20.2) 13.89 -
Total salaries and wages 4,247.57 3,895.90

B Contribution to P.F. & Other Funds 382.39 392.62

C Welfare expenses
Medical Expenses for existing employees 75.14 76.11
Medical Expenses for retired employees 22.71 12.05
Grants to Schools & Institutions 14.71 11.31
Sports & Recreation 2.83 2.98
Canteen & Creche 0.59 0.49
Power - Township 144.71 146.49
Hire Charges of Bus, Ambulance etc. 17.93 14.42
Other Employee Benefits (refer note 26.1) 97.55 31.31
Total Welfare expenses 376.17 295.16
Total (A+B+C) 5,006.13 4,583.68

26.1 Other employee benefits includes Leave travel cocession (LTC), settling in allowance on retirement and re-
imbursement of LPG expenses to employees.
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NOTE 27 : CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENSES

(X in Crore)
For the For the
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
CSR Expenses 10.81 65.27
Total 10.81 65.27

27.1 As per GSR policy of CIL, the recommanded expenditure on CSR activities is @ 2% of the net profit of the company
for the three immediate preceedeing financial year which comes to ¥ 8.68 crores or ¥ 2/- per tonne of coal

production of the previous year which is ¥ 8.96 crores, whichaver is higher i.e T 8.96 crore. Actual expenditure
duringthe currentyearisT 10.81 crores.

272
Amount spent during the period on: Paid Yet to be paid Total
Construction/acquisition asset - - -
Others 10.15 0.66 10.81
NOTE 28 : REPAIRS
(T in Crore)
For the Year For the Year
Particulars Ended Ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Building 11.85 16.03
Plant & Machinery 26.41 25.63
Others (refer note 28.1) 15.48 12.30
Total §3.74 53.96

28.1 Others includes repairs for vehicles and other miscelleneous repairs.
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NOTE 29 : CONTRACTUAL EXPENSES

(R in Crore)
For the Year For the Year
Particulars Ended Ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Transportation Charges :
- Sand 7.30 13.20
- Coal 300.95 270.03
- Stores & Others 0.32 0.36
Wagon Loading 12.29 11.94
Hiring of Plant and Equipments 768.12 611.07
Other Contractual Work 90.77 95.23
Total 1,179.75 1,001.83
NOTE 30: FINANCE COSTS i Crore)
For the Year For the Year
; Ended Ended
Particulars 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Interest Expenses
Borrowings 4.76 -
Unwinding of discounts 79.76 75.51
Funds parked within Group - -
Others 0.51 1.18
Total 85.03 76.69
NOTE 31 : PROVISIONS (NET OF REVERSAL) .
(X in Crore)
. For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
(A) Provision made for
Doubtful debts/quality deductions
(refer note 31.1) 261.85 18.70
Doubtful Advances & Claims 7.93 -
Stores & Spares - 0.20
Others - 0.10
Total(A) 269.78 19.00
(B) Provision Reversal
Doubtful debts/claims - -
Doubtful Advances & Claims - 0.59
Stores & Spares 0.27 -
Others 0.01 -
Total(B) 0.28 0.59
Total (A-B) 269.50 18.41

sampling of CIMFR for which report yet to received

31.1 Provision for doubtful debts/quality deductions includes an amount ¥ 238.58 crore provided for grade slipage as per
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NOTE 32 : OTHER EXPENSES X in Crore)
For the For the
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Travelling expenses
- Domestic 2188 2257
- Foreign 0.06 0.05
Training Expenses 3.76 3.98
Telephone & Postage 3.58 3.62
Advertisoment & Publicity 1.89 3.37
Freight Charges 0.12 0.11
Demurrage 3.72 3.10
Donation/Subscription 0.99 0.84
Security Expenses 47.13 43.53
Service Charges of CIL 23.15 22.45
Hire Charges 47.80 39.33
CMPDI Charges 32.41 17.49
Legal Expenses 3.01 3.06
Bank Charges 0.11 0.12
Consultancy Charges 147 2.48
Under Loading Charges 30.39 2549
Loss on Sale/Discard/Surveyed of Assets 2.54 0.02
Auditor's Remuneration & Expenses
- For Audit Fees 024 0.16
- For Other Services 0.51 0.52
- For Reimbursement of Expenses 0.03 0.03
Internal & Other Audit Expenses 1.42 1.41
Rehabilitation Charges 23.29 25.39
Royally & Cess 4.02 6.21
Central Excise Duty 78.94 29.05
Rent 1.23 1.68
Rates & Taxes 33.70 18.20
Insurance 0.72 0.67
Lease Rent 0.01 -
Rescue/Safety Expenses 1.56 1.27
Dead Rent/Surface Rent 1.08 1.03
Siding Maintenance Charges 2.20 2.52
Land/Crops Compensation - 0.14
R & D expenses 0.36 0.86
Environmental & Tree Plantation Expenses 28.09 24.68
Miscellaneous expenses (refer note 32.1) 37.85 25.43
Total 439.26 330.86

miscellenious expenses.
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NOTE 33 : TAX EXPENSES

R in Crore)
Particul For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
articulars 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Current Year - 187.11
Deferred tax ( 285.36) (95.10)
Earlier Years tax (12.88) 4.49
Total (298.24) 9 6.50
NOTE 34 : OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME .
(X in Crore)
For the For the
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 Q3 2017 31.03.2016
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 19.21 110.81
19.21 110.81
Less:
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 6.65 38.35
6.65 38.35
Total 12.56 72.46
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NOTE - 35

ADDITIONAL NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2017.

1. Fair Value measurement

(a) Financial Instruments by Category

® in Crore)
31" March 2017 31" March 2016 1* Aprll 2015
FVTPL| FVT | Amortis-| FVTPL | FVT | Amortis-| FVTPL | FVT | Amortis-

OCl | ed cost OCI | ed cost OCl| | ed cost
Financial Assets
Mutual Fund 0.10 - - | 114.36 - - | 137.31 -
Loans - - 3.83 - - 5.18 - 6.81
Deposits & - - | 2207.32 - - 1 1433.26 - 1322.86
receivable
Trade receivables - - | 854.33 - -| 83213 - 672.92
Cash & cash - - 57.15 - - | 402.06 - 853.09
equivalents
Other Bank - - | 870.53 - - |1 2262.01 - 3317.22
Balances
Financial
Liabliitles
Borrowings - - - - - - - -
Trade payables - - | 584.13 - - | 418.89 - 327.01
Security Deposit - - | 169.30 - - | 150.58 - 123.69
and Earnest
money
Other Liabilities - - - - - - - -

(b) Fair value hierarchy

Table below shows Judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost
and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each
level follows underneath the table.
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® in Crore)

Financial assets and 31° March 2017 31" March 2016 1 April 2015
liabilities measured at | Level | Level | Level | Level | Leve | Level | Level | Level | Leve
fair value - recurring | I ] I H ] I Il [
fair value
measurement

Financial Assets at
FVTPL

Investments

Mutual Fund 0.10 = 114.36 - - 137.31 - -

Financial Liabilities

If any item - - - -1 - - - - -

R in Crore)

Financial assets and 31" March 2017 31" March 2016 1 April 2015
liabilities measured at | Level | Leve | Level | Level | Level | Level | Level | Leve | Level
amortised cost for | i ] | | ]l I 1l ]
which fair values are
disclosed at 31"
March, 2017

Financial Assets at
FVTPL

Investments - = o - - - - - -

Equity Shares in JV - - - - - - - - N

Mutual Fund - = o - - - - - -

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - - = - - - - - |-
Trade payables = - |584.13 - - 418.89 - - 327.01
Security Deposit and - - [|169.30 - - 150.58 - - 123.69

Earnest money

Other Liabilities - - o - - - - R R

Level 1 : Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This
includes mutual funds that have quoted price and are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrumentis includedin level 2.

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, preference shares
borrowings, security deposits and other liabilities taken included in level 3.
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(c)Valuation technigue used in determining fair value

Valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:
® Theuse of quoted market prices of instruments

® The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow
analysis.

Fairvalue measurements using significant unobservable inputs
At present there are no fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs.

(d) Falr values of financlal assets and llabllitles measured at amortised cost
T in Crore)

31" March 2017 31" March, 2016 1 April 2015

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount | Value | Amount | Value | Amount | Value

Financial Assets
Loans 3.83 3.83 5.18 5.18 6.81 6.81
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - - - - -

Security Deposit and Earnest 169.30 | 169.30 | 150.58 | 150.58 | 123.69| 123.69
money

@ The carrying amounts of trade receivables, short term deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

@ Other Financial assets accounted at amortised cost are not carried at fair value only if same is
not material.

@ Thefairvalues for loans and security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted
using a currentlending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy.

SignHicant estimates: the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation techniques. uses its judgment to select a method and
makes suitable assumptions at the end of each reporting period.

1. RISK ANALYSIS AND MANAGEMENT
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables directly related to its operations. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance
the company's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company's
principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents
that is derived directly from its operations.
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The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's senior
management oversees the management of these risks. The company's senior management is
supported by a risk committee that advises, inter alia, on financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk governance framework for the Company. The risk committee provides assurance to
the Board of Directors that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate
policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. This note explains the sources
of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the impact of hedge
accounting in the financial statements

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement | Management
Credit Risk Cash and Cash | Ageing Department of public
equivalents, trade | analysis enterprises (DPE guidelines),
receivables financial diversification of bank deposits
asset measured at credit limits and other
amortised cost securities
Liquidity Risk Borrowings and other | Periodic cash | Availability of committed credit
liabilities flows lines and borrowing facilities
Market Risk- Future commercial | Cash flow Regular watch and review by
foreign exchange | transactions, forecast senior management and audit
recognised financial | sensitivity committee.
assets and liabilities | analysis
not denominated in
INR
Market Risk- Cash and Cash Cash flow Department of public
interest rate equivalents, Bank forecast enterprises (DPE guidelines),
deposits and mutual sensitivity Regular watch and review by
funds analysis senior management and audit
committee.

The company risk management is carried out by the Board of directors as per DPE guidelines
issued by Government of India. The Board provides written principals for overall risk management
as well as policies covering investment of excess liquidity.

A. Credit Risk: Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, investments carried at
amortised cost and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as including
outstanding receivables.

Credit risk management:

Macro - economic information (such as regulatory changes) is incorporated as part of the fuel
supply agreements (FSAs) and e-auction terms
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Fuel Supply Agreements

As contemplated in and in accordance with the terms of the NCDP, we enter into legally enforceable
FSAs with our customers or with State Nominated Agencies that in turn enters into appropriate
distribution arrangements with end customers. Our FSAs can be broadly categorized into:

FSAs with customers in the power utilities sector, including State power utilities, private power
utilities (“PPUs") and independent power producers (“IPPs");

FSAs with customers in non-power industries (including captive power plants (“CPPs™)); and
FSAs with State Nominated Agencies.

In addition to the FSA forms discussed above, WCL currently supplies coal under certain “cost plus”
coal supply agreements.

E-Auction Scheme

The E-Auction scheme of coal has been introduced to provide access to coal for customers who
were not able to source their coal requirement through the available institutional mechanisms under
the NCDP for various reasons, for example, due to a less than full allocation of their normative
requirement under NCDP, seasonality of their coal requirement and limited requirement of coal that
does not warrant a long-term linkage. The quantity of coal to be offered under E-Auction is reviewed
from time to time by the MoC.

Provision for expected credit loss: The Company provides for expected credit risk loss for doubtful/
credit impaired assets, by lifetime expected credit losses (Simplified approach)

Expected Credit losses for trade receivables under simplified approach

As on 31.03.2017 (X in Crore)
Ageing Due for | Due for | Due for | Due for | Due for | Due for Total
2 months | 6 months| 1year | 2year | 3 year | more than
3 year
Gross 691.48 74.11 28.54 | 193.38 56.70 174.48 | 1218.69
carrying
amount

Expected loss 31.16% | 31.17% | 54.87% | 11.40% | 7.74% 47.96% | 29.90%
rate
Expected 215.49 23.10 15.66 22.04 4,39 83.68 | 364.36
credit losses
(Loss
allowance
provision)
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As on 31.03.2016 (X in Crore)
Ageing Due for Due for | Due for | Due for | Due for | Due for Total
2months |6 months| 1year | 2year | 3 year | more than
3 year

Gross carrying 611.02 | 122.16 9.01 94.20 3.33 94.92 934.64
amount

Expected loss 0.85% 0| 35.74% | 15.14% 0 84.13% | 10.97%
rate

Expected 5.17 0 3.22 14.26 0 79.86 102.51
credit losses

(Loss

allowance

provision)

(X in Crore)
Ageing Due for | Due for | Due for | Due Due Due for Total
2months |6 months | 1 year for 2 for 3 more
year year than 3
year

Gross carrying | 642.04 36.76 5.39 0 0 72.54 756.73
amount

Expected loss 0.55% 7.34% | 89.98% - 0 100% 11.07%
rate

Expected 3.54 2.70 4.85 0.18 0 72.54 83.81
credit losses

(Loss

allowance

provision)
Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables

(X in Crore)

Loss allowance on 01.04.2015 83.81
Change in loss allowance 18.70

Loss allowance on 31.03.2016 102.51
Changes in loss allowance 261.85

Loss allowance on 31.03.2017 364.36

Significant estimates and judgments Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the company's past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period

B.

Liquidity RisK

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
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securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, Company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability
under committed credit lines.

Management monitors forecasts of the company's liquidity position (comprising the undrawn
borrowing facilities below) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash
flows.

Financing arrangements

The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the
reporting period: % in Crore)
01.04.2015

31.03.2016

31.03.2017

Expiring within one year (Bank overdraft and other
facilities)
Expiring beyond one year (Bank Loans})

Market risk
a) Foreign currency risk
b) Cash flow andfairvalue interest rate risk 107(33)(a),

The company's main interest rate risk arises from bank deposits with change in interest rate
exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk. Company's policy is to maintain most of
its deposits at fixed rate.

Company manages the risk using guidelines from Department of public enterprises (DPE),
diversification of bank deposits credit limits and other securities.

Capital management
The company being a government entity manages its capital as per the guidelines of Department
ofinvestment and public asset management under ministry of finance.

Capital Structure ofthe company is as follows:  in Crore)
31.03.2017| 31.03.2016| 01.04.2015
Equity Share capital 297.10 297.10 297.10
Preference share capital - - -
Long term debt - - -

3.
1) Provident Fund:

Employee Benefits: Recognition and Measurement (Ind AS-18)

Company pays fixed contribution towards Provident Fund and Pension Fund at pre-determined
rates to a separate trust named Coal Mines Provident Fund (CMPF), which invests the fund in
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permitted securities. The contribution towards the fund during the year is ¥ 382.39 Crore (X 392.62
Crore) has been recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss (Note 28).

i) The Company operates some defined benefit plans as follows which are valued on actuarial

basis:

(a) Funded-

o Gratuity

® Leave Encashment

(b) Unfunded

® Life Cover Scheme

® Settlement Allowance

® Group Personal Accident Insurance
® LeaveTravel Concession
® Medical Benefits

[

Compensation to dependent on Mine Accident Benefits

Total liability as on 31.03.2017 based on valuation made by the Actuary,

mentioned below is¥3019.23 Crore.

The actuarial liability as on 31.03.2017:

details of which are

(X in Crore)
Openin Closin
Actuarl?al Liagbility _Inc_rgmentgl Actuarigl

Head Liability during o

as on the Year Liability as on

01.04.2016 31.03.2017

Gratuity 2176.44 -0.76 2175.68
Earned Leave 418.41 63.70 482.11
Half Pay Leave 68.94 21.14 90.08
Life Cover Scheme 12.72 0.11 12.83
Settlement Allowance Executives 6.54 0.52 7.06
Settlement Allowance
Nonexecutives 25.16 0.05 25.21
Group Personal Accident Insurance
Scheme 0.17 0.01 0.18
Leave Travel Concession 40.86 2.23 43.09
Medical Benefits Executives 124.54 18.54 143.08
Medical Benefits Non-Executives 4.28 7.99 12.27
Compensation to dependents in
case of mine accidental death 26.95 0.69 27.64
Total 2905.01 114.22 3019.23

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17 || 150



O WESTERN COAL FIELDS LIMITED

Company  Statutory

Overview Reports

Financial
Statements

iii) Disclosure as per Actuary's Certificate

The disclosures as per actuary's certificate for employee benefits for Gratuity (funded) and

Leave Encashment (funded) are given below: -

ACTUARIAL VALUATION OF GRATUITY LIABILITY AS AT 3103.2017

CERTIFICATES AS PER IND AS 19 (2015) & in Crore)
Changes in Present Value of defined benefit As at As at
obligations 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Present Value of obligation at beginning of the 2176.44 2247.26
period
Current Service Cost 158.86 147.99
Interest Cost 146.68 168.14
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligations due to 95.89 -
change in financial assumption
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligations due to -95.79 -96.05
unexpected experience
Benefits Paid 306.40 290.91
Present Value of obligation at end of the period 2175.68 2176.43
(X in Crore)
Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Fair Value of Plan Asset at beginning of the period 2173.03 2141.31
Interest Income 157.54 171.31
Employer Contributions 182.10 136.55
Benefits Paid 306.40 290.91
Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest income 19.31 14.77
Fair Value of Plan Asset as at end of the period 2225.58 2173.03
(R in Crore)
GRATUITY
Statement showing reconciliation to Balance As at As at
Sheet 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Funded Status -49.90 -3.41
Unrecognized actuarial (gain) / loss at end of the
period
Fund Asset 2225.58 2173.03
Fund Liability 2175.68 2176.44
Statement showing Plan Assumptions: As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Discount Rate 7.25%) 8.00%
Expected Return on Plan Asset 7.25%) 8.00%
Rate of Compensation Increase (Salary Inflation) 9.00% for Executives and 6.25%

6.50% for Non-Executives

Average Expected Future Service (Remaining 10 11
Working Life)
Average Duration of Liabilities 10 11

Mortality Table

IALM 2006-08 ULTIMATE

Superannuation at Age

60

60

Early Retirement and Disablement

1.00%

1.00%

151 | ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



(X in Crore)

GRATUITY
Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit / As at As at
Loss 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Current Service Cost 158.86 147.99
Net Interest Cost -10.86 -3.16
Benefit Cost (Expense recognised in Statement 148.00 144.83
of Profit/Loss)
(X in Crore)
GRATUITY
Other Comprehensive Income As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligations due to 95.90 -
change in financial assumption
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligations due to -95.79 -96.04
unexpected experience
Total Actuarial (Gain) / Loss 0.10 -96.04
Return on Plan Asset, excluding Interest Income 19.31 14.77
Balance at the end of the period -19.21 -110.81
Net (Income) / Expense for the period recognised -19.21 -110.81
in Other Comprehensive Income
Mortality Table
Age Mortality (Per Annum)
25 0.000984
30 0.001056
35 0.001282
40 0.001803
45 0.002874
50 0.004946
55 0.007888
60 0.011534
65 0.0170085
70 0.0258545
Sensitivity Analysis Increase Decrease
Discount Rate (-/+ 0.5%) 2114.76 2240.08
% Change Compared to base due to sensitivity -2.80% 2.96%
Salary Growth (-/+ 0.5%) 2185.47 2164.80
% Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.45% -0.50%
Attrition Rate (-/+ 0.5%) 2177.42 2173.94
% Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.08% -0.08%
Mortality Rate (-/+ 10%) 2188.30 2163.06
% Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.58% -0.58%
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Statement Showing Cash Flow Information Zin Crore
Next Year Total (Expected) 208.85
Minimum Funding Requirements 29.33
Company’s Discretion

Statment Showing Benefit Information Estimated Future Payments (Past Service)

Year Zin Crore
1 316.53
2 308.45

Statement Showing Benefit Information Estimated Future payments (Past Service)

Year Tin Crore
1 316.53
2 308.45
3 324.37
4 286.06
5 250.24
6to 10 985.11
More than 10 years 1139.77
Total Undiscounted Payments Past and Future Service
Total Undiscounted Payments related to Past Service 3610.52
Less Discount For Interest 1434.84
Projected Benefit Obligation 2175.68
Statement Showing Cash Flow Information TIn Crore
Current service Cost (Employer portion Only) Next period 145.65
Interest Cost next period 148.69
Expected Return on Plan Asset 152.70
Benefit Cost 141.65
( in Crore)
Statement Showing expected return on Plan Asset at As at As at
end Measurement 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Current liability 305.64 299.58
Non-Current Liability 1870.04 1876.86
Net Liability 2175.68 2176.44

153 | ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17



ACTUARIAL VALUATION OF LEAVE ENCASHMENT BENEFIT (EL/HPL)AS AT 31.03.2017
CERTIFICATES AS PER IND AS 19 (2015)

(Xin Crore)
Changes in Present Value of defined benefit As at As at
obligations 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016
Present Value of obligation at beginning of the period 487.34 464.43
Current Service Cost 67.56 40.82
Interest Cost 32.31 33.91
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligations due to chaegin 74.05 -
financial assumption
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligations due to unexpected -5.66 29.32
experience
Benefits Paid 83.41 81.14
Present Value of obligation at end of the period 572.19 487.34
(X in Crore)
Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Fair Value of Plan Asset at beginning of the period - -
Interest Income 0.07 -
Employer Contributions 435.41 -
Benefits Paid 83.41 -
Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest income - -
Fair Value of Plan Asset as at end of the period 352.07 -
(X in Crore)
Statement showing reconciliation to Balance Sheet As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Funded Status -220.12 -487.34
Unrecognized actuarial (gain) / loss at end of the period - -
Fund Asset 352.07 -
Fund Liability 572.19 487.34
(X in Crore)
Statement showing Plan Assumptions: As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Discount Rate 7.25% 8.00%
Expected Return on Plan Asset NA NA
Rate of Compensation Increase (Salary Inflation) 9.00% for 6.25%
Executives and
6.50% for Non-
Executives

Average Expected Future Service (Remaining Working
Life)

11

11
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Statement showing Plan Assumptions: As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Average Duration of Liabilities 11 11
Mortality Table |ALM/2006-08/ULTIMATE
Superannuation at Age 60 60
Early Retirement and Disablement 1.00% 1.00%
Voluntary Retirement Ignored Ignored
(X in Crore)
Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit / Loss As at As at
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Current Service Cost 67.56 40.82
Net Interest Cost 32.23 33.91
Net Actuarial Gain / Loss 68.39 29.32
Benefit Cost (Expense recognised in Statement of 168.18 104.05
Profit/Loss)
Mortality Table
Age Mortallty (Per Anhum)
25 0.000984
30 0.001056
35 0.001282
40 0.001803
45 0.002874
50 0.004946
55 0.007888
60 0.011534
65 0.0170085
70 0.0258545
Sensitivity Analysis Increase Decrease
Discount Rate (-/+ 0.5%) 552.05 593.70
% Change Compared to base due to sensitivity -3.52% 3.76%
Salary Growth (-/+ 0.5%) 593.42 552.10
% Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 3.71% -3.51%
Attrition Rate (~/+ 0.5%) 572.65 571.73
% Change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.08% -0.08%
Mortality Rate (-/+ 10%) 575.28 569.10
% Change Compared t¢ base due 1o sensitivity 0.54% -0.54%
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Statement Showing Benefit Information Estimated Future payments
Year T in Crore
1 49.88
2 53.25
3 60.25
4 62.25
S 62.67
61010 287.35
More than 10 years 468.32
Total Undiscounted Payments Past and Future Service -
Total Undiscounted Payments related to Past Service 1043.98
Less Discount For Interest 471.79
Projected Benefit Obligation 572.19
(X in Crore)
Statement Showing expected return on Plan Asset at As at As at 31.03.2016
end Measurement 31.03.2017
Current liability 48.17 44.76
Non-Current Liability 524.02 442 .58
Net Liability 572.19 487.34

1. Unrecognised items:

a) ContingentLiabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (including interest, wherever

applicable) (X in Crore)
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt

31.03.2017 31.03.2016

1 | Central Gowt. 3433.48 3386.76
2 | State Govt. and Local authorities 735.76 826.72
3 | Central Public Sector Enterprises 9.47 1.20
4 | Others 703.71 572.82
Total 4,882.42 4,787.50

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts as on 31st March, 2017 amounting
to,34882.42 Crores (PreviousYear,I4787.50 Crores) includes:

1. Claims under IncomeTax, Sales Tax, ServiceTax and other Acts:

Demand from Income Tax authorities for * 641.64 Crores towards Corporate Tax, ¥ 2.22
Crores towards Tax on perquisites to employees and ¥ 0.56 Crores U/s 194 J of The Income

Tax Act, 1961.

Demand raised by District Revenue Authorities on account of Surface Rent 115.50 Crores
and Non-Agricultural Assessment Tax of ¥ 69.15 Crores, Central Excise Duty Demand on
a/c of Royalty/SED ¥ 2462.22 Crores and Clean energy cess demand of¥ 32.76 crores
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b)

c)

iii. Demands of Sales Tax Authorities on account of Sales Tax amounting to ¥ 422.58 Crores,
CST on surface transportation charges amounting * 8.60 crores and Entry Tax amounting to
¥114.52 Crores on HEMM and T 4.92 Crores on coal.

iv. Demands of Service Tax Authorities amounting 1o ¥293.99 Crores.

Note: The amount paid under protest against appeal are kept under Loans & Advancs / Claim
receivables.

Other Claims

i. Claims for enhanced compensation by land owners amounting to¥ 115.46 Crores.

ii. Claims by employees towards remuneration related cases amounting to¥ 16.49 Crores.

iii. Claims by Contractors and others pending decision by Arbitration/ Courts ¥ 272.06 Crores.
iv. Claims by customers¥309.17 Crores.

v. Claims by Railways for Siding Maintenance Charges¥0.09 Crores

vi. There are other claims along with interest by the employees and others where the
amounts are not specified and as such, the contingent liability cannot be quantified.

vii. Pending finalisation of Purchase consideration by the Central Government for Fixed Assets
acquired at the time of assets taken over from the Coal Mines Labour Welfare Organisation
and Coal Mines Rescue Station at Pench in the year 1984 and 1986 respectively, amount
unascertainable.

The Competition Commission of India (CCI), on the basis of complaints by few coal customers
{called as 'informant' in the case) against certain conducts of M/s Coal India Limited, M/s
Western Coalfields Limited, M/s South Eastern Coalfields Limited, M/s Mahanadi Coalfields
Limited (called as 'opposite’ party in the case) heard the case and vide its order dated
09.12.2013, had inter-alia imposed a penalty of © 1773.05 Crores. The appeal against the
above order was filed with Competition Appellate Tribunal and as per their judgement dated
17.05.2016 appeal of Coal India Limited has been allowed, impugned orders of CCl have been
set aside and the matters are remitted back to the Commission for deciding the issues arising
out of the information afresh. The final arguments in the matter concluded on 24th
November,2016 and the CCI passed the fresh impugned Order on 24th March,2017 and
returned with similar findings as arrived at in the Old Order dated 9th December,2013 with a
reduction of penalty from T 1773.05 Crores to ¥ 591.01 Crores. Coal India Lid. is in the process
of preparing an appeal to be filed before the COMPACT against the Fresh Impugned Order.

Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
for ¥592.05 crore , Others (Revenue account) ¥ 3278.54 crores

Letter of Credit and Bank Guarantee :

As on 31.03.2017 outstanding letters of credit is Nil (X 0.59 crore) and bank guarantee issued is
¥4.16 Crore (¥4.74 Crore).
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5. Other Information
a) Government Assistance

Subsidy for Sand Stowing & Protective Works includes ¥ 17.55 crore received from Ministry of
Coal, Government of India in terms of Coal Mines (Conservation & Development) Act, 1974
towards reimbursement of expenditure incurred for the Sand Stowing & Protective Works.

b) Provisions

The position and movement of various provisions except those relating to employee benefits
which are valued actuarially, as on 31.03.2017are given below:

(X in Crore)
Provisions Opening Addition | Write Unwinding Closing
Balance | during the| back/Adj. of Balance
as on year during discounts as on
1.04.2016 the year 31.03.2017
Note 3:-Property, Plant and
Equipment:
Impairment of Assets : 6.09 2.50 1.56 - 7.03
Note 4:- Capital Work in Progress :
Against CWIP : 0.05 0.02 0.03 ! 0.04
Note 5:- Exploration And Evaluation
Assets :
Provision and Impairment: } } } } ;
Note 6:- Other Intangible Asst - - - - -
Note 8:- Loans :
Other Loans : . i} i} i} _
Note 9:- Other Financial Assets:
Current Account with Subsidiaries : . i} i} i} _
Claim receivables 5.91 8.10 - - 14.01
Other Receivables : 0.09 - - - 0.09
Note 10- Other Non-Current Assets :
Exploratory Drilling Work : ) i i i )
Capital Advance 0.91 - - - 0.91
Against Security Deposit for Utilities 1.09 - - - 1.09
Note 10:- Other Current Assets :
Advances for Revenue 1.51 - 0.16 - 1.35
Advance to Employee 0.12 - 0.01 - 0.11
Advance Others 1.31 - - - 1.31
Note 12:-Inventories :
tock of Coal :

S c 0.01 - - - 0.01
Stock of Stores & Spares : 15.84 - 0.27 - 15.57
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Provislons Opening | Addition | Write Unwinding Closing
Balance | during the| back/Adj. of Balance
as on year during discounts as on

1.04.2016 the year 31.03.2017
Note 13:-Trade Receivables :
Provision for bad & doubtful debts : 102.51 268.38 6.53 - 364.36
Note 20 :- Non-Current & Current
Provision :
Performance related pay 460.99 26.28 226.35 - 260.92
NCWA-X 322.06 - - 322.06
Executive 3rd PRC 14.05 - - 14.05
9.84% Superannuation benefit (Exec) 183.22 28.56 211.78
Mine Closure 1633.20 143.84 - 92.04 1869.08

c) Segment Reporting

In accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 108 'operating segment', the operating segment
used for presenting segment information are identified based on internal reports used by BOD
to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. The BOD is the group of
Chief operating decision maker within the meaning of Ind AS 108.

The Board of directors consider a business from a prospect of significant product offerings and
have decided that presently there is one single reportable segment being sale of Coal.
Information of financial performance and net asset is presented in the consolidated
information of p/L and Balance sheet.

X in Crore)
India Other countries
Revenue from operations 7465.24 NIL
Revenue by customer is as follows
Customer Name Amount (in Crores) Country
Name of each parties having
more than 10% of Net sales
value
MSPGCL 3202.890 INDIA
Others 3954.39 INDIA
Total Net Sale 7157.29 INDIA
Net current asset by location are as follows ® in Crore)
India Other countries
Net Current Asset 5300.45 NIL
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d) Earnings per share

FOR PAT

Sl. | Particulars For the year For the year

No. ended ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

i) Net profit after tax attributable to Equity Share (777.03) 297.69

Holders (X in Crore)
ii) | Weighted Average no. of Equity Shares Outstanding 2971000 2971000
iii) | Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share in Rupees (2615.38) 1001.99

(Face value X.1000/- per share)

FOR Other Comprehensive Income

(Face value ‘.1000/- per share)

Sl. | Particulars For the year For the year
No. ended ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
i) Net profit after tax attributable to Equity Share 12.56 72.46
Holders (X in Crore)
ii) | Weighted Average no. of Equity Shares Outstanding 2971000 2971000
iy | Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share in Rupees 42.28 243.89

For Total Comprehensive Income

Sl. | Particulars For the year For the year
No. ended ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
i) Net profit after tax attributable to Equity Share (764.47) 370.15
Holders (X in Crore)
ii) | Weighted Average no. of Equity Shares Outstanding 2971000 2971000
i) | Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share in Rupees (2573.11) 1245.88

(Face value %.1000/- per share)
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e) Related Party Disclosures
(a) Key Managerial Personnel

Shri Rajiv.R.Mishra Chairman-Cum-Managing Director Shri
S.S.MalhiDirector (Tech)-Operation upto 31.07.2016

Shri B.K.MishraDirector (Tech) -Project & Planning

Dr.Sanjay Kumar Director (Personnel)

Shri S.M.Choudhary Director (Finance)

ShriT.N.JhaDirectore (Tech)- Project & Planning w.e.f.01.08.2016
Shri Rameher Company Secretary

(b) Independent Directors
ShriRama Rao
Shri K.N.Shelat

Shril.Ghose
Shri Mahendrakumar Bhatt
(c) Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel  in Crore)
Sl. Payment to CMD, Whole Time For the year ended | For the year ended
No. Directors and Company 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Secretary
i} Short Term Employee Benefits
Gross Salary 2.38 1.06
Perquisites 0.09 0.10
Medical Benefits 0.01 0.01
ii) Post-Employment Benefits 0.16 0.12

Contribution to P.F. & other fund
iii) Termination BenefitgPaid at
the time of separation)

Leave Encashment 0.22 0.16
Gratuity 0.10 0.10
TOTAL 2.96 1.55

Note:

(I} Provision on the basis of actuarial valuation of defined benefits have not been considered in
the Director's remuneration as above.

(i) Besides above, whole time Directors have been allowed use of cars for private journey upto a
ceiling of 1000 KMs on payment of *2000 per month as per service conditions.
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( in Crore)

Sl. Payment to Independent Directors For the year ended For the year
No. 31.03.2017 ended

31.03.2016
1 Sitting Fees 0.19 0.05

Balances Outstanding as on 31.03.2017

Sl. | Particulars As on 31.03.2017 As on 31.03.2016
No.

i) Amount Payable Nil Nil

ii) Amount Receivable Nil Nil

(d) Related Party Transactions

The Company being a Government related entity is exempt from the general disclosure
requirements in relation to related party transactions and outstanding balances with the
controlling Government and another entity under same Government.

f) Taxation

Accounting for Taxes on Income under Ind AS-12

Calculation of Deferred Tax (X in Crore)
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITY As on As on
31.03.2017 | 31.03.2016
A | Deferred Tax Liabilities- Depreciation 30.01 30.00
B | Deferred Tax Assets
Disallowance under I. Tax Act & other Statute 53.82 46.41
Provision for Doubtful Debts, Advances & Claims 133.03 39.67
Provision for Leave Encashment & Other Employee 332.60 456.08
Benefits
Provision for Shortage, Obsolescence of stock 8.63 8.72
Provision for Land Reclamation (4.49) -
Tax Impact on Taxable Loss for 2016-17 312.66 -
TOTAL 836.25 550.88
Deferred Tax Assets (net) (B-A) 806.24 520.88

® Explanation of changes in applicable tax rates compared to previous accounting period

® Relationship between tax expense (income) and accounting profit]
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Numerical Reconciliation of difference
® in Crore)
Sl . Year ended
No. Nature of Adjustments 31.03.2017
1 Net Profit/(Loss) as per Statement of Profit and Loss (before tax) (1056.03)
2 Add permanent Difference 250.70
3 Net Loss (805.33)
4 Applicable Tax rate 34.608%
Tax on Net Profit/{(Loss) as per Sl.No. (3*4) (278.71)
5 Net Profit/(Loss) as per Income Tax (805.33)
6 a) Current year Tax Nil
b) Deferred Tax  (285.36)
¢) Taxon OCI T 6.65 (278.71)
7 Difference Nil
g) Insuranceandescalationclaims
Insurance and escalation claims are accounted for on the basis of admissionffinal settlement.
h) Provisions made In the Accounts
Provisions is made in the accounts against slow moving/non-moving/obsolete stores, claims
receivable, advances, doubtful debts etc. are considered adequate to cover possible losses.
I) Current Assets, Loans and Advances etc.
Inthe opinion of the Management, assets other than fixed assets and non-current investments
have a value on realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at
which they are stated.
j) Current Liabilities
Estimated liability has been provided where actual liability could not be measured.
k) Others

Against the levy of 5% tax under “Madhya Pradesh Gramin Avsanrachana Tatha Sadak Vikas
Adhiniyam, 2005” (MPGATSVA 2005), some consumers as well as WCL has moved to the
Hon'ble High Court of Madhya Pradesh, Jabalpur whereby vide interim order dated
15/02/2006 the Company is being directed not to deposit this tax to the State Government but
to keep in a fixed deposit. The matter was later decided by the Jabalpur High Court in favour of
MP Government against which the WCL has filed an SLP before the Hon'ble Supreme Court
and the matter is still sub judice. The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India vide its interim order
dated 02-08-2010 directed the Company to file its returns for all the years under protest as per
MPGATSVA (2005) and also directed the assessing officer to complete the assessments of
returns filed by the Company.

In compliance with the Supreme Court directions, up to 31/03/2017 the assessing officers
raised total demand of ¥ 533.55 Crores against the Company (" 487.48 Crores) which is paid in
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full as per the legal advice. However, the Company has preferred Appeals against the
assessment orders /demand notes with Competent Appellate Authority, Jabalpur and Bhopal.

Up to 31/03/2017, an amount of ¥ 562.81 Crores (X 518.89 Crores) has been received from
customers on account of MPGATSVA Tax (including VAT/CST thereon upto 31st March,20186).
Against this ¥ 533.55 Crores is paid under protest (including ¥ 2.86 Crores on accounts of for
VAT/CST) against the demand raised by Assessing Officer up to 31/03/2017.

Out of balance amount, ¥ 23.92 Crores has been kept in deposit leaving balance of ¥5.34
Crores to be deposited. The cumulative interest accrued on fixed deposits made on this
account is added to liability, part of which is yet to be deposited.

Pending decision of Hon'ble Supreme Court of India ¥ 4.52 Crores (34.52 Crores) collected
from customers in the earlier years being interest on delayed payments on account of
enhancement of rate of royalty on coal, continued to appear in account 'Advance & Deposits
from Customers' under the head “Other Current Liabilities”.

By virtue of enactment of Mineral Validation Act, 1992, the Company has raised supplementary
bills on customers' up to 4.4.1991 on a/c of Cess and Other Taxes amounting to ¥ 2.96 Crores
(X 2.96 Crores). Pending outcome of Special Leave Petition in Supreme Court,against the
judgment of Ranchi Bench of Hon'ble Patna High Court in favour of the Company the same is
shown as liability for Cess on Royalty under the head Other Current Liabilities.

The Company had approached MSRDC to construct a bridge over Wardha River near Nakoda
in Wani Area to reduce the lead for coal transportation between the mines of Wani Area and
Railway Siding at Wani. An agreement was entered into with MSRDC on 23.12.1997 for
construction of the bridge and a loan of ¥ 2.35 Crores was agreed to be given by WCL to
MSRDC. Out of this ¥ 1.13 Crores was given to MSRDC in 1997-98, carrying a simple interest
@ 9% p.a.The remaining amount of loan ofX 1.22 Crores has not been released as WCL wants
to establish a time bound schedule for repayment of the loan and interest thereon. Negotiations
have been initiated with MSRDC for this purpose. The loan is to be repaid by MSRDC after
repayment of its other loans. However, till date no amount is repaid by MSRDC.

The bridge is currently being used to transport coal across Wardha River. Since the principal
amount of advance is doubtful, necessary provision for ¥ 2.14 Crores (including interest of
%1.01 Crores accounted for as income up t0 31.3.2010) is done.

Report of the Tripartite Committee, comprising of WCL, CMPDIL and Explosive Manufacturers,
set up to finalise the benchmark powder factor of each mine for the period from April'05 to
July'06, is still awaited. In the meantime CIL has directed WCL to review the impact of same
considering the powder factor of 2003-04 and 2004-05, whichever is higher vis-a-vis actual
achieved during 2005-06 and submit the Company's view to CIL. This review is yet to be
finalized. As such no recovery has been made from bills for supply of explosives during that
period. Pending finalization of the issue, the Bank Guarantees submitted by the suppliers is not
released by CIL.
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Subsequent supplies are covered by new rate contracts which specify that recovery on account
of powder factor is to be adjusted after final powder factor reports are received from the Areas
on quarterly basis. Pending receipt of final reports the deduction of ¥ 3.76 Crores (X 3.76
Crores) up to 31.03.2017 is appearing as a liability. Accordingly, the expenditure on account of
explosive consumption has not been adjusted since the amount is not ascertainable.

During the year 1993-94 at Nandgaon Incline of Chandrapur Area a suspected fraud was
detected and quantified by the Internal Audit Department to the tune of ¥ 0.12 Crores.
Thereafter an amount of ¥ 0.02 Crores has been recovered from the party and for balance
figure matching provision was done in books. The same is under CBlinvestigation

During the year 1995-96, a theft case at CWS Stores was suspected and police complaint was
lodged. During the course of departmental enquiry many kardex were seized / taken out for
investigation. Pending final outcome of the enquiry, the workshop continues to maintain a
provision of¥0.14 Crores

In case of Non-Agricultural tax assessment cases of land in Chandrapur, Ballarpur, Wani,
Nagpur Areas, a common judgment was pronounced on 05.01.2009 by Hon'ble Bombay High
Court resulting into demand of land revenue, ZP/GP Taxes and additional taxes of ¥ 62.04
Crores for the period from 1980 to 2009. Aginst this the Company has filed a Special Leave
Petition before the Divisional Bench of Bombay High Court on the ground that such taxes are
not payable on lands acquired under Coal Bearing Area Act..

The Company had preferred appeals against assessments of Income Taxand Sales Tax/VAT/
MPVAT. Pending decision, no provision has been considered necessary and the amount paid /
recoverable is being continued to be kept under Loans and Advances / Claims Receivables.

The Rate Contracts (RC) for supply of explosives by different suppliers was expired on 28th
February'2006 and pending renewal of the same the suppliers were asked to continue the
supplies at the same prevalent rates, subject to the condition that supplies during such
extended period would be governed by the rates as may be fixed in the new RC. This continued
up to 28th July, 2006.

The new RC was finalised and came into effect from 29th July, 2006 with a reduced price of the
explosives and recovery of excess amount paid was made from the suppliers against which
some of the suppliers filed a Civil Suit before Hon'ble Calcutta High Court which granted a stay
against recovery in December 2006. Accordingly CIL directed WCL to refund the amount
deducted from the six suppliers.

The Hon'ble High Court of Calcutta asked these suppliers to deposit the disputed amount in
question in an account with the Joint Receiver appointed by the Hon'ble High Court. But the
suppliers failed to do so and the Hon'ble Calcutta High Court in July 2008 vacated the stay of
recovery of excess payment made to such suppliers.

Hence, CIL directed WCL to restart the recovery of such amount from the running bills of the
suppliers as per directives of Court. However, pending disposal of the case since 2008-09 the
recovery of ¥ 2.58 Crores is kept under liability in the books of account.
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11 Revision of Standard Ratio of the following opencast mines is made during the current year
after Competent approval . Due to this revision the Loss of the Company has decreased by °
107.15 Crores. The Mine wise details are as under:

Sl | Name of the Old Standard Ratio Revised Standard Ratio | Increase / (Decrease) in
No Mine {Coal: OB) Ratio (Coal: OB) Ratio Loss (X in Crores)
1 Ukni OCP 4.57 8.92 95.59
2 Umrer OCP 2.71 1.453 (196.90)
Total (101.31)
12 As per Guideline on Mine Closure provision issued by CIL, Interest accrued during the current

13.

14.

15

16

17

year on MCP Escrow Accounts amountingX 102.19 Crores (X 90.51Crores) is credited to Profit
& Loss account and an amount of ¥ 80.15 Crores towards interest accrued on MCP Escrow
Account prior to 01.04.2015. is credited to retained earnings which was earlier kept under
liabilities.

As per tripartite Agreement between WCL and Power Utilities companies with CSIR-CIMR,
third party sampling agency, coal sampling is carried out by CIMFR during the current year.
Based on result of CIMFR duly accepted by WCL & power utilities, credit/debit note is issued to
power utilities and accounted for. FurtherProvision for grade slippage amounting¥ 238.58 Cris
made, based on past trend on account of quality on coal sampling done by CIMFR for which the
reportis yetto be received as well report from the Referee in case of dispute.

As per Recommendation of committee on uniform accounting treatment, provision on Ratio
Variance is not considered in the cost of production for valuation of closing stock of coal.
However, in current year cost of Advance stripping is included in the cost of production for
valuation of closing stock of coal.

Prospecting Boring and Development expenses amounting to X 6.84 Crores (X 30.33 Crore)
along with provision for depreciation have been taken out from accounts during the year after
expiry of two years, following the year in which these are fully amortized.

As per directives of the Government of India through Coal India Ltd, WCL has taken the custody
of Gatitoria OCP and Makri Mangoli mines w.e.f. 01.04.2015 .During the current year an
amount of ¥ 1.28 Crores as incurred charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Detail of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th

November,2016 to 30th December,2016. (% in Crore)

Particulars SBNs Other denomination Total

Closing cash in hand 0.19 0.11 0.30

as on 08.11.2016

(+) Permitted Receipt - 41.34 41.34

(-) PermittedPayments - 32.58 32.58

(-YAmountdeposited 0.19 08.80 08.99

in Banks
Closing Cash in Hand - 0.07 0.07
as on 30.12.2016

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17 || 166



(;‘» Company Statutory Fllumhl
"/ WESTERN COAL FIELDS LIMITED Overview Reports -

) ApexOffice Charges and Interest to Holding Company.

i. Apex office charges of Holding Company are allocated to revenue mines on the basis of coal
production.

ii. Anamountof¥23.23 Crores (X 25.39 Crores) has been charged to P&L A/c being additional
Apex Charges @ ¥ 6.00 per ton of coal dispatch to meet the rehabilitation & fire fighting
expenses of Jharia and Raniganj areas of BCCL / ECL as per advice of CIL.

m) Balance Confirmations

i. Balance confirmation/reconciliation is carried out for cash & bank balances, certain loans &
advances, long term liabilities and current liabilities. Provision is taken against all doubtful
unconfirmed balances.

ii. Joint reconciliation with major sundry debtors is done periodically. Joint reconciliation with
power house like MSPGL, MPPGCL, GSEB,UPRVNL,HSPGCL ,KPCL and SAIL has been
completed up to interim period of 2016-17.

n) Value ofimports on CIF basis

X in Crore)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31.03.2017 31.03.2016
(i) Raw Material - -
(i) Capital Goods - -
(iii) Stores, Spares & Components - 4.00
o) Expenditure incurred in Foreign Currency @ in Crore)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Travelling Expenses 0.06 0.05
Others 0.00 1.40
p) Total Consumption of Stores and Spares @& in Crore)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016
Amount % of total Amount % of total
consumption consumption
(i) Imported Materials 0.44 0.04 0.46 0.04
(ii} Indigenous 1020.52 99.96 1056.24 99.96
Total 1,020.96 100.00 1,056.70 100.00
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q) Statement of Opening Stock, Production, PurchaseslTurnover and Closing Stock

of Coal

(X in Crore and Quantity in Y000 MT)

For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2017 31.03.2016

Qty. Value Qty. Value

Opening Stock- Revenue Mines 8060.98 957.53 5522.04 661.50

- Capital Mines - - 69.00 6.99

Production — Revenue Mines 45189.63 - 44976.47 -
- Capital Mines 524.00 -

Sales - Revenue Mines 39366.82 7157.29 42347.60 7954.98
- Capital Mines 123.98 19.88

Own Consurmnption 84.04 10.35 158.93 29.07

Closing Stock - Revenue Mines 13799.75 | 1649.52 8060.98
- Capital Mines 400.02 32.15 - -

r) Significantaccounting policy

Significant accounting policy (Note-37) has been suitably modified / re-drafted over previous
period, as found necessary to elucidate the accounting policies adopted by the Company in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA)under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The impact of change in accounting policy and other changes to comply with Ind AS in Net

Profit is stated below:

Reconciliation of Profit between IND AS and previous Indian GAAP

attributable to equity shareholders

(X in Crore)
Sl. . Year ended
No. Nature of Adjustments 31.03.2016
Net Profit as per previous Indian GAAP (after tax) 296.60

1 | Remeasurement of Mine Closure Provision as per Ind AS 16 (Net 85.07
of tax)

2 | Actuarial loss/gain on remeasurement of employee defined (72.46)
benefit plan as per Ind AS 19 recognised in "Other
Comprehensive Income" (Net of tax)

3 | Effect of adjustments relating to Prior period (Net of tax) (11.52)
Net Profit as per Ind AS (after tax) attributable to 297.69
equityshareholders
Other Comprehensive Income (after tax) 72.46
Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS (after tax) 37015
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6. Firsttime adoptionofind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2017, are prepared for the first time by the
Company in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March
2016, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). Accordingly, the Company has prepared
financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on 31 March 2017,
together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2016, as described
in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the
Company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2015, the Company's date of
transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating
its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at 1 April 2015 and the
financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Exemptions applied Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective
application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following
exemptions:

(i) Fairvalue measurement of financial assets or financial liabilities

First-time adopters may apply Ind AS 109 to day one gain or loss provisions prospectively to
transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. Therefore, unless a first-time
adopter elects to apply Ind AS 109 retrospectively to day one gain or loss transactions,
transactions that occurred prior to the date of transition to Ind AS do not need to be
retrospectively restated.

As afirsttime adopter of Ind AS, the Company has opted to apply Ind AS 109 prospectively.

(i) Mine Closure, Site Restoration and Decommissioning Obligation in Property, Plant and
Equipment

Appendix 'A' to Ind AS 16 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar
Liabilities requires specified changes in a decommissioning, restoration or similar liability to be
added to or deducted from the cost of the asset to which it relates; the adjusted depreciable
amount of the asset is then depreciated prospectively over its remaining useful lite. A first-time
adopter need not comply with these requirements for changes in such liabilities that occurred
before the date of transition to Ind AS. In other words, a first-time adopter will not need to
estimate what provision would have been calculated at earlier reporting dates. Instead, the
decommissioning liability is calculated at the date of transition and it is assumed that the same
liability (adjusted only for the time value of money) existed when the asset was first
acquired/constructed.

As a first time adopter of Ind AS, the Company has calculated the Mine Closure, Site
Restoration and Decommissioning Obligation at the date of transition assuming that the same
liability (present value) existed when the asset was first acquired/constructed.
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(iii) Resettlement & Rehabilitation Policy of CIL

With changing aspirations of Project Affected Persons (PAPs) and for faster acquisition of land,
Resettlement & Rehabilitation Policy of CIL was revised in 2012 making it liberal and PAP
friendly with more flexibility to the Board of Subsidiary Companies. The Policy provides for
conducting baseline socioeconomic survey to identify PAPs enlisted to receive R&R benefits
as well as to formulate Rehabilitation Action Plan (RAP) in consultation with PAPs and State
Govt. The R&R Policy of Coal India Ltd., provides for payment of land compensation and
solatium, employment or lump sum monetary compensation and annuity, cornpensation for
home-stead, lump sum payment in lieu of alternate house site, subsistence allowance to each
affected displaced family etc.

Reconciliation of equity as at 1st April, 2015 (Date of transition to Ind AS

(X in Crore)
Foot | Indian GAAP | Adjustment Ind AS
Note
ASSETS
(A) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant &Equipments 1721.63 337.24 2058.87
(b) Capital Work in Progress 221..84 - 221.84
(c) Exploration and Evaluation Assets 197.27 - 197.27
(d) Intangible Assets 9.99 - 9.99
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Loans 6.81 - 6.81
(i) Other Financial Assets 968.30 - 968.30
(f) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 464.13 - 464.13
(g) Other non-current assets 81.37 - 81.37
Total Non-Current Assets (A) 3671.34 337.24 4008.58
(B) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 747.12 - 747.12
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 137.31 - 137.31
(i) Trade Receivables 672.92 - 672.92
(iii) Cash & Cash equivalents 853.09 - 853.09
(iv) Other Bank Balances 3317.22 - 3317.22
(vi) Other Financial Assets 354.56 - 354.56
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 818.40 - 818.40
(d) Other Current Assets 187.48 - 187.48
Total Current Assets (B) 7088.09 - 7088.09
Total Assets (A+B) 10759.43 337.24 11096.67
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(R in Crore)
Foot | Indian GAAP | Adjustment Ind AS
Note
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(A)Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 297.10 - 297.10
(b) Other Equity 3489.85 90.85 3,580.70
Equity attributable to equity holders of 3,786.95 90.85 3,877.80
the company
Total Equity (A) 3,786.95 90.85 3,877.80
(B) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(Other Financial Liabilities 6.45 - 6.45
(b) Provisions 3929.37 270.21 4199.58
(c) Other Non-Current Liabilities - - -
Total Non-Current Liabilities (B) 3,935.82 270.21 4,206.03
(C)Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
() Trade payables 338.88 -11.87 327.01
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 117.24 - 117.24
(b) Other Current Liabilities 1510.35 - 1510.35
(c) Provisions 1070.20 -11.95 1058.25
Total Current Liabilities (C) 3,036.67 -23.82 3012.84
Total Equity and Liabilities (A+B+C) 10759.43 337.24 11096.67
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Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March, 2016

 in Crore)
Foot Note Indian Adjustment Ind AS
GAAP

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant &Equipments 2541.22 531.69 3,072.91
(b) Capital Work in Progress 227.91 9.49 237.40
(c) Exploration and Evaluation Assets 259.99 - 259.99
(d) Other Intangible Assets 9.99 - 9.99
(e) Financial Assets

(i) Loans 5.18 - 5.18
(i) Other Financial Assets 1244.41 - 1244.41
(f) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 520.88 - 520.88

|_(g) Other non-current assets 87.75 - 87.75

Total Non-Current Assets (A) 4,897.33 541.18 5,438.51
Current Assets

(a) Inventories 1034.64 - 1034.64
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 114.36 - 114.36
(i) Trade Receivables 832.13 - 832.13
(ii) Cash & Cash equivalents 402.06 - 402.06
(iv) Other Bank Balances 2262.01 - 2262.01
(v) Other Financial Assets 188.85 - 188.85
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 871.90 - 871.90
(d) Other Current Assets 269.14 - 269.14
Total Current Assets (B) 5,975.09 - 5,975.09
Total Assets (A+B) 10872.42 541.18 | 11,413.60
Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital 297.10 - 297.10
(b) Other Equity 2860.10 164.40 3,024.50
Equity attributable to 3,157.20 164.40 3,321.60
equity holders of the company

Total Equity (A) 3157.20 164.40 3,321.60
Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities 6.54 6.54
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T in Crore)
FootNote Indian Adjustment| Ind AS
GAAP
{b) Provisions 4458.59 388.73 4847.32
(c) Other Non-Current Liabilities - - -
Total Non-Current Liabilities (B) 4465.13 388.73 4853.86
Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 418.89 - 418.89
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 144.04 - 144.04
(b) Other Current Liabilities 1648.09 - 1648.08
{c) Provisions 1039.07 -11.95 1,027.12
Total Current Liabilities (C) 3,250.09 -11.95 3238.14
10872.42 541.18 | 11,413.60

Total Equity and Liabilities (A+B+C)
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Reconciliation of profit or Loss for the year ended 31.03.2016

( in Crore)
Foot Note | Indian GAAP| Adjustments | Ind AS

Revenue from Operations
Sales (including excise duty) 7954.98 - | 7954.98
Other Operating Revenue (including 281.27 -| 281.27
excise duty)
Revenue from Operations (A+B) 7725.81 - | 7725.81
Other Income 415.93 90.51 506.44
Total Income (I+I1) 8637.62 90.51 | 8728.13
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 1056.70 - | 1056.70
Changes in inventories of finished -290.89 -| -290.89
goods/work in progress and Stock in trade
Excise Duty 510.44 -| 510.44
Employee Benefits Expense 4472.87 110.81 | 4583.68
Power Expense 327.85 -| 327.85
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 65.27 - 65.27
Repairs 53.96 - 53.96
Contractual Expense 1001.83 -| 1001.83
Finance Costs 1.18 75.51 76.69
Depreciation/Amortization/ Impairment 273.02 98.59 | 371.61
expense
Provisions 186.13 -167.72 18.41
Stripping Activity Adjustment 242.08 -| 242.08
Other Expenses 330.87 -| 330.87
Total Expenses (IV) 8,231.31 117.19 | 8348.50
Profit before Tax (V-VI) 420.87 -26.68 | 394.19
Tax expense 134.85 -38.35 96.50
Profit for the Period (IX+XII+XIII) 286.02 11.67 | 297.69
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) ltems that will not be reclassified - 110.81 110.81
to profit or loss

(ii) Income tax relating to items that - 38.35 38.35
will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Other Comprehensive Income - 72.46 72.46
Total Comprehensive Income for the 286.02 84.13| 370.15
period (XIV+XV) (Comprising Profit
(Loss) and Other Comprehensive
Income for the period)
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g) Miscellaneous

a) Previous period's figures have been restated as per Ind AS and regrouped and rearranged
wherever considered necessary.

b) Note 3 to 21 form part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017 and 22 to 34 form part of
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on that date. Note-1 gives corporate information;
Note—2 represents Significant Accounting Policies and Note —35 represents Additional Notes
to the Financial Statements.

Signature to Note 1 to 35.
CA B.K JHA RAMEHER CA 5. M. CHOUDHARY RAJIV R. MISHRA
General Manager (Finance)  Company Secretary Director (Finance) Chairman-cum-Managing Director
(DIN 07478302) {DIN 05103300)
As per our report of even date
FORV. K. SURANA & CO
Chartered Accountants
FRN 110634W
CA. SUDHIR SURANA
Date :25/05/2017 PARTNER
Place : Nagpur (M.No.43414)
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